
Meeting of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON

Date/Time: Tuesday, October 27, 2015 @ 7:00 P.M.

Location: Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building (2nd floor)
321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin

Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma, Ron Christianson, Greg
Jenson, Michael Engelberger, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Regina Hirsch, Tim
Swadley, Sonny Swangstu, Pat O’Connor, Scott Truehl

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A
QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are
unable to attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via
email lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us

CALL TO ORDER

1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:

2. Minutes and Reports:

 Minutes: Finance Committee (9/22/2015), Redevelopment Authority (8/12/2015),
Landmarks Commission (9/10/2015), Personnel Committee (8/3/2015 & 9/21/2015),
Public Works Committee (9/15/2015), Tree Commission (9/9/2015), and Utilities
Committee (9/14/2015)

 Reports: Utilities Financial Reports

3. Public Comment Period: (*Please note: Comments must be regarding an item on tonight’s agenda)

4. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Council Minutes: October 13, 2015
B. Committee of the Whole Minutes: October 20, 2015

OLD BUSINESS

5. R-58-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to update the City of
Stoughton Work Rules to include the Police Sergeants. (Personnel recommends approval
4-0)

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a

regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below.



NEW BUSINESS

6. R-165-2015- Authorizing Execution of Documents pertaining to the restructuring of the
American Transmission Company LLC (Utilities Committee recommends approval 6-0
with one abstention)

7. R-166-2015- Authorizing execution of a license agreement to allow Dane County to
place antennas and other equipment on the Stoughton Utilities East Water Tower
(Utilities Committee recommends approval 7-0)

8. R-167-2015- Authorizing Council approval of the resolution establishing policies for the
use of Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) (Finance Committee recommends approval 5-0)

9. R-168-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the
Transportation Investment Coalition Resolution - #JustFixItWI (Public Works Committee
recommends approval 4-0)

10. ADJOURNMENT

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate
aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By:
Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Paul Lawrence





 


 


Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, October 27, 2015 @ 7:00 P.M. 


Location:  Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building (2nd floor) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma, Ron Christianson, Greg 


Jenson, Michael Engelberger, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Regina Hirsch, Tim 


Swadley, Sonny Swangstu, Pat O’Connor, Scott Truehl 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A 


QUORUM (EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are 


unable to attend the meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via 


email lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us  


 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 


 


2. Minutes and Reports:  


 


 Minutes: Finance Committee (9/22/2015), Redevelopment Authority (8/12/2015), 


Landmarks Commission (9/10/2015), Personnel Committee (8/3/2015 & 9/21/2015), 


Public Works Committee (9/15/2015), Tree Commission (9/9/2015), and Utilities 


Committee (9/14/2015) 


 Reports: Utilities Financial Reports  


 


 


3. Public Comment Period:  (*Please note:  Comments must be regarding an item on tonight’s agenda) 


 


 


4. CONSENT AGENDA 


A. Council Minutes: October 13, 2015 


B. Committee of the Whole Minutes: October 20, 2015 


 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


5. R-58-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to update the City of 


 Stoughton Work Rules to include the Police Sergeants. (Personnel recommends approval 


 4-0) 


 


 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



mailto:lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


6. R-165-2015- Authorizing Execution of Documents pertaining to the restructuring of the 


 American Transmission Company LLC (Utilities Committee recommends approval 6-0 


 with one abstention) 


 


7. R-166-2015- Authorizing execution of a license agreement to allow Dane County to 


 place antennas and other equipment on the Stoughton Utilities East Water Tower 


 (Utilities Committee recommends approval 7-0) 


 


8. R-167-2015- Authorizing Council approval of the resolution establishing policies for the 


 use of Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) (Finance Committee recommends approval 5-0) 


 


9. R-168-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the 


 Transportation Investment Coalition Resolution - #JustFixItWI (Public Works Committee 


 recommends approval 4-0) 


 


10.    ADJOURNMENT 


 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 


aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 


Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Paul Lawrence 








FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
September 22, 2015 – 6:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Public Safety Building 
 
Present:   
Ron Christianson, Greg Jenson, Pat O’Connor, and Mayor Donna Olson 
 
Others Present:   
Finance Director Sullivan, Joe Murray from Springsted Inc, Recreation Director Tom 
Lynch, and Streets Superintendent Manthe 
 
Absent and Excused:   
Tim Swadley 
 
Call to order:    
Finance Chair Christianson called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 
Communications:  
Tom Lynch explained that the Park & Recreation department is trying to obtain a grant 
for a PARC & Ride project near Amundsen Park. This project will build a bicycle & 
pedestrian trail. 
 
Reports / Contingency:  
No action taken 
 
Finance Committee Minutes of September 8, 2015: 
Motion by Jenson, to approve the Finance Committee minutes of September 8, 2015, 
second by O’Connor. Motion carried unanimously 4-0. 
 
Resolution Authorizing and Directing the Proper City Official(s) to Approve 
Installation of a Street Light in the Franklin Street Parking Lot: 
Karl Manthe stated that this is a request from Stoughton Trailers to install a new street 
light in the Franklin Street parking lot, to improve employee visibility. Finance Director 
Sullivan stated that the cost is approximately $1,500 and will come out of the operating 
budget. Committee discussion centered on the cost of a LED light versus the traditional 
light that was quoted. 
 
Motion by Jenson, to approve the resolution, authorizing and directing the proper city 
officials to approve installation of a street light in the Franklin Street Parking Lot 
contingent upon the price of the addition of the LED light not exceeding $2,000, second 
by O’Connor. Motion carried 4-0. 
 
 
Resolution Authorizing and Directing the Proper City Officials to Enter into an 
Agreement with Cardno for the Design and Permitting for the Division St. Park 
Riverbank Restoration: 
Tom Lynch explained to the committee that this request is to hire Cardno to help design 
the Division Street Park Riverbank Restoration. This money would be coming from the 
previous CIP budget and would cost approximately $14,000. 







Motion to O’Connor, to approve the resolution Authorizing and Directing the Proper City 
Officials to Enter into an Agreement with Cardno for the Design and Permitting for the 
Division St. Park Riverbank Restoration, second by Jenson. Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of $4,815,000 General Obligation Promissory 
Notes and the Issuance and Sale of $4,815,000 Note Anticipation Notes: 
Joe Murray from Springsted explained that the borrowing amount will now be 
$4,775,000 as opposed to $4,815,000. He also explained that he had received four bids 
for the borrowing this afternoon with the lowest apparent bidder as Piper Jaffray & Co. 
His recommendation is to award the bid to Piper Jaffray & Co. 
 
Motion by Jenson, to approve the resolution authorizing the issuance of $4,775,000 
General Obligation Promissory Notes and the Issuance and Sale of $4,775,000 note 
anticipation notes, second O’Connor. Motion carried 4-0. 
 
 
Discussion Regarding TIF Policy: 
Joe Murray from Springsted discussed that after reviewing the policy he felt that it is a 
good overall policy but did have a few changes. These included increasing the 
application fee, charge the developer to recoup all City review, outside consulting, and 
TID creation expenses, using language that explains that TIF is only for financially 
feasible projects, and that TIF only be used for those projects that further enhance and 
support the City’s development objectives.  
 
 
Adjournment 
Motion by Jenson, to adjourn the meeting of the Finance Committee, second by 
O’Connor. Motion carried unanimously 4 -0. The Finance Committee meeting adjourned 
at 6:46 p.m. 







REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, August 12, 2015 – 5:30 p.m.  
Hall of Fame Room/City Hall 


Present:  
Dan Kittleson, Steve Sletten, Peter Sveum, Tom Selsor, John Kramper, Scott 
Truehl, Brian Kahl, Ron Christianson and Finance Director Laurie Sullivan  
 


Absent: 
 
Others Present: 
Mayor Donna Olson, Gary Becker, Sid Boersma, Paul Lawrence, Regina Hirsch and 
Ingrid West  
 
Call to order:  
Sveum called meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Introductions: 
New members introduced themselves.   
 
Approval of July 8, 2015 RDA Meeting Minutes: 
Moved by Kittleson, seconded by Christianson, to approve the minutes of the July 8, 
2015 RDA meeting as presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Communications: 
None 
 
Marathon Site update: 
Sveum reported that Ryon Savasta could not attend the meeting, but had 
relayed that he had nothing new since last meeting to report. 
 
Sustainable Stoughton Presentation: 
Ingrid West and Regina Hirsch from Sustainable Stoughton gave a presentation 
on their vision for the Yahara Riverfront Development Project.   
 
Grant funding opportunities update:   
Becker gave an update on the grant funding opportunities that are available to 
date.  The Wisconsin Assessment Grant money if received would help pay for 
the Phase 2 assessment, but needs a developer to be listed first.  The Site 
Assessment Grant was submitted and is under consideration and should find out 
results in the next couple of weeks.  This grant requires matching funds, which 
we could use the Wisconsin Assessment Grant for that requirement.  The Build 
Grant is on hold at this time.   
 
 
 
 
 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes 
August 12, 2015 
Page 2 
 


 
Millfab acquisition – Closed Session: 
Moved by Truehl, seconded by Kittleson, to close the meeting per State Statute 
19.85(1)(e) deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties; the 
investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, 
whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session; and then 
reopen for the regular course of business.  Time closed: 6:05 p.m. 
Moved by Truehl, seconded by Christianson, to reopen the meeting for the 
regular course of business at 6:38 p.m. 
 
Discuss proposed Zoning Overlay District for Redevelopment District #1 
and recommend approval to the Planning Commission: 
Discussion took place about the rezoning of the Redevelopment District #1 Area.    
Discussion centered on the purpose of the rezoning application and that the 
rezoning is part of a larger effort to redevelop the industrial areas of the District 
into a mixed use area consisting of residential, retail, office and park uses.   Any 
rezoning done would not affect the current residential property owners in the 
area, they would be grandfathered in.  Moved by Truehl, seconded by 
Christianson to submit an application to amend the City’s Official Zoning Map in 
order to rezone the area between South Street and the Yahara River and Fourth 
and Seventh Streets to a Multi-Family 24(MR-24) zoning district.  Motion carried 
unanimously.   
 
Discuss any Redevelopment Area Number One developments: 
Christianson informed the Sustainable Stoughton group that if they were 
interested they could look for grants that could be used in conjunction with City 
owned properties since they stated they had experience in grant writing.   
 
Revolving Loan Fund Update: 
No applications at this time. 
 
 Future Agenda Items: 
 Marathon Site and Revolving Loan Fund update 
 MillFab Update 
Rezoning 
 
Adjourn:  
Moved by Truehl, seconded by Christianson, to adjourn at 6:51 p.m. 


Respectfully submitted, 
Lisa Aide 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2015 PACKETS\10-27-2015\Committee Minutes\Landmarks Minutes 9-10-15.doc 


Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


Monday, September 10, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 


City Hall, Hall of Fame Room, Lower Level, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 


 


Members Present:  Peggy Veregin, Chair; Alan Hedstrom, Vice-Chair; Josh Mabie; Kimberly 


Cook and Greg Pigarelli  


Absent: Michael Engelberger and Stephen Mar-Pohl 


Staff:  Zoning Administrator, Michael Stacey 


Guests:  None 


1. Call to order.  Peggy called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm. 
 


2. Consider approval of the Landmarks Commission meeting minutes of August 17, 2015.   


 


Motion by Alan to approve the minutes as presented, 2
nd


 by Greg. Motion carried 5 – 0. 


 


3. Status Updates:  


A. Power Plant – Michael stated once the Milfab property is acquired by the City, this 


property may be included in an RFP to redevelop the entire area. 


 


B.  1892 High School – Peggy lead a discussion related to potential uses of the building and 
funding options.  Josh suggested an academic use may be appropriate.  Peggy plans to 
meet with the school superintendent and any other available commissioner to discuss 
options for the building and potential grant opportunities. 
 


Motion by Alan to send a letter of intent for a CLG grant to cover costs of a study to determine 
condition of the building and costs to improve it, 2


nd
 by Greg.  Motion carried 5 – 0. 


 


4. Discuss Historic Preservation Award. 


The commission discussed giving the award to KW Properties.  Michael will call Amy 
Wedekind to discuss giving the award at the Council meeting of October 13


th
 or 27


th
.  Another 


option may be to have the presentation at a future landmarks meeting including cake and 
beverages.   


 


5. Discuss Budget for next year. 


It is too late to consider a budget proposal for next year. 
 


6. Commission Reports/Calendar.   


 Alan to call the owner of Web-Net related to why the landmark website has not been in 
operation. 
 


 Peggy stated the Preservation Conference is October 9
th


 and 10
th


 and the commission typically 
does  reimburse members that attend.  Alan and Kimberly plan to attend.  Motion by Alan to 
reimburse commission members for attendance to the conference, 2


nd
 by Kimberly.  Motion 


carried 5 – 0.  Receipts go to Michael for reimbursement.    
 







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


9/10/15 


Page 2 of 2 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2015 PACKETS\10-27-2015\Committee Minutes\Landmarks Minutes 9-10-15.doc  


The group discussed the Linderud Exhibit and how they might transition from Connie Kraus to a 
current member.  Josh will stop at City Hall tomorrow to take a look at the photos.  Michael will 
check with the library to find out if an exhibit is still there. 
 


7. Future agenda items.  None discussed. 
 
8. Adjournment. Motion by Alan to adjourn at 8:25 pm, 2


nd
 by Kimberly.         


Motion carried 5 – 0. 
 
 


Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Michael Stacey 







PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  


Monday, August 3, 2015 @ 6:00pm 


Mayor’s Office  


 


Present: Alders:   Sid Boersma (Chair), Pat O’Connor, Paul Lawrence, Thomas Majewski, Mayor Donna 


Olson (ex-officio) Director Gillingham 


 


Others in attendance:  Rodney Scheel, Bob Kardasz, Carson Hoeper, Richard MacDonald 


  


 


 


1. CALL TO ORDER:  Sid Boersma called the meeting to order at 6:00pm.  


2. Approval of the Minutes of the 7/13/2015 Personnel Committee Meeting. Motion by Lawrence, second 


by Majewski. Motion carried unanimously. 


3. Communications:   


a) Gillingham stated that she has received notice from Brandon Hill SPD Union President 


stating that SPD is ready to begin the contract negotiation process.  Gillingham reminded 


the committee that Attorney Zach from Boardman Law firm has been engaged and will 


assist the City with the contract negotiations.   


b) Library Director MacDonald gave an update regarding the staffing at the Library.  


Following Marilyn Granrud’s passing we have hired an internal candidate, Klare Girgen 


as the new Technical Services Supervisor.  Klare’s vacated position was filled by internal 


candidate Cynthia Schlegel, Cynthia’s position is now open and we are actively 


recruiting for her position in circulation.   


 Alder Boersma then asked if the personnel committee would like to send welcome cards to new 


employees.  He stated he thought it would be a nice gesture.  Director Gillingham asked if he was 


thinking of sending cards to all employee’s including summer/season, LTE and temporary or limiting it to 


just full time and regular part-time.  Alder Lawrence asked for clarification. Alder Boersma asked that we 


add this to the next agenda to discuss.   


4. Old Business 


 


a) Director Gillingham updated the committee regarding the meetings with the other 


Brokers. Director Gillingham stated that she has met with two larger firms in the 


Madison areas.  Mayor Olson and Director Gillingham met with two Brokers’ last week.  


One being our existing Broker and the other being one of the larger agencies.  Director 


Gillingham stated that she would like to be decided on the Broker for the City prior to 


going into renewal.  She explained that means we have to move swiftly.  The alternative 


Broker’s are reviewing their numbers and will come back to the city in the next 2 weeks 


with their proposals.  Director Gillingham explained that may require special meeting for 


the Personnel Committee.  The committee members stated they understood the 


importance and time sensitivity of the matter.  Director Gillingham asked the committee 


if they would like her to schedule meetings with additional firms or if the three would be 


adequate.  The committee was satisfied with the three firms.  Mayor Olson explained to 







the committee that in order to change brokers, she would like to see a cost savings and we 


were not just changing for the sake of changing.  Director Gillingham reminded the 


committee that she was tasked by the Stoughton Common Council to seek out other 


agencies to ensure our pricing and services were competitive.   


b) Sergeants job description changes: Chief Leck explained that the new job descriptions 


meet the seven clauses to remove the Sergeants positions from the Union.  He explained 


that the new job descriptions would qualify as non-exempt supervisor.  He further 


explained that the job descriptions were designed for duty designation.  All three 


sergeants will be cross trained.  Boersma then asked who the Sergeants would report to.  


Chief Leck explained the hierarchy- Sergeant, Lieutenant then Chief.  Alder Lawrence 


asked if the new structure and job description would make the department run better and 


Chief stated yes.  Director Gillingham stated that the new job descriptions captures and 


includes the updated duties.  It was reported that the job descriptions have not been 


updated in several years.   Boersma asked if the Officers were successfully trained each 


year with their weapon.  Chief reported that they attend in-services and have to meet the 


state required number of hours for training.  Boersma stated that nationwide the officers 


and guns are a concern.  Chief stated that his officers receive excellent training.  He also 


explained that the number of hour’s requirement is increasing from 520 to 720.  Alder 


Majewski asked about the physical requirements for the position.  He was inquiring about 


police officers being re-tested after their initial hire.  Chief Leck talked about the 


minimum standards that are being evaluated as well as Fit Force.  Director Gillingham 


talked about the assessment center and the hiring process.  Alderman Boersma asked 


about during the hiring process if we give points for Vets as well as if we have women 


and minorities apply. Chief and Director Gillingham both stated no to Vets but, they do 


consider it.  Women and minorities, we have limited applicants.  Alder O’Connor said 


that the state recognizes vets.    Chief stated that MP’s can be certifiable.  Move to 


approve the three sergeant’s job descriptions and forward to the City Council by 


Lawrence, second Majewski, all in favor.   


c) Director Gillingham stated all information and discussions with Springsted are completed 


with the exception of the Facilities position.  The Mayor stated that the Personnel 


Committee had previously asked that the Mayors salary be incorporated in the study.  It 


was reported that Springsted stated that there is not currently a true comparable therefore; 


it will not be included with the study.   Director Gillingham said she is expecting to hear 


back from Springsted within a week.   


 


  


 


 


 







5. New Business 


 


a. Director Scheel stated there is a very small pool of qualified candidates if Master 


Electrician.  He stated he needs a handyman with HVAC and technical background.  He 


stated he would determine the applicant’s skill set through job history and some of the 


skill would be acquired on the job.  Motion to approve the updated Maintenance job 


description and to forward to council for final approval. Move to approve by Lawrence, 


second by O’Connor, All in favor. 


b. Director Kardasz stated he is having trouble recruiting and possibly retaining staff due to 


the City not allowing opposite sex domestic partners on the medical and dental insurance 


plans.  Director Gillingham stated that she has had a couple of requests for this benefit.  


Boersma stated this is a potential problem as how do we know if the couple is together, 


unlike marriage and divorce where there is a certificate.  O’Connor asked Director 


Gillingham to find out who is interested and the number of people and what area 


commonalities are doing.    Majewski asked what the cost is.  He then stated that we need 


to put our personal feelings aside and do what is right to allow us to be able to recruit the 


best talent.  He stated that society is changing, generations are changing.  He said we 


need to make this change.  As an employer we need to remain competitive.  Chief Leck 


stated with the stiff competition and limited candidate pool, we need to be competitive.  


Mayor Olson spoke about when the committee and council first discussed and approved 


same sex domestic partners.  She stated that they were not comfortable at that time with 


opposite sex domestic partners.  Sid suggested that we contact the City’s Attorney.  


Director Gillingham read to the committee the opposite sex, domestic partner qualifiers 


from Unity Health.  Motion by Lawrence to have Director Gillingham research what area 


communities offer, discuss with the Broker and bring a proposal to the next Personnel 


Committee meeting. Second by Majewski, All in favor. 


 


 


Feedback  to Director Gillingham and Mayor Olson that members of the community  have brought to 


their Alders attention that the Streets Department Staff do not look professional.  Their work shirts are 


modified (sleeves torn off, holes).  Library staff also is wearing athletic wear and shorts which are not 


appropriate work attire.  It was stated by the Alder that when you walk into City Hall you expect the 


employees to be dressed professionally, not in jeans and casual wear.  When you see the Streets/Parks 


Department you expect them to have on clothes that are department compliant, clean, not modified and 


are in good condition.   Director Gillingham and Mayor Olson will address the feedback.  


ADJOURNMENT 


Motion to adjourn by Lawrence, second by O’Connor.  Motion carried unanimously. Meeting adjourned 


at 7:02pm. 


 







PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  


Monday, September 21
st
, 2015 @ 6:00pm 


Mayor’s Office  


 


Present: Alders:  Sid Boersma (Chair), Pat O’Connor, Paul Lawrence, Thomas Majewski, Mayor Donna 


Olson (ex-officio) 


 


Others in attendance:  Chief Leck, Laurie Sullivan, Brian Hoops, Scott Wagner, Cindy McGlynn, Richard 


McDonald, Ann Antonsen 


  


 


1. CALL TO ORDER:  Sid Boersma called the meeting to order at 6:01pm 


2. Approval of the Minutes of the August 3, 2015 Personnel Committee Meeting. Motion by Boersma, 


second by Lawrence. Motion carried unanimously. 


3. Communications:   


A. Director Gillingham asked to table the Broker Update to allow more time for Comp Study 


Results.  All were in agreement. 


B. Director Gillingham updated the committee regarding upcoming Personnel Committee 


meeting dates. Scheduled dates are as follows: Monday, September 28
th
, 2015 and Monday, 


October 5
th
, 2015. O’Connor stated he will be unable to attend the meeting on Monday, 


September 28
th
. 


C. Boersma asked Chief Leck for an update on PFC (Police & Fire Commission) - SGT (Sergeant) 


and new hire status. Chief Leck is scheduled to meet with the PFC (Police & Fire Commission) on 


Wednesday, September 23, 2015 at 5:30pm to review the twenty-six (26) top candidates. The top 12-


15 applicants will be interviewed on October 19
th
 & 20


th
.  We had a total of 9 applications for 


Sergeant. The six (6) SGT (Sergeant) interviews will be held Wednesday, October 14
th 


beginning 


at 5:30pm. Boersma asked if Leck was happy with the amount and quality of applications we 


received. Leck replied he was very happy. 


4. Old Business 


 


a. Domestic Partner tabled until 10/05/15 meeting.  


 


5. New Business 


 


a. Boersma introduced Ann Antonsen, representative of Springsted. Antonsen proceeded to 


go through a printed form of a PowerPoint presentation to show the outcome of the Comp 


Study done for the City of Stoughton. Antonsen reported the City of Stoughton has not 


had a Comp Study done for at least 15 years.  


The objectives being to evaluate and review the City’s current classification and 


compensation program, review wage and benefit levels, develop a compensation program 


that will address the current market, review and develop guidelines for implementation. 


In order to do this Springsted met with administration and department heads to gather 


information such as current compensation and benefits, evaluate positions based on job 


responsibilities and requirements. They obtained market salary and benefits information. 







Employees of every position filled out PAQ (Position Analysis Questionnaire). All of this 


information was used to evaluate where positions should fit as related to other positions 


and what the requirements and duties were for each position. Springsted then developed a 


salary line and determined pay grades. They then developed implementation options. 


Boersma asked so; you matched job responsibilities to each position? Ann stated that 


they were all very similar. O’Conner asked if the bold print of “Evaluate positions based 


on job responsibilities and requirements” was on purpose, and what for? Gillingham 


replied that was an important step because that is how they determined what is required 


of the position. Lawrence asked who the cities were that were involved. Ann replied 


Stoughton, Middleton, Monona, Sun Prairie, Verona, and McFarland. 


Ann went on to say that a Salary Survey was done with the benchmark Communities. 


Lawrence asked what are the Benchmark communities? Ann replied there were 47 public 


sector organizations, select private organizations, the Department of Labor and Bureau of 


Labor Statistics. Of the 49 benchmark positions 31 matched the City of Stoughton. Sid 


asked if all of the other cities involved were doing a comprehensive study as well. Ann 


reported that not all of them had, but that it is more prevalent now because of Act 10. 


The study’s findings were that city positions do not have established salary ranges. The 


current City salaries are 11.49% above market average minimum salaries, .84% below 


market average Midpoint salaries, and 12.43% below market average maximum salaries. 


Actual salaries were compared to market ranges regardless of the employees years of 


service. There are also concerns regarding recruitment and retention of employees. 


Boersma asked if we are paying more or less than what other cities are paying. Ann 


explained that it shows our current salaries are higher than the market but lower when 


compared to other cities. O’Conner asked for an explanation of Minimum and Mid 


market. Ann replied Minimum is entry level salary, Mid is market. Director Gillingham 


explained further that entry level employees with better skills should have a higher 


minimum salary. Ann stated that there should be internal adjustments for employees with 


higher qualifications. Director Gillingham stated that the market place is very competitive 


and it is increasingly more difficult to recruit and retain qualified staff. Ann replied that it 


is very competitive, with the need to spend more time and energy recruiting in order to 


find qualified applicants. 


Ann explained the SAFE system “Systematic Analysis and Factor Evaluation” System. 


The factors are:  


 Training & Ability 


 Experience Required 


 Level of Work 


 Human Relations Skills 


 Physical Demands 


 Working Conditions 


 Independence of Actions 


 Impact on End Results 


 Supervision Exercised 


Director Gillingham explained “What is required of the position. Not the individuals or 


years of service but what the position requirements are.” 


Ann explained the Pay Philosophy which is: 


 Provide fair and equitable compensation to employees 


 Balance external market with City positions 


 Maintain competitive pay structure with consideration of City’s fiscal resources 


 Performance based component for increases for individual employees 


 Develop an understandable compensation program 







Lawrence asked where you find comparisons for positions like Parks Director.  Ann 


stated that not all positions have a match on the market. Boersma stated that we can use a 


city to city comparable in that situation.  


Ann & Director Gillingham explained that the City will not be moving with the pay for 


performance plan until 2017. For 2016 we will be adjusting salaries to minimum market 


amounts.  O’Conner asked what the difference was and Director Gillingham explained 


that when the salaries are all at midpoint and headed to market max the raise will slow. 


Ann stated raises will be based on performance and adjusted annually on Anniversary 


dates. 


Boersma asked if anyone was way overpaid. Ann stated that the Director of the Youth 


Center, Greg Hoyte, is out of range but that does not affect the city because it is paid 


through a grant. O’Conner asked if there were positions not included. Director 


Gillingham stated none of the Utilities positions were included. Majewski stated that he 


does not agree with the fact that they are part of the City and at the same time not part of 


the city. We continue to appease them and the culture continues. Either they are part of 


the City or they are not. Mayor Olson stated it is because they are rate payer supported 


not tax payer supported. Open discussion about when the study began. Director Sullivan 


stated the cities had to agree on an IFP agreement between the cities. It was a 6 


community decision to use these benchmarks. 


O’Conner stated the Police positions were involved in the study, why was the Library 


done separately? Mayor Olson stated that it is a state law. The Library is given a certain 


amount of funds by the City and the Library Board allocates the funds. 


Ann explained the proposed plan showing the steps of pay based on performance from 


lowest to highest position grade.  


Implementation of this plan will involve moving the employees that are paid at a rate that 


falls below market to minimum. Annual cost to bring employees to minimum is 


$47,054.01 Leadership would be moved to Mid point at an annual cost of $43,100.23. 


This increases market comparability. 


City Staff Recommendation: 


 COLA increase at 1/1/2016 


1% across the board: $50,000 


 Comp Study increases at Anniversary Date 


Bring all Staff to minimum: $28,635 


Bring all to Min and Leadership to Mid: $47,253 


Leadership to Mid at Anniversary: $26,206 


Board discussion about how this would be implemented. Director Gillingham stressed 


that salaries would not go up for those people who do not perform. Any increase will be 


performance based only. Boersma asked if we were afraid there might be a backlash 


against this performance based program. Director Gillingham replied that this is why we 


used an outside source. Mayor Donna stated we will need training in an evaluation 


process. Director Gillingham said we will determine an evaluation process and have 


forms. Department heads will need to grade employees throughout the year. These raises 


will be given on Anniversary dates so it is spread more evenly throughout the year. 


Boersma asked if there were any questions. Laurie stated this was a very thorough study 


and we need to move forward on this. We need to align job positions with market rates. 


Boersma moved to approve. Several members of the committee explained they were not 


ready to approve yet that there is a lot to digest.  


Director Gillingham stated that PAQ (Position Analysis Questionnaire) will start with the 


two new Utilities positions. McGlynn asked if they will see the comp plan at the 


employee meetings, to which Director Gillingham replied the Heads will meet with the 


employees.  







Boersma asked about benefits. Ann explained they were fairly consistent with other 


cities. Our sick leave was standard, accumulated sick leave was high, health insurance 


cost was higher, but our deductible lower. 


Director Gillingham read our future agenda items.  


 


 


 


Chair Boersma asked that we move the meeting time to a 6:00 start so Alderperson Majewski is able to 


attend the meetings.  All were in agreement.   


ADJOURNMENT 


Motion to adjourn by Lawrence, second by O’Connor.  Motion carried unanimously. Meeting adjourned 


at 7:34pm. 







 


 


Public Works Committee  
Tuesday, September 15, 2015 @ 6:00 PM 
Hall of Fame Room @ City Hall – 381 E Main St 
 
Members Present:  Alderpersons Tom Majewski, Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma and Mayor Olson 


Absent & Excused: Tom Selsor 


Staff: Planning Director Rodney Scheel and Street Superintendent Karl Manthe 


Guests:  Alderperson Greg Jenson, Sylvia Lawrence  
  
Call to Order:  Majewski called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm 


1) Communications:     Boersma reported about a work day scheduled for Friday October 2, 
2015 from 12 noon to 2:00 pm to move wood mulch away from base of crabapple trees at 
Racetrack Park. This is the Heggestad Crabapple Orchard and is being organized by Tree 
Commission member Dave Moyer. 


 Manthe reported that asphalt binder is planned for this Thursday for the Washington Street 
construction project and that crews are painting pedestrian safety markings at crosswalks on 
W. Main St. 


 


2) Activity Reports:    Reports include the following information; 


 Street crews continue to grind out tree stumps and fill with dirt, grass seed and straw 
matting. Replacement trees in some of these locations will be completed this fall or next 
spring.  
 


 Street crews have finished spray patching streets throughout the city. Crews first focused 
on West Main Street (Van Buren St to Hoel Ave) and now have completed spray patching 
the city. 
 


 Yard waste site has been slowed down this month with the lack of rain. For the year, 905 
(42 new permits for August) permits have been sold to city residents and 141 (5 new 
permits for July) permits issued to Dunkirk Township resident. 
 


 Letters have been sent out to residents who have placed brush in the street.  The city 
provides no curbside brush collection again until October.  If you see any neighbors or 
friends, please let them know.  Brush can be taken to the yard waste site at 1051 Collins 
Road. 
 


 Stormwater inlets were cleaned after a couple major rainfall events.  Crews also took 
advantage of dry weather to mow greenways and detention ponds in areas that are 
normally wet ground. 
 


 Street crews are near completion of street painting.  Crews paint crosswalks, centerlines, 
parking stalls, curbs, and the other pavement markings that assist with turning.  To help 
raise awareness to pedestrian crossings on W. Main Street, crews have painted additional 
pavement markings near the crosswalks. 
 


 Contractors completed painting the traffic signal poles, trombone arms, and control 
cabinets.  The newly painted poles look just brand new again. 
 







 


 


 Administrative Assistant is busy keeping inventories current for cemetery, trees and signs, 
processing invoices, tracking yardwaste permits, sales, and usage, computerizing 
employee timesheets, and addressing customer inquiries.   


 
 Fleet Maintenance Manager continues to maintain city wide fleet to make sure it is available 


for daily tasks. Fleet Manager will soon be changing equipment over for fall activities. Fleet 
Manager has also been working on EMS, Police, and Fire Fleet performing preventive 
maintenance. 


   


 The Parks Department continues to keep very busy with daily park cleanup, diamond prep, 
shelter cleaning, mowing and trimming parks and city properties, playground inspections 
and repairs, and trail maintenance.  The season has ended at Troll Beach, so crews have 
completed removing the playground devices in pond and will be getting the pool ready for 
the winterized for the season.  


 


 Other routine tasks completed during the month include; dumping trash barrels downtown 
and cemeteries, cleaning fleet and garage, check traffic signals, check flags downtown, 
monitor water levels at Fourth Street Dam, garage safety inspections (fire extinguishers, 
eye wash stations, exit lights, fall protection). 


 
Old Business: 


 


3) Update – Request from Stoughton Trailers to Install Street Light – Franklin St Parking 
Lot:  Scheel explained that the city doesn’t have the required computer software to complete a 
photometric lighting plan and that he interpreted the information from Stoughton Utilities to 
height and distance needed for the installation for the street light in the Franklin Street Parking 
Lot and it meets the requirements.  


Majewski wanted to know what the feedback was from the neighbors at the last meeting, 
which Manthe mentioned they received emails from a couple of residents with comments for 
and against the lighting being placed in the lot. One additional resident attending the meeting 
with some concerns, but was ok with installation 


Majewski would like to see LED lighting installed. 


Lawrence mentions that this is a public safety issue with limited budget impact and meets the 
specification and does not violate light pollution policy. 


The light will be installed on the east end of the parking lot and be paid out of street lighting 
account. 


 Motion by Lawrence seconded by Boersma to direct Common Council to approve street 
light at Franklin Street Parking Lot and request Stoughton Utilities to install a LED 
street light and to have light directed in a downward direction.  Motion carries 4-0 with 
Mayor voting yes.  


  


New Business: 


  


4) Approve August 18, 2015 Meeting Minutes:  Motion by Lawrence seconded by Boersma 
to approve minutes with the correction of removing Planning Director Rodney Scheel 
from being present.  Motion carried 4-0. (Mayor voting yes) 


 


5) Discussion on Veterans Park Tennis Court Project:  Manthe explained the tennis court 
project and the issues that needed to be dealt with.  The projects started out as a overlay 
matting for the tennis court, similar to the East Park tennis court, although after plans had 







 


 


been made to do the overlay, the contractor said he could not do it on the current surface. The 
decision was made by city staff to re-construct the tennis court, which has been completed.  
While re-doing the fencing at the court, the fence contractor recommended 6 foot fence on 
each end and a portion of the side.  


  Lawrence is concerned with balls going over fence on the ends and out into the Page Street 
on the sides.   


 Majewski had concerns with the recommendation from the fence contractor and thought that 
staff should have gotten information from Wisconsin Recreation & Parks Association, US 
Tennis Association, or Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources for proper height of tennis 
court fences. Neighboring resident Sylvia Lawrence expressed concerns over balls landing in 
her yard and street.  


 Manthe presented solutions of adding netting or extending chain link fencing to make fence 10 
on ends and sides. 


  Majewski would like to see chain link used and also install wood practice panels on one end. 
Majewski would also like to make sure it is ADA compliant. Committee sees this as a safety 
issue if balls go out into the street. 


 


 Motion by Lawrence seconded by Majewski to direct staff to work on remediation plan 
for the fence and bring back bids to committee. Motion carries 3-0 with Mayor 
abstaining.   


 


6) Discussion on Pedestrian Safety in Downtown District:  Lawrence expressed his concerns 
about pedestrian safety in the downtown district and wants the city to do more to improve the 
safety for pedestrians in crosswalks as defined by state law.  


  Manthe reported on past efforts by the city to provide pedestrian safety and the costs 
associated with the products used. State law requires motorists to “Yield” to pedestrians in the 
crosswalk, not “Stop”. 


  Scheel explained an experience that happened to him on his way to the meeting where 
pedestrians don’t make the initial eye contact, leaving motorists unsure what the pedestrian’s 
intentions are.  


 Committee members all agree that pedestrian safety is a priority and the committee needs to 
continue to discuss this more.  Public Safety Committee is also reviewing pedestrian safety in 
the downtown district.  This item will be brought back to the next Public Works Committee 
meeting to continue discussions and find a solution.   


 


7) Discuss Adams Outdoor Advertising Billboard:  Scheel wanted to know if the committee 
wanted to end the lease with Adams Outdoor Advertising for the billboard located in the front 
of City Hall. The lease doesn’t expire until 2015, and the early intentions of the committee are 
to end the lease.  Scheel will draft a resolution for the next Public Works meeting and more 
discussion will take place on this item.    


  


8) Future Agenda Items:  Bids to add additional fencing at Veterans Park Tennis Court, Adams 
Outdoor Advertising Billboard 


 


 Moved by Lawrence seconded by Majewski to adjourn the meeting at 6:50 pm.  Motion 
carried 4-0 (with the Mayor voting).   Respectfully submitted by Karl Manthe, Street 
Superintendent 9/16/15 







 
Tree Commission Meeting Minutes 


Wednesday, September 9, 2015 at 4:30 PM 


Giles Dow Room, City Hall, 381 E Main St,  
 
Members Present:     Sid Boersma, Kendall McBroom, Dave Moyer, and Randy Nelson 


Absent & Excused:   Robert Kardasz, Kevin Short and John Archer  


Staff:   Street Department Secretary Vickie Erdahl 


Guests:  None 


Call to order:  Meeting called to order at 4:35 PM by Moyer 
 


1)   Communications:   Nelson presented a flier from Dane County Land & Water Resources Dept asking 
if we would like to participate in the 2015-2016 Gypsy Moth Suppression Cost-Share Program.  (City 
does not meet the criteria listed for that level of spraying).  Nelson also presented an article from the 
International Society of Arborists Arborist News for continuing education - “Cost of Not Maintaining the 
Urban Forest”. Nelson also updated the committee that the oak leaf was denied to be the largest red 
oak leaf by Guinness, however, it is the largest red oak leaf for surface area.  


 


2)    Forestry Reports:  Moyer had questions of why the street department crew had to finish grinding out 
the stumps if the project was bid out and requested to see what the perimeters and specifics of the 
contract were and also include the budgets for Tree Planting and Removal.   Moyer questioned 
whether the committee should review the contracts for tree planting, tree removal and stump removal.  
Also requested were the budget amounts for each category i.e. planting, removing, stumps and 
injections. Direct staff to furnish the information for the October meeting. 


 


3)   Crabapple Arboretum Update:  No current update.  There will be a working day through the friends 
of Heggestad Arboretum on Friday, October 2nd from noon – 3:00 pm to work on re-mulching the trees 
and other maintenance if possible. Committee also will check in to make sure no permits are needed 
to remove trees and Moyer’s Landscaping Company will furnish the necessary equipment. Cummins 
Filtration will be asked if they have any volunteers available as the company has an environmental 
team that does a lot of community projects.  McBroom provided some pictures of signage that perhaps 
would work for the arboretum. 


 


4)   Information for Website:  Committee members presented some websites to be added to the current 
list.  A quick link from the city’s main web page for committees will be added to bring them into the 
forestry link.  On the street department page the drop down menus will be re-arranged to bring 
residents into the site quicker.  WSTO will be asked to link the “Tree Recycle” video highlighting the 
solar kiln to the forestry site.  Also much needed updating will be done to edited links with errors. 


 


5)   Tree Planting Lists:  The committee would like to eliminate and add trees from Sec 78-611 – 
classification of plant species that contractors can use for landscaping points to avoid a losing all trees 
if a disease happens and also to encourage diversity.  The commission would like to have only 5 % of 
any one genus.  Since the table is within an ordinance changes would need to go through the proper 
channels.  The Tree Commission would need to send the changes to the Public Works Committee for 
review.  A list was compiled of trees from the current inventory however the list is incomplete because 
trees from trails, the cemetery and some right-of-ways were missed when doing the inventory.  This list 
shows the genus, species and common name along with the count.  The percents will be calculated 
and some species will be removed from the list in hopes that other varieties are planted. 


 







 
6)  Solar Kiln Plan for Funds & Distribution:  Committee will review the drafted proposal that was never 


finished by the sub-committee for the solar kiln and make suggestions to complete the document to 
have set guidelines in place for the usage, care and monies involved. There will be a meeting with 
Tree Commission members, Keith Kvalheim and Cindy McGlynn Senior Center Director to discuss the 
agreement involving the solar kiln as the Senior Center is involved also. 


 
7)   Approval of minutes from August 19, 2015 Meeting:  Motion by Boersma, seconded by 


McBroom to approve the minutes.  Carried 3-0.  
 


 
8)  Tree City USA Points:  After some discussion the committee is going to pursue the following 


categories from the Arbor Day Foundation to achieve our goals – A6 – Publicity (5 points) and B-10 – 
Citizen Training Program (6 points) for the work and project surrounding the Heggestad Crabapple 
Arboretum. 
 


9)  Article for Hub:  Moyer has been in discussions with the Hub to publish monthly articles involving the 
Urban Forestry.  The first article will be regarding the Heggestad Arboretum.  There will be no fees 
charged for the article but there will be a size limitation.  The committee will be thinking of other 
suggestions or subjects to be presented and develop a list. The committee will also be responsible for 
writing the articles. 


 
10)  Future Agenda Items:  Tree Planting List, Information for/on Website, Grants, Hub article, Tree City 


USA points, Solar Kiln  NOTE: Next meeting will be held at Bjoin Park. 
 
Motion by McBroom seconded by Boersma to adjourn the meeting at 6:30 p.m.  Respectfully submitted 9/14/15, 
Vickie Erdahl - Staff  







 


STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 
Monday, September 14, 2015 – 5:00 p.m. 
Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
600 S. Fourth St. 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
Members Present: Citizen Member David Erdman, Alderperson Greg 


Jenson, Citizen Member John Kallas, Mayor Donna 
Olson and Citizen Member Alan Staats.  


  
Excused: Alderperson Michael Engelberger. 
 
Absent: Alderperson Elvin (Sonny) Swangstu. 
 
Others Present: Stoughton Utilities Technical Operations Supervisor 


Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Finance and 
Administrative Manager Kim Jennings, CPA and 
Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz, P.E. 


  
Call To Order:  Mayor Donna Olson called the Regular Stoughton Utilities 
Committee Meeting to order at 5:13 p.m. 
 
Stoughton Utilities Committee Consent Agenda:  Stoughton Utilities Director 
Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities Committee 
Meeting Consent Agenda items. Discussion Followed. Motion by Citizen Member 
David Erdman, the motion seconded by Citizen member John Kallas, to approve 
the following consent agenda items as presented: Stoughton Utilities Payments 
Due List, Draft Minutes of the August 17, 2015 Regular Stoughton Utilities 
Committee Meeting, Stoughton Utilities July 2015 Financial Summary, Stoughton 
Utilities July 2015 Statistical Information, Stoughton Utilities Communications, 
Stoughton Utilities Committee Annual Calendar, and the Stoughton Utilities August 
2015 Activities Reports. The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0.  
 
Status Of The Stoughton Utilities Committee Recommendation(s) To The 
Stoughton Common Council:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz 
presented and discussed the following items from the Stoughton Utilities 
Committee that were approved and placed on file by the Stoughton Common 
Council: 
 


 Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List. 
 


 Stoughton Utilities Committee July 7, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 


 Stoughton Utilities June 2015 Financial Summaries. 
 







 


STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 
Monday, September 14, 2015 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No. 2 
 


 Stoughton Utilities June 2015 Statistical Worksheet. 
 


 WPPI Energy Contract Extension. 
 


 Appointed Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager Kim 
Jennings as the Alternate Director to the WPPI Energy Board of Directors. 
  


Stoughton Utilities Proposed 2016 Budget:  Stoughton Utilities Finance and 
Administrative Manager Kim Jennings and Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 
Kardasz presented and discussed the proposed Stoughton Utilities 2016 Budget.  
Discussion followed. Motion by Citizen Member David Erdman, the motion 
seconded by Citizen Member Alan Staats, to approve the proposed Stoughton 
Utilities 2016 Budget and recommended the approval to the Stoughton Common 
Council. The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0.  
 
Stoughton Utilities Proposed Utilities Billing And Metering Specialist: 
Stoughton Utilities Technical Operations Supervisor Brian Hoops and Stoughton 
Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the proposed Utilities 
Billing and Metering Technician.  Discussion followed. Motion by Citizen Member 
John Kallas, the motion seconded by Citizen Member David Erdman, to approve 
the proposed Stoughton Utilities Billing and Metering Specialist position 
description, approve the promotion, and recommend the approvals and the 
development of the wage to the Stoughton Personnel Committee and the 
Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 
 
Stoughton Utilities Proposed Response Time Modification:  Stoughton Utilities 
Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the proposed Stoughton Utilities 
response time.  Discussion followed. Motion by Citizen Member David Erdman, 
the motion seconded by Citizen Member John Kallas, to approve and recommend 
the approval of a 30-minute response time to the Stoughton Personnel Committee 
and the Stoughton Common Council.  The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 
 
Water Rate Application – Status Report No. 1:  Stoughton Utilities Finance and 
Administrative Manager Kim Jennings and Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 
Kardasz presented and discussed the Water Rate Application Status Report No. 1.  
Discussion followed.  Motion by Citizen Member Alan Staats, the motion seconded 
by Alderperson Greg Jenson, to authorize Stoughton Utilities staff to apply for a 
water rate adjustment with the Wisconsin Public Service Commission.  The motion 
carried unanimously 6 to 0.  







 


 
STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 
Monday, September 14, 2015 – 5:00 p.m. 
Stoughton, WI 
Page No. 3 
 
Affirmation Of Moody’s A1 Rating For The Water Utility:  Stoughton Utilities 
Finance and Administrative Manager Kim Jennings and Stoughton Utilities 
Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the Moody’s Investor Service 
affirmation of A1 for the Water Utility.  Discussion followed.   
 
Stoughton Utilities Committee Future Agenda Items: None 
 
Adjournment:  Motion by Alderperson Greg Jenson, the motion seconded by 
Citizen Member David Erdman, to adjourn the Regular Stoughton Utilities 
Committee Meeting at 5:47 p.m.  The motion carried unanimously 6 to 0. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 
Stoughton Utilities Director 
 





		3- September 22, 2015  Finance Minutes.pdf

		08-12-15 RDA Meeting Minutes.pdf

		Landmarks Minutes 9-10-15.pdf

		Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes 8-3-2015.pdf

		PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 9-21-2015.pdf

		PW Min September 15, 2015.pdf

		TC Min September 9, 2015.pdf

		Utilities Committee Minutes 9-14-2015.pdf






 


DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR 
MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, October 19, 2015 – 5:03 p.m. 
Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
600 S. Fourth St. 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
Members Present: Alderperson Michael Engelberger, Citizen Member 


David Erdman, Alderperson Greg Jenson, Citizen 
Member John Kallas, Mayor Donna Olson, Citizen 
Member Alan Staats, and Alderperson Elvin (Sonny) 
Swangstu.  


  
Excused: None. 
 
Absent: None. 
 
Others Present: Alderperson Ron Christianson, Stoughton Utilities 


Finance and Administrative Manager Kim Jennings, 
CPA, Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz, P.E., 
and Stoughton Fire Chief Scott Wegner. 


  
Stoughton Utilities Committee Consent Agenda:  Stoughton Utilities Director 
Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities Committee 
Meeting Consent Agenda items. Discussion Followed. Motion by Citizen Member 
David Erdman, the motion seconded by Citizen Member John Kallas, to approve 
the following consent agenda items as presented: Stoughton Utilities Payments 
Due List, Draft Minutes of the September 14, 2015 Regular Stoughton Utilities 
Committee Meeting, Stoughton Utilities August 2015 Financial Summary, 
Stoughton Utilities August 2015 Statistical Information, Stoughton Utilities 
Communications, Stoughton Utilities Committee Annual Calendar, and the 
Stoughton Utilities September 2015 Activities Reports. The motion carried 
unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
 







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


12:30PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


1 of 6


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 10/2/2015


Friday, October 02, 2015


Description


7430Company:


VO for check batch: 306577EP001095 516 WELLS FARGO BANK9/14/2015  26,064.68


Delta Dental - Sept Ach/Delta Dental - Sept 


Ach/Delta Dental - Sept Ach


HC001096 001 Delta Dental - Ach9/30/2015  1,844.22


EBC - Sept Ach/EBC - Sept Ach/EBC - Sept 


Ach/EBC - Sept Ach


HC001097 002 Employee Benefits Corp - Ach9/30/2015  548.28


AT&T - Sept Ach/AT&T - Sept Ach/AT&T - Sept AchHC001098 952 AT&T9/30/2015  379.16


Charter - Sept Ach/Charter - Sept Ach/Charter - 


Sept Ach/Charter - Sept Ach


HC001099 547 Charter Communications-Ach9/30/2015  414.89


Alliant Energy - Sept Ach/Alliant Energy - Sept 


Ach/Alliant Energy - Sept Ach/Alliant Energy - Sept 


Ach/Alliant Energy - Sept Ach/Alliant Energy - Sept 


Ach/Alliant Energy - Sept Ach


HC001100 003 Alliant Energy - Ach9/30/2015  212.43


Gordon Flesch-Sept Ach/Gordon Flesch-Sept 


Ach/Gordon Flesch-Sept Ach/Gordon Flesch-Sept 


Ach


HC001101 856 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY, INC.9/30/2015  91.48


TDS Metrocom - Sept Ach/TDS Metrocom - Sept 


Ach/TDS Metrocom - Sept Ach/TDS Metrocom - 


Sept Ach


HC001102 007 TDS Metrocom - Ach9/30/2015  466.80


Us Cellular - Sept Ach/Us Cellular - Sept Ach/Us 


Cellular - Sept Ach/Us Cellular - Sept Ach/Us 


Cellular - Sept Ach/Us Cellular - Sept Ach/Us 


Cellular - Sept Ach/Us Cellular - Sept Ach/Us 


Cellular - Sept Ach


HC001103 004 Us Cellular - Ach9/30/2015  478.45


Dept of Rev-Sept Ach/Dept of Rev-Sept AchHC001104 010 WI Dept. of Revenue Taxpayment-Ach9/30/2015  59,334.01


State Taxes - Sept Ach/State Taxes - Sept AchHC001105 008 Payroll  State Taxes - Ach9/30/2015  5,975.06


Federal Taxes - Sept Ach/Federal Taxes - Sept 


Ach/Federal Taxes - Sept Ach/Federal Taxes - Sept 


Ach


HC001106 025 Payroll Federal Taxes- Ach9/30/2015  32,599.05


Client Analysis-Sept Ach/Client Analysis-Sept 


Ach/Client Analysis-Sept Ach/Client Analysis-Sept 


Ach


HC001107 020 Wells Fargo Bank-Ach9/30/2015  10,816.21


Assoc Bank-Sept AchHC001108 015 Associated Bank-Ach9/30/2015  69,362.50







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


12:31PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


2 of 6


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 10/2/2015


Friday, October 02, 2015


Description


WPPI-Renewable Energy/WPPI-Buy Back Solar 


Credit/WPPI-Shared Savings/WPPI-Large 


Power/WPPI-Support Services/WPPI-Support 


Services/WPPI-Support Services


HC001109 009 WPPI9/30/2015  1,043,989.79


Utility svcs-qtr 1 pedCK023852 362 UTILITY SERVICE CO., INC9/2/2015  4,491.44


Strand-wwtp phos compliance/Strand-Scada 


enhancements/Strand-Long Range 


Planning/Strand-Kettle Park West/Strand-sewer 


system study/Strand-Church & Ridge 


Sts/Strand-Hults Road 


project/Strand-Washington-fifth 


sts/Strand-Forton-south sts/More...


CK023853 448 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC.9/2/2015  52,248.02


PSC-AssissmentsCK023854 491 PUBLIC SVC. COMM. OF WI.9/2/2015  469.60


Auxiant-Medical Admin/Auxiant-Medical 


Admin/Auxiant-Medical Admin/Auxiant-Medical 


Admin


CK023855 590 AUXIANT9/2/2015  5,097.81


Mulcahy-Weftec 2015CK023856 673 MULCAHY SHAW WATER9/2/2015  110.00


Id Access-employee id/Id Access-employee idCK023857 756 ID-ACCESS9/2/2015  20.00


Boardman-professional services/Bordman-wa twr 


license agree


CK023858 865 BOARDMAN & CLARK LLP9/2/2015  2,893.39


R Olson-Customer Refund/R Olson-Customer 


Refund/R Olson-Customer Refund


CK023859 933 RICK & CHERYL OLSON9/2/2015  155.79


Us Cellular-Cell PhoneCK023860 123 US CELLULAR9/15/2015  10.24


D Behncke-Customer RefundCK023861 128 DALE BEHNCKE9/15/2015  51.02


CTW - SuppliesCK023862 135 CTW CORPORATION9/15/2015  100.85


J Post-Solar Credit RefundCK023863 158 JAMES POST9/15/2015  212.84


Mid 


West-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trench


ing/Mid West-Trenching


CK023864 290 MID-WEST TREE & EXCAVATION, INC9/15/2015  4,076.00


Elec Testing-Glove TestsCK023865 324 ELECTRICAL TESTING LAB., LLC.9/15/2015  296.75







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


12:31PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


3 of 6


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 10/2/2015


Friday, October 02, 2015


Description


Border States-InventoryCK023866 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY9/15/2015  510.75


E & N Hughes-Hults Road Proj.CK023867 351 E & N HUGHES CO., INC.9/15/2015  273,964.66


B Andre-Solar Credit RefundCK023868 396 BRUCE ANDRE9/15/2015  165.72


Resco-Inventory/Resco-suppliesCK023869 400 RESCO9/15/2015  781.55


Stoton Chamber-Leadership Cla.CK023870 415 STOUGHTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE9/15/2015  350.00


Frontier-Fuel/Frontier-Fuel/Frontier-FuelCK023871 451 FRONTIER-SERVCO FS9/15/2015  1,591.85


WRWA-WRWA Outdoor ExpoCK023872 548 WISCONSIN RURAL WATER ASSOC.9/15/2015  150.00


First Supply-Curb Stop repairCK023873 550 FIRST SUPPLY LLC MADISON9/15/2015  51.00


Eucalyptus-Customer RefundCK023874 585 EUCALYPTUS DESIGN9/15/2015  53.18


J Scheller-Solar Credit RefundCK023875 647 JOHN & REBECCA SCHELLER9/15/2015  495.50


Lab of Hygiene-Fluoride testsCK023876 675 WI STATE LABORATORY OF HYGIENE9/15/2015  20.00


Dunkirk-Aug Dunkirk DamCK023877 781 DUNKIRK WATER POWER CO LLC9/15/2015  251.41


C Harkins-Solar Credit RefundCK023878 858 CASEY HARKINS9/15/2015  580.89


S Klimek-Customer RefundCK023879 870 SEAN & JENNA KLIMEK9/15/2015  149.97


Stoton Ems-Defib BatteryCK023880 899 STOUGHTON AREA EMS9/15/2015  152.06


WI DNR- WW Operator certifCK023881 956 WI DNR9/15/2015  45.00


S Felio-Solar Credit RefundCK023882 964 STEVE FELIO9/15/2015  335.17


City Stoton-Sept Retirement/City Stoton-Aug 


Stormwater/City Stoton-Sept Retirement/City 


Stoton-Sept Retirement


CK023883 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON9/24/2015  52,532.62


C Housner-Customer RefundCK023884 238 CHARLES HOUSNER9/24/2015  22.42


United Way-Sept ContributionCK023885 293 UNITED WAY OF DANE COUNTY9/24/2015  50.00







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


12:31PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


4 of 6


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 10/2/2015


Friday, October 02, 2015


Description


Resco-Supplies/Resco-Inventory/Resco-SuppliesCK023886 400 RESCO9/24/2015  1,311.97


Rosenbaum-Dump FeesCK023887 405 ROSENBAUM CRUSHING & EXCAV.9/24/2015  317.33


D Erdman-Meeting Reimb.CK023888 442 DAVID ERDMAN9/24/2015  127.50


Woodward-Help Wanted ads/Woodward-Help 


Wanted ads/Woodward-Help Wanted ads


CK023889 474 WOODWARD COMMUNITY MEDIA9/24/2015  517.79


J Venske-Construction RefundCK023890 574 JOEL VENSKE9/24/2015  159.04


Vining Sparks-SafekeepingCK023891 584 VINING SPARKS IBG, L.P.9/24/2015  51.00


Seera-August Focus on energyCK023892 603 SEERA9/24/2015  5,256.13


GLS Utility-Aug Locates/GLS Utility-Aug 


Locates/GLS Utility-Aug Locates


CK023893 727 GLS UTILITY LLC9/24/2015  4,990.00


C Mcpherso-Customer RefundCK023894 728 CHARITY MCPHERSON9/24/2015  323.23


D Dahl-Customer RefundCK023895 859 DOUGLAS DAHL9/24/2015  218.64


S Everett-Customer RefundCK023896 880 SHAWN EVERETT9/24/2015  1,122.85


Us Cellular-Cell PhoneCK023897 123 US CELLULAR9/30/2015  78.37


City Stoton-Sept Life Ins/City Stoton-Auxiant 


Claims/City Stoton-Auxiant Claims/City 


Stoton-Pharmacy Claims/City Stoton-Pharmacy 


Claims/City Stoton-Pharmacy Claims/City 


Stoton-Auxiant Claims/City Stoton-Auxiant 


Claims/City Stoton-Auxiant Claims+


CK023898 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON9/30/2015  126,838.09


Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Trenching/Midwest-Tre


nching/Midwest-Trenching


CK023899 290 MID-WEST TREE & EXCAVATION, INC9/30/2015  1,223.00


Stoton Chamber-Member Dues/Stoton 


Chamber-Member Dues/Stoton Chamber-Member 


Dues


CK023900 415 STOUGHTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE9/30/2015  141.00







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


12:31PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


5 of 6


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 10/2/2015


Friday, October 02, 2015


Description


Strand-Lateral Observations/Strand-Church & Ridge 


Sts/Strand-Wash & 5th sts/Strand-wwtp 


phosphorus/Strand-scada work/Strand-sanitary 


sewer study/Strand-Hults Rd Project/Strand-Hults 


Rd Project/Strand-Wash & 5th sts/Strand-Hults Rd 


Project


CK023901 448 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC.9/30/2015  21,124.11


Instant Exp-Photo BoothCK023902 449 INSTANT EXPRESSIONS PHOTO BOOTH RENTAL9/30/2015  400.00


Boardman & Clark-Prof SvcsCK023903 865 BOARDMAN & CLARK LLP9/30/2015  4.19


C Mazzarisi-Customer Refund/C 


Mazzarisi-Customer Refund/C Mazzarisi-Customer 


Refund


CK101104 554 CARRIE MAZZARISI9/1/2015  166.08


B & H-ww plant mowing/B & H-Taylor ln mowing/B & 


H-South st mowing/B & H-Admin Mowing/B & H 


-Cnty B mowing/B & H-South st mowing/B & 


H-Academy st mowing/B & H-Van Buren Mowing/B 


& H-Water tower mowing/B & H-Admin Mowing/B & 


H-Admin Mowing


CK101105 519 B & H LAWN CARE9/2/2015  1,905.00


Cintas-Cloth cleaning/Cintas-cloths 


cleaning/Cintas-restroom cleaning/Cintas-Cloths 


cleaning/Cintas-Cloths cleaning/Cintas-restroom 


cleaning/Cintas-cloths cleaning/Cintas-Cloth 


cleaning/Cintas-Cloth cleaning/Cintas-cloths 


cleaning/More...


CK101106 809 CINTAS CORPORATION #4469/2/2015  605.31


MEUW-Cst sve & Acct/MEUW-Mgmt Training Ses 


C/MEUW-Cst sve & Acct/MEUW-Cst sve & Acct


CK101107 995 MEUW9/2/2015  850.00


Great West-Sept A Def CompCK101108 463 GREAT-WEST9/9/2015  2,750.00


N Shore-Sept A Def CompCK101109 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB9/9/2015  200.00


Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing/Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing


CK101110 852 INFOSEND, INC9/9/2015  3,957.66


Forster-Professional ServicesCK101111 157 FORSTER ELEC. ENG.,INC.9/15/2015  1,251.25


B Hoops-Class reimbCK101112 181 BRIAN HOOPS9/15/2015  76.00


Hanson-Pest Maint.CK101113 310 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT9/15/2015  43.00







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


12:31PM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


6 of 6


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 10/2/2015


Friday, October 02, 2015


Description


K Jennings-ClassCK101114 687 KIM JENNINGS9/15/2015  76.00


B Johnson-Solar Credit RefundCK101115 732 BROOK JOHNSON9/15/2015  84.17


Cintas-Cloth cleaning/Cintas-Cloth 


cleaning/Cintas-Bathroom 


cleaning/Cintas-Bathroom cleaning/Cintas-Cloth 


cleaning/Cintas-Cloth cleaning/Cintas-Cloth 


cleaning/Cintas-Cloth cleaning/Cintas-Bathroom 


cleaning


CK101116 809 CINTAS CORPORATION #4469/15/2015  459.09


Sun Dance-Sept Cleaning/Sun Dance-Sept 


Cleaning/Sun Dance-Sept Cleaning


CK101117 322 SUN DANCE CLEANING SVCS LLC9/24/2015  250.00


Great West-Sept B Def CompCK101118 463 GREAT-WEST9/24/2015  2,850.00


T Harding-School ReimbCK101119 525 TYLER HARDING9/24/2015  190.00


K Jennings-Meeting reimbCK101120 687 KIM JENNINGS9/24/2015  223.14


CGC-Hults Rd Project/CGC-Carl Ave 


project/CGC-Washington st project/CGC-Hults rd 


project/CGC-Hults rd project/CGC-Washington st 


project/CGC-Hults Rd Project


CK101121 718 CGC, INC.9/24/2015  1,864.16


N Shore Bank-Sept B Def CompCK101122 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB9/24/2015  200.00


Cintas-Cloths Cleaning/Cintas-Cloths 


Cleaning/Cintas-Cloths Cleaning


CK101123 809 CINTAS CORPORATION #4469/24/2015  146.22


Company Total  1,837,415.83







Date:


Time:


User:


Monday, September 14, 2015


01:11PM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000048'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


Import ID: 009010 Import # : 0000000048


-321.60833 000000  - WW GRAINGER236 08/03/2015Return - credit 82007460


 40.00920 000000  - WWOA548 08/03/2015WWOA membership renewal fee 10007450


 18.02903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 08/04/2015CC Processing - Online E-Pay 52507450


 10.79903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 08/04/2015CC Processing - Desktop and recurring 52507450


 50.07903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 08/04/2015CC Processing - Online E-Pay 52507430


 8.03233 001099  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 08/04/2015CC Processing - Online E-Pay 52507430


 29.97903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 08/04/2015CC Processing - Desktop and recurring 52507430


 4.81233 001099  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 08/04/2015CC Processing - Desktop and recurring 52507430


 14.61642 000000  - THE UPS STORE 3617164 08/04/2015Lead and copper samples 84007450


 133.10833 000000  - MENARDS MONONA652 08/04/2015Electrical and paint supplies 82007460


 183.00827 000000  - SHERWIN WILLIAMS #3833748 08/04/2015Paint supplies 84007460


 24.03840 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 08/04/2015CC Processing - Online E-Pay 52507460


 14.38840 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 08/04/2015CC Processing - Desktop and recurring 52507460


 12.78834 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 08/05/2015wasp spray and cement glue 87107460


 14.76827 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 08/05/2015Parts for camera installation 82007460


 146.89920 000000  - BLUE HARBOR AD DEPOSIT669 08/05/2015TRAINING EXPENSE - LODGING - WPPI ANNUAL CONFERENCE - RKARDASZ 10007430


 146.89920 000000  - BLUE HARBOR AD DEPOSIT669 08/05/2015TRAINING EXPENSE - LODGING - WPPI ANNUAL CONFERENCE - KJENNINGS 10007430


 146.89920 000000  - BLUE HARBOR AD DEPOSIT669 08/05/2015TRAINING EXPENSE - LODGING - WPPI ANNUAL CONFERENCE - BHOOPS 10007430


 103.32583 000000  - PAYPAL  LABONVILLE419 08/05/2015Chaps for Tyler 41007430


 901.91933 000000  - LAKESIDE INTERNATIONAL184 08/05/2015Truck #2 repairs 40007430


 24.15920 000000  - USPS 56797007232510315824 08/06/2015Shipment of water samples 36507450


 26.62586 000000  - PAYPAL  MYTOOLSTORE969 08/06/2015METERING TOOL 41007430


 46.70932 000000  - PAYPAL  MYTOOLSTORE969 08/06/2015SCREWDRIVERS 41007430


 22.34827 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 08/06/2015Hardware 82007460


 426.04833 000000  - EMS INDUSTRIAL, INC.795 08/06/2015Motor testing 41007460


 1.92833 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 08/07/2015primary parts 87107460


 474.86673 000000  - NAPA PARTS - SNP 0027410786 08/07/2015caution tape 41007450


 1,596.00614 000000  - LA FORCE INC576 08/07/2015Door repairs at well 4 and 5 40007450


 1,113.00614 000000  - LA FORCE INC576 08/07/2015Door repairs at well 4 and 5 40007450


 5.99932 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 08/07/2015plugged bee holes 52857430


 23.99932 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 08/07/2015Torc blade 52857430


 135.41921 000000  - STAPLES352 08/10/2015Printer toner 52507450


 363.99932 000000  - NAPA PARTS - SNP 0027410786 08/10/2015Cleaning supplies 41007430


 376.16921 000000  - STAPLES352 08/10/2015Printer toner 52507430


 60.21233 001099  - STAPLES352 08/10/2015Printer toner 52507430


 377.64663 000000  - AMERICINN894 08/10/2015Meter School 52757450


 180.55851 000000  - STAPLES352 08/10/2015Printer toner 52507460


 11.00851 000000  - MSFT   E040017OI1836 08/12/2015HOSTED MICROSOFT LYNC SERVICE 52507460


 18.79828 000000  - 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B626 08/12/2015Auto - notch belt 87007460


 4.99827 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 08/12/2015batteries 87007460


 253.80614 000000  - L W ALLEN INC207 08/12/2015Troubleshooting transducer failure at well 4 40007450


 191.92614 000000  - L W ALLEN INC207 08/12/2015Troubleshooting flow meter at well 7 40007450







Date:


Time:


User:


Monday, September 14, 2015


01:11PM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000048'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


 622.00834 000000  - LA FORCE INC576 08/12/2015Repair grit door 82007460


 5.37827 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 08/12/2015Pipe insulators 82007460


 24.20921 000000  - MSFT   E040017OI1836 08/12/2015HOSTED MICROSOFT LYNC SERVICE 52507430


 8.80921 000000  - MSFT   E040017OI1836 08/12/2015HOSTED MICROSOFT LYNC SERVICE 52507450


 48.30920 000000  - USPS 56797007232510315824 08/13/2015Shipment of water samples 36507450


 80.46827 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 08/13/2015Confined space signs 82007460


 14.32642 000000  - THE UPS STORE 3617164 08/13/2015Lead and copper samples 84007450


 107.17827 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 08/13/2015air filters for blowers 87007460


 45.48921 000000  - WAL-MART #1176507 08/14/2015City wide open house 33007430


 1,797.48641 000000  - HAWKINS INC309 08/14/2015chemicals 40007450


 1,162.93614 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 08/17/2015Submersible transmitter for wells 41007450


 152.13614 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 08/17/2015poly tubing 41007450


 29.19827 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 08/17/2015Belts for exhaust fans 82007460


 80.48932 000000  - ADVANCE AUTO PARTS 6292194 08/17/2015Grease guns 54007430


 6.99932 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 08/17/2015Insect spray 52857430


 477.50675 000000  - HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS 233492 08/18/2015curb stop 41007450


 17.00678 000000  - CENEX D M SERV07083686317 08/19/2015LP for asphalt burner 74007450


 12.36827 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 08/19/2015Supplies for sump pump 82007460


 57.78921 000000  - DISCOUNT ASP.NET854 08/19/2015Website hosting and services - Annual charge 52507450


 160.50921 000000  - DISCOUNT ASP.NET854 08/19/2015Website hosting and services - Annual charge 52507430


 25.68233 001099  - DISCOUNT ASP.NET854 08/19/2015Website hosting and services - Annual charge 52507430


 77.04851 000000  - DISCOUNT ASP.NET854 08/19/2015Website hosting and services - Annual charge 52507460


 14.40833 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER436 08/19/2015final clarifier supplies 87107460


 40.24827 000000  - 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B626 08/20/2015oil filters for air compressor 87107460


 451.08833 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 08/20/2015Aeration blower filters 87107460


 28.00642 000000  - NORTHERN LAKE SERVICE, IN974 08/20/2015Lead and copper analysis 52757450


 20.65827 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER436 08/21/2015Plumbing supplies 82007460


 220.00832 000000  - PAYPAL EBAY MARKTPLC USD969 08/21/2015Lift station generator - fuel tank 82007460


 10.99586 000000  - 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B626 08/21/2015Uniroyal VT and CT parts 52007430


 8.41586 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 08/21/2015Uniroyal VT parts 52007430


 569.63933 000000  - LAKESIDE INTERNATIONAL184 08/21/2015Line truck repair 40007430


 175.08827 000000  - 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B626 08/21/2015air compressor oil 87107460


 89.40903 000000  - MIDWEST METER - JACKSON165 08/25/2015Itron Antenna 40007430


 1,714.30933 000000  - GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS IN377 08/25/2015LED truck lights 40007430


 180.00921 000000  - PITNEYBOWES ONLINEBILL889 08/25/2015PITNEYBOWES ONLINEBILL 36607430


 31.90588 000000  - SEILER INSTRUMENT346 08/26/2015GPS pole replacement parts 43007430


 42.20827 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER436 08/26/2015fittings for DAF pressure tank 82007460


 89.00827 000000  - AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS994 08/26/2015wire cable for portable welder 82007460


 123.95827 000000  - PAYPAL EBAY MARKTPLC USD969 08/26/201510 ton power jack 82007460


 800.00642 000000  - NORTHERN LAKE SERVICE, IN974 08/26/2015Lead and copper analysis 52757450


 11.60665 000000  - SEILER INSTRUMENT346 08/26/2015GPS pole replacement parts 43007450


 19.15642 000000  - USPS 56797007232510315824 08/26/2015Bacteria samples 84007450


 247.36827 000000  - 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B626 08/26/2015power belts for RAS pumps 87007460


 14.50857 000000  - SEILER INSTRUMENT346 08/26/2015GPS pole replacement parts 43007460







Date:


Time:


User:


Monday, September 14, 2015


01:11PM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000048'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


 3.98832 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 08/27/2015generator supplies 87007460


 65.15833 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY01148 08/27/2015steel for final clarifier repair 87007460


 10.00833 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER436 08/27/2015final clarifier supplies 87107460


 166.80673 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 08/27/2015valve wrench 41007450


 38.76827 000000  - AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BILL422 08/27/2015EXHAUST SILENCER FOR DAF PRESSURE TANK 82007460


 59.86827 000000  - AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS994 08/27/2015case of paper towels 82007460


 140.80831 000000  - CMC - MADISON EAST994 08/28/2015CEMENT RISER RINGS FOR MANHOLE REPAIR 82007460


 103.98827 000000  - AMAZON MKTPLACE PMTS994 08/28/2015Wypalls - wiper replacements 82007460


 6,699.80232 001099  - STUART C IRBY355 08/28/2015neutral wire 41007430


 8.99932 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 08/28/2015nylon rope 52857430


 24.25827 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 08/31/20153 inch bi hole saw 82007460


 46.29827 000000  - AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BILL422 08/31/2015COOPER WIRING DEVICES 82007460


 526.75614 000000  - MID AMERICA METER755 08/31/2015Well 7 flow meter repair 40007450


 328.65833 000000  - HACH COMPANY717 08/31/2015Lab supplies 83007460


 323.97673 000000  - WOLF PAVING CO., INC.555 08/31/2015blacktop for water patches 87007450


 11.25831 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER436 08/31/2015cement mix for south street manhole 87107460


 54.45831 000000  - WOLF PAVING CO., INC.555 08/31/2015blacktop for south street manhole work 87007460


 117.23833 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY01148 08/31/2015steel for final clarifier repair 87007460


 26,064.68Total:







Highlights-Comparison to prior month


I have no concerns with the utility's financial status.  The following items are


meant to illustrate significant changes in the financial summary from prior periods.


Financial results are as expected through August 2015.


The addition of water and sewer service to customers on Hults Road is in progress.


The cost of the project is $850,000 and this amount was included in the City's most


recent General Obligation Bond Issue.  The costs will be assessed to four customers


over a period of ten years.


Staff received a prepayment of $208,000 for the electric infrastructure work


in the Kettle Park West development.  The total project cost estimate


is $528,000.  The remaining $320,000 will be paid with TIF funds.


Staff is preparing a water rate application for an estimated 10.87%


increase to be effective in early 2016.  The estimated filing date is October 15, 2015.


Staff are working with Springsted, Inc. to prepare for a current refunding of


2006 outstanding bonds along with new debt issuance for electric and water.


Submitted by: 


 Kim M. Jennings, CPA


Stoughton Utilities
Financial Summary


August 2015-YTD







Stoughton Utilities
Income Statement


August 2015-YTD


Electric Water Wastewater Total


Operating Revenue:


Sales 10,155,008$       1,156,711$       1,336,693$          12,648,412$      


Other 121,119              12,216              29,519                 162,853             


Total Operating Revenue: 10,276,126$       1,168,927$       1,366,212$          12,811,265$      


Operating Expense:


Purchased Power 7,995,792$         -$                  -$                    7,995,792$        


Expenses 971,564              614,834            672,522               2,258,919          


Taxes (Including PILOT) 300,512              250,000            -                      550,512             


Depreciation 640,000              273,336            510,000               1,423,336          


Total Operating Expense: 9,907,868$         1,138,170$       1,182,522$          12,228,560$      


Operating Income 368,258$            30,757$            183,690$             582,705$           


Non-Operating Income 310,907              19,243              12,297                 342,447             


Non-Operating Expense (121,418)             (48,911)             (96,664)               (266,993)            


Net Income 557,747$            1,089$              99,323$               658,159$           







Stoughton Utilities
Rate of Return


August 2015-YTD


Electric Water


Operating Income (Regulatory) 368,258$            30,757$            


Average Utility Plant in Service 23,696,430         12,128,837       


Average Accumulated Depreciation (11,583,483)        (4,046,285)        


Average Materials and Supplies 151,181              33,403              


Average Regulatory Liability (210,524)             (359,398)           


Average Customer Advances (15,801)               


Average Net Rate Base 12,037,803$       7,756,557$       


Actual Rate of Return 3.06% 0.40%


Authorized Rate of Return 6.50% 6.50%







Stoughton Utilities
Cash & Investments


Electric Aug-15


Unrestricted (3.4 months O&M) 4,376,117      


Bond Reserve 704,728         


Redemption Fund (P&I) 265,425         


Designated 2,034,569      


Total 7,380,839      


Water Aug-15


Unrestricted (2.5 months O&M) 336,965         


Bond Reserve 274,005         


Redemption Fund (P&I) 87,039           


Designated 127,000         


Total 825,008         


Wastewater Aug-15


Unrestricted (9.5 months O&M) 1,364,975      


DNR Replacement 1,283,407      


Redemption Fund (P&I) 220,463         


Designated 251,042         


Total 3,119,887      


4,376,117 , 59%


704,728 , 9%


265,425 , 4%


2,034,569 , 28%


Electric Cash - August 2015


Unrestricted (3.4 months O&M) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated


336,965 , 41%


274,005 , 33%


87,039 , 11% 127,000 , 15%


Water Cash - August 2015


Unrestricted (2.5 months O&M) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated


1,364,975 , 44%


1,283,407 , 41%


220,463 , 7%
251,042 , 8%


Wastewater Cash - August 2015


Unrestricted (9.5 months O&M) DNR Replacement
Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated







Stoughton Utilities
Balance Sheet


August 2015-YTD


Assets Electric Water WW Total


Cash & Investments 7,380,839$         825,008$          3,119,887$         11,325,734$     


Customer A/R 168,078              17,554              24,309                209,941            


Other A/R 108,774              5,922                14,426                129,122            


Other Current Assets 642,816              52,366              12,341                707,522            


Plant in Service 24,524,618         12,792,786       26,630,521         63,947,925       


Accumulated Depreciation (12,446,339)        (4,554,452)        (9,236,485)          (26,237,276)      


Plant in Service - CIAC 2,814,125           6,141,956         -                      8,956,081         


Accumulated Depreciation-CIAC (968,131)             (1,775,418)        -                      (2,743,550)        


Construction Work in Progress 197,591              620,498            398,175              1,216,264         


Total Assets 22,422,371$       14,126,220$     20,963,173$       57,511,764$     


Liabilities + Net Assets


A/P 154,286$            7,577$              118,864$            280,727$          


Taxes Accrued 256,664              250,000            -                      506,663            


Interest Accrued 58,170                23,631              45,633                127,434            


Other Current Liabilities 318,534              126,851            111,638              557,023            


Long-Term Debt 4,620,485           2,380,433         5,908,753           12,909,670       


Net Assets 17,014,233         11,337,728       14,778,285         43,130,246       


Total Liabilities + Net Assets 22,422,371$       14,126,220$     20,963,173$       57,511,764$     







Total Sales Total KwH Total Sales Total KwH Demand Demand
2014 KwH Purchased 2014 2015 KwH Purchased 2015 Peak 2014 Peak 2015


January 13,572,114 13,885,322 12,594,914 13,197,588 25,674 25,272


February 11,612,838 12,255,028 11,912,881 12,163,003 23,798 24,035


March 11,816,165 12,205,206 11,384,590 11,661,431 22,799 22,103


April 10,325,053 10,665,133 9,887,620 10,154,400 19,877 18,465


May 10,948,918 11,262,169 10,297,762 10,568,931 24,791 20,689


June 12,401,518 12,808,677 11,558,844 11,808,858 27,449 26,106


July 12,394,690 12,749,666 13,140,994 13,526,962 31,834 29,891


August 12,987,843 13,465,040 12,706,650 13,009,294 29,351 29,672


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 96,059,139 99,296,241 93,484,255 96,090,467


Total Sales Total Gallons Total Sales Total Gallons Max Daily High Max Daily Highs
2014 Gallons Pumped 2014 2015 Gallons Pumped 2015 2014 2015


January 39,159,000 41,904,000 38,998,000 43,515,000 1,621,000 1,699,000


February 36,656,000 41,813,000 36,093,000 38,638,000 2,034,000 1,650,000


March 38,631,000 43,738,000 39,487,000 42,609,000 1,597,000 1,573,000


April 36,532,000 40,683,000 37,589,000 40,597,000 1,663,000 1,614,000


May 39,974,000 42,183,000 40,954,000 44,010,000 1,604,000 1,664,000


June 40,593,000 43,926,000 40,546,000 45,437,000 1,778,000 1,907,000


July 41,572,000 44,292,000 39,884,000 48,536,000 1,769,000 2,521,000


August 41,938,000 43,867,000 42,414,000 44,437,000 1,893,000 1,807,000


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 315,055,000 342,406,000 315,965,000 347,779,000


Total Sales Total Treated Total Sales Total Treated Precipitation Precipitation
2014 Gallons Gallons 2014 2015 Gallons Gallons 2015 2014 2015


January 28,250,000 34,801,000 25,781,000 33,133,000 1.17 0.72


February 25,179,000 30,873,000 24,242,000 28,758,000 1.36 0.70


March 27,776,000 36,882,000 26,064,000 34,089,000 1.17 0.47


April 26,343,000 38,765,000 24,758,000 34,145,000 4.89 3.00


May 28,550,000 39,966,000 27,077,000 36,688,000 3.39 4.61


June 27,429,000 39,786,000 27,122,000 36,798,000 6.47 4.09


July 28,561,000 40,170,000 27,276,000 30,094,000 4.04 3.61


August 29,769,000 38,728,000 28,406,000 26,947,000 4.21 3.04


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 221,857,000 299,971,000 210,726,000 260,652,000 26.70 20.24


2015 Statistical Worksheet


STOUGHTON  UTILITIES


Electric


Water


Wastewater












 


 


Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, October 13, 2015 @ 7:00 P.M. 


Location:  Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building  


Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma, Ron Christianson, Greg 


Jenson, Michael Engelberger, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Regina Hirsch, Tim 


Swadley, Sonny Swangstu, Pat O’Connor, Scott Truehl 


 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


Mayor Olson called the meeting of the Common Council to order at 7:00 p.m.  


 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 


Clerk Kropf called the roll and noted that there were 10 alderpersons present, with Selsor and Swangstu 


being absent and excused. 


 


Minutes and Reports:  


 


Minutes:  Finance Committee (9/8/2015), Public Safety Committee (9/8/2015 & 9/23/2015), and 


Commission on Aging (9/1/2015) 


 


Public Comment Period:   


 


Jennifer Redell; 101 S Webster St; Madison: Spoke in regards to the possible bat mitigation in the Opera 


House. 


 


CONSENT AGENDA 


A. Council Minutes: September 22, 2015 and September 29, 2015 


B. R-152-2015- Confirming the Mayor’s Committee Appointment of Bob Barnett to 


the Commission on Aging 


C. R-153-2015- Confirming the Mayor’s Committee Appointment of Mike Maloney 


to the Planning Commission 


 


Motion by Lawrence, to approve the consent agenda, second by Christianson. Motion carried 


unanimously by acclamation 10-0. 


 


**Closed session item:  The council may meet in closed session, pursuant to Section 


19.85(1)(g) of the Wisconsin Statutes, to confer with legal counsel who will render legal 


advice regarding strategy to be adopted with respect to potential litigation (assertions by 


John Stark and Atty. Brian Thill that a change in zoning of the Millfab property would be 


a regulatory taking, and that they may take legal action against the City).  If the Council 


meets in closed session, it will reconvene in open session and continue with other business 


noted on the agenda.  
 


Motion by Lawrence, to meet in closed session, second by Christianson. Motion carried on a roll call 


vote of 10-0. Finance Director Sullivan requested that the chair of the Redevelopment Authority, Peter 


  


 







 


 


Sveum, be allowed to stay in the closed session. Mayor Olson approved Finance Director Sullivan’s 


request.  


The Common Council went into closed session at 7:07 p.m.  


Motion by Jenson, to reconvene into open session, second by Lawrence . Motion carried unanimously 


by acclamation 10-0.  


The Common Council reconvened into open session at 8:30 p.m. 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


O-17-2015- An ordinance amending the zoning classification for parcels of land  bounded by 


Fourth and Seventh Streets and South Street and the Yahara River,  Stoughton, WI. The 


properties are proposed to be rezoned from HI- Heavy Industrial, SR-6 – Single Family 


Residential, NB- Neighborhood Business and I-Institutional to MR-24- Multi-Family 


Residential. 


 


Motion by Christianson, to refer O-17-2015 to the planning commission and to direct staff to re-


notice the public hearing on the ordinance for the November 9, 2015 planning commission 


meeting, second by Truehl. John Stark addressed the Council and thanked them for their 


reconsideration. Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 10-0.  


 


O-16-2015- An ordinance amending the zoning classification for property located at 2000 


Meadow Drive, Stoughton, WI. From PD- Planned Development to SR- Single Family 


Residential and I- Institutional.  


 


Motion by Christianson, to approve O-16-2015, second by Lawrence. Planning Director Scheel 


explained that this is a zoning change for a previously approved Certified Survey map. Motion 


carried unanimously by acclamation 10-0.  


 


R-122-2014- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to recommend and approve the 


vacating of the alley in the 700 block behind Clyde St (between Johnson & Harrison Sts).  


 


Motion by Christianson, to approve R-122-2014, second by Truehl. Planning Director Scheel 


noted that this was tabled in April until all of the parameters of the alley vacation had been met. 


Motion carried 9-1, with Majewski voting noe. 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


R-164-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the change of 


Insurance Brokerage firms to Cottingham & Butler and move to a fully funded plan  (Dean-


HMO) with a $500.00 deductible along with an option at a higher cost for UW Health Plan.  


 


Motion by Boersma, to approve R-164-2015, second by Majewski. Human Resources 


Director Gillingham addressed the Council regarding the potential change in the City’s health 


insurance. Dean Vander Plas, from Cottingham & Butler, also addressed the Council and 


explained the potential new health insurance plan. Council discussion centered around the 


general cost and provisions for the new health insurance. Motion carried on a roll call vote of 


10-0. 







 


 


R-146-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to enter into an agreement 


with Cardno for the design and permitting for the Division St. Park riverbank restoration. 


 


Motion by Hirsch, to approve R-146-2015, second by Engelberger. Parks and Recreation 


Director Lynch addressed the Council and noted that this project would help rebuild and beautify 


the river bank on the Division Street. Motion carried on a vote of 8-1, with Majewski voting noe 


and Boersma abstaining.  


 


R-154-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to approve naming the section 


of the Yahara River Trail from the pedestrian bridge to the industrial park, “The Helen Johnson 


Trail”.   


 


Motion by Hirsch, to approve R-154-2015, second by Lawrence. Parks and Recreation Director 


Lynch explained the overall project for naming a segment of the trail after the former Mayor 


Helen Johnson. Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 10-0.  


 


R-155-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to provide Adams Outdoor 


Advertising the Notice of Termination for Lease associated with the Billboard located at 401 


East Main on City property. 


 


Motion by Majewski, to approve R-155-2015, second by Lawrence. Planning Director Scheel 


noted that the termination won’t occur until 2025. Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 10-0.  


 


R-156-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to enter into an agreement with 


R House 2 to install bat proofing measures to City Hall/Opera House. 


 


Motion by Christianson, to approve R-156-2015, second by Lawrence. Planning Director Scheel 


noted that this contract would address some of the openings that the bats can get through and that 


hopefully this can be addressed this year.  


 


Amendment to the motion by Hirsch, to refer back to the Finance committee to explore all bat 


removal firms to complete the bat mitigation from the Opera House, second by Majewski. 


Amendment to the motion carried unanimously by acclamation 10-0.  


 


R-157-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to Approve Installation of 


Street Light in Franklin Street Parking Lot.  


 


Motion by Majewski, to approve R-157-2015, second by Lawrence. Streets Superintendent 


Manthe stated that to add the LED street light would only cost $60 above the estimated cost. 


Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 10-0.  


 


R-158-2015- Resolution Authorizing the purchase of parcel 281/0511-053-2034-0 located at 


814 West Street from Dane County 


  


Motion by Christianson, to approve R-158-2015, second by Jenson. Christianson noted that this 


is to purchase an eleven foot parcel of land that has a stormwater interceptor in it. Motion carried 







 


 


unanimously by acclamation 10-0.  


 


R-160-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue a “Class A” Liquor 


License (Cider Only) Kwik Trip, INC d/b/a Kwik Trip #738 located at 1231 E Main St  


 


Motion by Engelberger, to approve R-160-2015, second by Truehl. Engelberger explained that 


this is a new license type from the state for businesses that have a Class “A” Fermented Malt 


Beverage license. Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 10-0.  


 


R-161-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue a “Class A” Liquor 


License (Cider Only) Kwik Trip, INC d/b/a Kwik Trip #739 located at 517 W Main St  


 


Motion by Engelberger, to approve R-161-2015, second by Treuhl. No discussion occurred. 


Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 10-0.  


R-159-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue a “Class A” Liquor 


License (Cider Only) Wal-Mart Stores East, LP d/b/a Wal-Mart#1176 located at 1800 


Highway 51. 


 


Motion by Engelberger, to approve R-159-2015, second by Truehl. No discussion occurred. 


Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 10-0.  


 


R-162-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the addition of a 


Utilities Water Operator I to the Utilities Water System Division.  


 


Motion by Boersma, to approve R-162-2015, second by Engelberger. Utilities Director Kardasz 


stated that this position comes as a demand of the WDNR to complete more water testing. 


Council discussion reflected the amount of money this position would cost and inquired as to 


where the funds would be coming from. Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 10-0.  


 


R-163-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the addition of 


Opposite Sex Domestic Partnership for Medical and Dental Benefits.  


 


Motion by Boersma, to approve R-163-2015, second by Lawrence. Human Resources Director 


Gillingham explained that this would allow opposite sex domestic partners of city employees to 


obtain health and dental insurance through the city’s plan. Motion carried unanimously by 


acclamation 9-1, with O’Connor voting noe.  


   


ADJOURNMENT 


 


Motion by Lawrence, to adjourn the meeting of the Common Council, second by Christianson. Motion 


carried unanimously by acclamation 10-0. The meeting of the Common Council adjourned at 9:40 p.m. 


 








Meeting of the:  COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE COUNCIL 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, October 20, 2015 @ 7 p.m. 


Location:  EMS Training Room; 516 S. Fourth Street 


Members:   Sonny Swangstu, Tim Swadley, Michael Engelberger, Ron Christianson, 


   Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski, Sid Boersma, Greg Jenson,   


   Tom Selsor, Pat O’Connor, Regina Hirsch, Scott Truehl 


 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


Council President Lawrence called the meeting of the Committee of the Whole to order at 7:01 p.m. Clerk 


Kropf called the roll and noted that 9 alderpersons were present with Selsor, Swadley, and Swangstu 


being absent and excused. 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


Approval of the October 19, 2015 Committee of the Whole Minutes 


 


Motion by Boersma, to approve the minutes of the October 19, 2015 Committee of the Whole meeting, 


second by Majewski. Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 9-0. 


 


Follow-up Discussion and Action regarding the General Fund Budget 


 


Mayor Olson explained that in her budget presentation last night she had inadvertently omitted the request 


from the streets department for two fulltime employees for the Streets department and one full time 


employee for the Parks department, as requested.  This request cannot be supported by the 2016 budget. 


The cost of this request was not in the original budget numbers and therefore not a part of the “budget 


gap” that the conversation focused on at the previous meeting. Finance Director Sullivan explained that 


the percentage of the budget that was wages and benefits is 56 %, per Alderperson Swadley’s request. She 


also explained that the net new construction for the City was divided equally between residential and 


commercial, both at approximately $5.2 million.  


 


Motion by Jenson, to approve the General Fund Budget and to send to Council for approval, second by 


Truehl. Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 9-0. 


 


 


Special Fund Budgets: 


 


Library Budget 


Library Director MacDonald gave a detailed overview of the 2016 Library budget. He also 


announced that the library will be holding their grand opening on Thursday, November 5, 2015, 


to showcase the new renovations at the library. 


 


Motion by Engelberger, to approve the 2016 Library Budget and to send to Council for approval, 


second by Jenson. Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 9-0.  


 


 


 


 







 


 


Opera House Budget 


Opera House Director Brehm explained the 2016 budget for the Stoughton Opera House. He also 


noted that this year’s projections have been very consistent with years past. 


 


Motion by Engelberger, to approve the 2016 Opera House Budget and to send to Council for 


approval, second by Jenson. Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 9-0. 


 


Storm Water Utility Budget 


Planning Director Scheel along with Streets Superintendent Manthe and Finance Director 


Sullivan gave a detailed summary of the 2016 Storm Water Utility budget. Finance Director 


Sullivan then explained that the new ERU (Equivalent Runoff Unit) fee for 2016 would be 


$4.90, from $4.30 in 2015.  


 


Motion by Engelberger, to approve the 2016 Storm Water Utility Budget and to send to Council 


for approval, second by Majewski. Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 9-0. 


 


Other Special Funds 
EMS Director Schimelpfenig presented the 2016 EMS Budget to the Committee of the Whole. She also 


explained that the new outside services account was created for the payment of legal services. 


 


Motion by Engelberger, to approve the 2016 EMS Budget, second by Scott. Motion carried unanimously 


by acclamation 8-0, with Boersma abstaining.  


 


Finance Director Sullivan gave an overview of the Special Fund balance reports as of October 2015. 


She also explained the proposal to provide economic development services from Gary Becker of 


Veirbicher. This would allow the City of Stoughton to have Gary Becker, the Veirbicher Project Manager, 


to have office hours every week. Committee discussion included to check the City’s policy regarding the 


use of RFP’s to hire a consultant.  


 


ADJOURNMENT 


Motion by Jenson, to adjourn the meeting of the Committee of the Whole Budget Workshop #3, second 


by Majewski. Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 9-0. The meeting of the Committee of the 


Whole Budget Workshop #3 meeting adjourned at 8:34 p.m.  


 


 


 


 








RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to update the City of Stoughton Work Rules to
include the Police Sergeants.


Committee Action: Personnel Committee approved the updated work rules 4-0


File Number: R-58-2015 Date Introduced:
Date Reintroduced:


April 14, 2015
October 27, 2015


WHEREAS the Personnel Committee has received the recommended changes in the City of Stoughton
Work Rules to include the Police Sergeants.


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee met on April 6, 2015, to consider the recommendation for
updating the City of Stoughton Work Rules to include the Police Sergents and recommend approval;
now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton approves the changes to the
City of Work Rules for the Police Sergeants.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date







CITY OF STOUGHTON


WORK RULES


The City of Stoughton Mission Statement:


“The City of Stoughton is dedicated to providing quality services in a
fiscally responsible manner necessary to maintain a comfortable,
safe and healthy community. We will be friendly, open-minded and
professional.”


Mission Statement developed at the City of Stoughton Strategic Planning Session 10-29-
1998. Adopted by the Common Council 11-17-1998.


As approved by the Common Council 02/14/2012 and amended by Council action
11/27/2012 & 08/27/2013, 02/11/2014, 9/2015 Replaces rules adopted 02/10/2009.







1


TABLE OF CONTENTS


I. Introduction 4


II. Employment 4


At-Will Employment 4


Equal Opportunity Employment 4


Americans with Disabilities Policy Statement 4


Trial Period 5


Emergency Response Requirements 5


Promotion 6


Demotion 6


Lateral Transfer 6


Job Posting 6


Termination 7


Wage Appeals Process for Non-Represented Employees 7


III. Hours of Work 8


Rest Periods 9


Overtime, Compensatory Time, and Flex-Time 9


Severe Weather 11


On-Call 11


IV. Leaves of Absence 11


Funeral Leave 11


Jury Duty 12


Subpoena During Working Hours 12


Military Duty 12


Sick Leave 12


Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Retiring Employee 14


Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Surviving Spouse 14


FMLA 14


Other Medical Leave 15


V. Employee Benefits 16







2


Statement of Employee Benefits 16


Vacation 16


Computation of Benefits (Full-time to Part-time) 16


Computation of Benefits (Part-time to Full-time) 17


Holidays 18


Time Off 18


Continuing Education 19


Length-of-Service Payment 19


Health Insurance 20


Dental Insurance 21


Continuation of Health & Dental Ins./COBRA 21


Eyeglasses 21


Retirement 22


Group Life Insurance 22


Income Continuation Insurance 22


Uniforms & Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) 23


VI. Pay Practices 24


Pay Days 23


Time Sheets 23


Electronic Direct Deposit 24


Business Expense Reimbursement 24


Employee Information 25


VII. Employee Conduct & Job Safety 25


Position Descriptions 25


Performance Reviews 25


Job Safety 25


Safety Glasses 26


Safety Belts 26


Worker's Compensation & Injury Reporting 26


Unsafe Activity Reporting 27


Work Station Conduct 27







3


Alcohol & Substance Abuse 28


Tobacco Use 30


Driver's Licenses & Traffic Tickets 30


CDL Requirements 30


Workplace Violence 31


Hearing Conservation Policy 32


Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Control Plan 33


Written Hazard Communication Program 33


Employee Assistance Program 33


Disciplinary Action 33


VIII. Grievance Procedure 36


Definitions 36


Requirements of Written Grievance 36


Steps of the Grievance Procedure 37


IX. Unlawful Harassment Policy 38


Purpose 38


Policy 38


Definitions 39


Prohibited Activity 39


Covered Individuals 40


Complaint Procedure 41


Retaliation 42


X. Code of Ethics 43


Definitions 43


Use of Public Property 44


Obligations to Citizens 44







4


WORK RULES


I. INTRODUCTION


These Work Rules apply to all non-represented employees and, to the extent not
contrary to or inconsistent with the terms of the applicable collective bargaining
agreement(s), to all represented employees as well.


II. EMPLOYMENT


At-Will Employment


Except as provided by an applicable collective bargaining agreement, or by state statute
of specific application (positions covered by State Statute and/or City Ordinance are
City Clerk, Treasurer, Utilities Director, Utilities Operations Superintendent, Chief of
Police, Police Lieutenant, Fire Chief, and Librarian), all employment with the City of
Stoughton (“City”) is intended to be at-will. An at-will employee is defined as: Status of
employment wherein the person appointed may be terminated from City employment at
any time, with or without cause. An employee in an at-will status has no property right
nor a right to continued employment with the City.


These Work Rules are for your information and guidance and do not create a contract of
employment, either expressed or implied, nor a property right in continued employment.


It is the City's intention to attract and retain the most qualified individuals, consistent
with its commitment to equal employment opportunity. Each employee's employment is
subject to the City's operational requirements and its determination as to satisfactory
individual performance.


Equal Employment Opportunity


Consistent with applicable state and federal law, it is the policy of the City to provide
equal employment opportunities for all persons, regardless of race, creed, color, sex,
national origin, religion, age, arrest or conviction record, sexual orientation, disability,
marital status, veteran status or membership in a guard, reserve, or other military unit,
ancestry, use or non use of lawful products off the employer’s premises during non
working hours, pregnancy or childbirth, honesty testing or genetic testing, or other
protected category under applicable state or federal law. This policy applies to all
employment practices, including but not limited to: recruitment, placement, transfer,
promotion, training, compensation, layoff and termination.


Americans with Disabilities Policy Statement


The City of Stoughton is committed to complying with all applicable provisions of the
Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) as well as applicable state disability
discrimination laws. It is the City’s policy not to discriminate against any qualified







5


employee or applicant with regard to any terms or conditions of employment because of
such individual’s disability or perceived disability so long as the employee can perform
the essential functions of the job or is otherwise able to adequately perform the
responsibilities of his/her position. Consistent with this policy of nondiscrimination, the
City will provide reasonable accommodations to a qualified individual with a disability,
as defined by the ADA and applicable state law, who has made the City aware of his or
her disability, provided that such accommodation does not constitute an undue hardship
to the City. Employees with a disability who believe they need a reasonable
accommodation to perform the essential functions of their job should contact the
Personnel Director.


Trial Period


All newly hired employees must serve an initial 12-month trial period (18-months for
police officers). The Department Head, with approval of the Mayor, may elect to extend
the trial period in circumstances where more time is needed to evaluate the employee's
job performance. The Employer may extend the trial period to cover any absence of
thirty (30) calendar days or more. Upon completion of the trial period, the employee will
be considered a regular employee.


An additional trial period will be served when an employee is promoted to a position in a
higher classification. (Please see Promotion Section below.)


Satisfactory completion of the trial period does not alter the employee's status as an at-
will employee.


If an employee’s performance does not meet acceptable standards during the trial
period, he/she will be terminated without further review.


Emergency Response Requirements


Response time is defined as the time it takes an employee to arrive at his/her place of
work. Response time requirements are as follows:


 Police Department Non-Represented Employees (except Chief): reside within
45 miles of the police department.


 Police Chief: Establish residency within twelve (12) months of appointment.


 Streets and Parks Department Employees: 20 mile radius of the City limits of
Stoughton


 Stoughton Municipal Utilities Non-Represented and Represented
Employees (Employees serving on, and being compensated for, standby
service): 15 minutes







6


 Stoughton Fire Department Volunteers: Reside within the fire protection area
served by the City of Stoughton Fire Department; including the City of Stoughton,
the Town of Dunkirk, and parts of the Towns of Dunn, Rutland and Pleasant
Springs.


 Stoughton Area EMS Volunteers: On-Call and response time criteria are
covered by SAEMS Bylaws which say that a person must be within 5 minutes of
the ambulance garage while on call.


Promotion


Promotion is the movement of an employee from one classification to another
classification having a higher wage scale. When an employee is promoted to a position
in a higher classification he/she will serve a twelve-month trial period. Effective upon
appointment to a higher rated position, the employee will be compensated at the pay
rate of his/her new position, depending on the new position’s wage scale, at the next
higher pay rate.


If an employee's performance does not meet acceptable standards during this trial
period, he/she will be removed from the position without right of appeal. The City
Council, or its designated representative, may return the employee, if it deems it
appropriate, to his/her former position, or an alternate available position, if vacant, and
the employee meets the job requirements for that alternate position.


Demotion


A demotion is defined as any movement of an employee from one classification to
another classification having a lower wage scale. When an employee is moved to a
position in a lower classification, his/her pay rate will be reduced to the pay scale for the
lower classification at the same year level of their previous classification.


Lateral Transfer


A lateral transfer is a movement of an employee from one classification to another
classification having the same wage scale, remaining at the same scale and year. If an
employee is doing a lateral transfer from a non-represented position to a represented
position at the same classification, the employee will be placed at the pay rate of that
wage scale. A lateral transfer employee shall serve a 6-month trial period.


Job Posting


Whenever there is a permanent job opening within the City, either as a result of a
termination, promotion or creation of a new position, the City shall post an internal
notice on bulletin boards and other places as the City decides to notify employees
already working for the City of Stoughton. Such notice shall remain posted for five (5)
working days. The notice shall include the minimum qualifications and description of the







7


position as determined by the City. Such determination may not be arbitrary. The City
may decide to delay filling or not to fill a vacancy at all. If no qualified employee applies
for the opening, the City may fill the vacancy using what other means it determines to
use.


Termination


Voluntary termination is defined as an employee who for reasons of his/her own
choosing elects not to continue in the employ of the City. Involuntary termination is
defined as the City, for its own reasons, informing an employee in writing, that his/her
services are no longer required. An employee who terminates should leave a forwarding
address with the City Clerk/Personnel Director so W2’s can be mailed at the end of the
year. Written notice of voluntary termination should be given to the Department Head
with as much notice as practicable (2 weeks suggested/requested).


Terminated employees must return ID cards, keys, and all provided personal protective
equipment, training materials, and other provided materials to the City upon termination.
Failure to do so will cause the employee to be billed for these items and for costs
associated with security and other operational changes. Terminated employees will also
be responsible for paying all bills associated with any City-sponsored plans (i.e. cell
phone plans, fuel plans, etc.).


Employees, when terminated from City employment, will be compensated at their
current pay rate for earned and unused vacation accumulated and any compensation
due to their credit on the next regularly scheduled payday.


Wage Appeals Process for Non-Represented Employees


A non-represented employee, or his/her Department Head, in any classification whose
job duties or responsibilities are significantly changed may appeal his or her current
wage scale by filing an appeal with the Personnel Director. All appeals by non-
represented employees, or their Department Heads, shall be processed pursuant to the
following steps:


1. An appeal, as represented in an updated job description, received by the
Personnel Director within 30 days of a significant change in duties or
responsibilities shall be submitted by the Personnel Director to the Personnel
Committee and/or consultant for a ruling within 30 days of the receipt of the
appeal. The Personnel Director shall make the initial determination regarding
whether the appeal was received within 30 days of a significant change in duties
or responsibilities except in the case of an appeal by the Personnel Director
which shall be governed by Section C below.


2. If the Personnel Director determines that the appeal was not received within 30
days of a significant change in duties or responsibilities, the employee, or his
Department Head, may, within 30 days of such notification, appeal said decision







8


to the Personnel Committee. The Personnel Committee shall rule within 30 days
of receipt of the appeal as to whether the employee’s appeal shall be submitted
to the Personnel Committee and/or consultant, notwithstanding the decision of
the Personnel Director. The Personnel Committee decision may be appealed
through Step D (below).


3. The Personnel Director, or their Department Head, may submit an appeal to the
Personnel Committee and/or consultant regarding his or her own job description
only if the Personnel Committee determines that the appeal was received by the
Chair of the Personnel Committee within 30 days of a significant change in duties
or responsibilities.


4. If the employee, or their Department Head, disagrees with the ruling received by
the Personnel Committee, he or she may within 30 days of such notification
appeal the Personnel Committee’s ruling to the City Council. The City Council
shall rule within 30 days of receipt of appeal. The decision of the City Council is
deemed final.


Any 30-day time limit described above may be extended by mutual written agreement of
the parties.


III. HOURS OF WORK


Full time employees are those whose normally scheduled work week is 40 or more
hours.


Permanent part-time employees are those who work 1,040 or more hours but less than
2,080 annually.


Limited permanent part-time employees are those who work 600 or more hours but less
than 1,040 annually.


Seasonal and temporary employees are those who work less than 600 hours annually.


The workweek is a recurring period of 168 hours in the form of seven 24-hour periods
beginning on Sunday at 12:00 a.m. and ending on Saturday at 11:59 p.m. Work time for
full time employees is 40 or more hours in the workweek. Workday starting times and
ending times are designated by the Department Head. The workday for full time
employees usually consists of 8 hours. Exceptions are created for seasonal and
department variations at the Department Head’s discretion.


All employees will be at the designated workstation at the designated starting time, and
will be able to perform the duties addressed in the appropriate position description. All
employees will remain at the designated workstation until the designated ending time.


An employee scheduled to work 8 hours or more is required to take an unpaid lunch







9


break of not less than one-half hour and not more than one hour, at the discretion of the
Department Head. Lunch breaks may be delayed if necessary, but not to the end of the
workday, or taken on a subsequent workday or accumulated.


All employees scheduled for an 8-hour day or more may take two 15-minute paid
breaks or one 30 minute paid break, at the discretion of the Department Head. The
Department Head retains the right to schedule employee breaks to fulfill the operational
needs of the work unit. Part-time employees working less than 8 hours in a day, shall be
entitled to take a fifteen (15) minute paid break to be scheduled with the approval of the
employee’s supervisor after working four (4) consecutive hours. Breaks may be delayed
if necessary. Breaks are not to be taken at the end of the workday, combined into the
lunch break or taken on a subsequent workday. Breaks may not be accumulated.


All overtime will be performed only with the approval of the Department Head. Overtime
is paid at 1½ times the hourly rate.


The City of Stoughton Police Department scheduling requirements call for some
department employees to work 6 days on and 3 days off or other identified work
rotations. This scheduling requires officers or other employees to work up to 48 hours in
a 7-day period. Because of this scheduling requirement, the City of Stoughton has
declared the following:


 Work periods for law enforcement personnel having the power of arrest within the
Stoughton Police Department consist of 27 consecutive days.


 Breaks are given at the discretion of the department head and work day is
considered 8 hours with no 30 minute break and employee is subject to call
during all breaks.


 Police department employees are entitled to overtime for hours work after the
regular 8 hour work day has completed.


The City of Stoughton Police Sergeants shall be compensated at a rate of time and one-half (1-1/2) based on
their current rate of pay for authorized hours worked in excess of the scheduled workday or on scheduled days
off. The scheduled workday is eight (8) hours and the scheduled workweek is 37.46 hours. The work schedule
shall consist of six (6) days of work followed by three (3) days of rest. When the need arises to change an
employee’s regular days off, the ratio of 2 days worked to 1 day off shall be maintained. Overtime shall be
payable for the pay period in which it is earned, except that compensatory time may be accumulated and taken
at a later date by the employee upon mutual agreement between the employee and the Chief of Police. There
shall be a maximum accumulation of compensatory time of 80 hours (eighty hours)and if not taken by the last
pay period of the year, they shall be paid for at the employee's regular hourly rate. Sufficient notice shall be
given by the employee when requesting compensatory time off


Rest Periods


If an employee works for 4 or more consecutive overtime hours, or a total of 4 or more
overtime hours after midnight and is released from work, 6 hours shall elapse, provided
that the employee is not required for emergency work, before he/she returns to work
without loss of pay for scheduled time.







10


Earned rest period is that period when an employee rests during his/her scheduled
working hours. An employee required to work into this earned rest period
shall be paid at 1½ times his/her regular rate until released from work. When an
employee is called back to work during that rest period, he/she shall be paid for such
regularly scheduled time rest period hours at 1½ times his/her regular rate.


Overtime, Compensatory Time, and Flex Time


Eligible non-supervisory employees and non-department head supervisors will be
compensated at a rate of 1½ times their current hourly rate for authorized hours worked
in excess of the scheduled work week in excess of 40 hours, either in money or time off,
as approved by the Department Head.


The Children’s Librarian, Public Services Librarian, Police Lieutenant, Police
Administrative Assistant, and Deputy Chief/Fire Marshall receive compensatory time at
the rate of one hour of compensatory time for each hour actually worked beyond 40
hours in the work week.


Department Heads are expected to work in excess of 40 hours per week due to the
nature of their position and official duties. They may take time off or observe more
flexible working hours at their discretion. Flexible time off is not intended to replace
vacation leave or sick leave.


When compensatory time credits have been earned by an employee, such credits shall
be scheduled and used before December 31 of the year in which it is earned.
Compensatory time credits are scheduled by the employee and the supervisor with
approval of the Department Head. A maximum of 60 hours of compensatory time credits
may be earned in any calendar year, except for the Children’s Librarian, Public Services
Librarian, Police Lieutenant, Police Administrative Assistant, and Deputy Chief/Fire
Marshall, who may earn in excess of 60 hours with the prior approval of the Department
Head and Mayor.


Department Heads, as listed below, may schedule use of their own flexible time off:


City Clerk/Personnel Director Director of Planning & Development


Finance Director Street Superintendent


Utilities Director Senior Center Director


Parks & Recreation Director Chief of Police


Library Director EMS Director


Opera House Managing Director Fire Chief


Manager of Media Services


Compensatory time is not intended to be accumulated to supplement vacation time.







11


When possible, compensatory time will be taken on the same day it is earned or during
the same workweek, as flex time on an hour for hour basis. Example: If an employee is
required to attend an evening committee meeting for two hours, that employee may
leave two hours early that day or come in two hours late the next day, as long as the
time is used within the same week it is earned.







12


Severe Weather


When non-exempt employees are sent home because of severe weather, they are paid
for the lost time at their regular rate of pay. Employees required to remain on duty shall
receive in addition to regular compensation for actual hours worked, an amount of pay
or com time equivalent to the lost time paid to other such employees sent home.*amended
9-3-13*


On-Call (formerly Standby):


On-Call is defined as that period Friday through Thursday, including any hours after
normal workday hours plus Saturday, all day Sunday, and any City recognized holidays
that occur during the week. In case of an emergency, an employee on on-call status is
required to be in close proximity of their pager or paging system throughout the
workweek including the scheduled workday, and will remain within the appropriate
range of the pager system and must respond without delay. The pager and/or paging
equipment shall be returned to the supervisor on Friday and shall be reassigned by the
supervisor to the employee to serve on on-call by the end of the normal workday on
Friday. In the event that Friday or Thursday and Friday are the official holidays, the
pager shall be returned to the supervisor on the workday preceding the holiday and
shall be assigned at the supervisor’s discretion. The number of people to be on on-call
will be determined by the Department Head.


On-Call: Compensatory time credits may be earned at the request of the employee and
at the approval of the Department Head or designee as follows:


 12 hours for on-call status during the work week;
 8 hours for on-call status on the days the named holidays are observed by


the City
Paid out on-call time will be in the amount of hours equal to the time credits earned as
described above.


Call Back Pay: Overtime will be paid for actual hours worked, rounded off to the
nearest quarter hour, with a 1-hour minimum for non-exempt employees.


When on-call or overtime credits are earned, cash payments or compensatory time may
be granted at the request of the employee and at the approval of the Department Head.
Compensatory time shall be scheduled and used prior to December 31 of the year in
which it is earned. *amended 9-3-13*


IV. LEAVES OF ABSENCE


Funeral Leave


Each full-time or permanent part-time employee shall be entitled to up to three (3) days
off with regular pay when there is a death in his/her family. This time shall not be
charged to sick, comp or vacation balances. For purposes of this provision, immediate
family means the employee’s: spouse, children, mother, father, grandfather,







13


grandmother, stepparent, aunts, uncles, foster parents, stepchildren, grandchildren,
foster children, brothers and their spouses and children, and sisters and their spouses
and children. Immediate family shall also include the following relatives of the
employee’s spouse: mother, father, child, grandmother, grandfather, brothers and
sisters. Additional time that may be necessary in certain instances may be taken by the
employee and those days charged to his/her sick leave, comp or vacation time if the
employee so desires.


Funeral or pall bearer (other than immediate family) – maximum of four (4) hours to
attend. This leave must be approved by the Department Head or Mayor for the
Department Heads and either charged against accrued sick, comp or vacation leave or
taken as leave without pay at the option of the employee.


Jury Duty


Any employee called to jury duty will be paid their current hourly rate, but all jury
compensation is to be paid to the City. Travel and meal allowances and parking will be
retained by the employee. Employees must notify their Department Head as soon as
they are notified of duty, and at least one week prior to jury duty.


Subpoena During Working Hours


If any employee is subpoenaed for any case other than to appear on the behalf of the
City, the employee must use vacation time, compensatory time or, with the approval of
their Department Head, leave without pay. Employee must notify their Department Head
as soon as they are subpoenaed and when they are scheduled to be absent from work.


Military Duty


Full time and Permanent Part-time employees shall be granted a leave of absence for
military service in accordance with applicable state and federal laws.


Employees on military leave shall be paid their regular City pay for up to twenty (20)
working days in any twelve (12) month period. The employee shall remit to the City the
employee’s military pay, but not to exceed the employee’s regular wages, for the period
of paid leave. Thereafter, the leave shall be unpaid, except to the extent the employee
elects to use accrued vacation. An employee must return to work before qualifying for a
new period of paid military leave.


Sick Leave


Sick leave cannot be used until earned. Sick leave may be taken by eligible employees
for personal illness, for medical appointments, for illness in immediate family or to care
for a person living in the employee's household, or for reasons which qualify under the
Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA). Immediate family, for purposes of sick leave,
includes parent, child, spouse or any person in the immediate household whose







14


physical well being is the responsibility of the employee. Refer to FMLA for additional
circumstances.


In order to be granted sick leave with pay, the employee must adhere to the following:


 Report reason for absence from work promptly.
 Keep employer informed on one’s condition.
 Permit the City to make such medical inquiry as it may determine necessary.
 Submit medical certificate for any absence of more than three (3) working days


certifying as to inability to work.


An employee who is taking sick leave must notify their immediate supervisor as soon as
possible. Failure to do so is grounds for disciplinary action and/or dismissal from
employment. Sick leave must not be abused.


Sick leave is earned at the rate of one day per month worked. All full-time and
permanent part-time employees will earn and will be granted sick leave with pay at the
rate of twelve days per year. Permanent part-time employees will earn hours as
prorated to their normally scheduled hours. All sick leave shall be on an hours earned
basis. There is no cap on sick leave accumulation.


When an insufficient sick leave balance remains to cover the absence of an employee,
the remainder shall be charged either to accumulated vacation or leave without pay, at
the employee’s option and Department Head’s concurrence, except as may be
otherwise permitted by applicable state or federal FMLA laws.


When an employee is on paid sick leave, the accrual of sick leave and vacation leave
benefits will continue during the period of convalescence. Employees shall be allowed
to use sick leave if they become ill while on vacation. (A doctor’s certificate or other
evidence to support his sickness may be required.)


A physician’s statement or other evidence to support any sick leave may be required by
the Department Head. A physician’s statement should include:


 the nature of the medical condition necessitating the sick leave request;
 an indication that the employee was unable to perform any work at the work


station;
 a description of any limitations to the employee’s ability to work due to illness


and/or medication, and the anticipated duration of such limitation.


As a matter of concern for others, the City does not want employees to come to work if
they do not feel able to perform adequately or might spread their illness to fellow
employees. Sick leave accumulated each year should not be used for any purpose
other than bona fide employee illness or illness in the immediate family. Willful misuse
of sick leave or the willful making of false reports regarding illness will subject the
employee to disciplinary action and will be considered grounds for suspension,







15


demotion, or discharge.


Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Retiring Employees:


All full-time employees who actually retire from City service and apply (with 60 days of
last day paid) for retirement annuity from the Wisconsin Retirement System, which
annuity must exceed $10.00 per month, shall have their sick leave credits, up to 130
days (at the time of their retirement) converted to a monetary value (hours of credit
times normal hourly rate of pay received immediately prior to retirement).


Forty-five (45) days of accrued sick leave will be paid out as a lump sum payment upon
death or retirement as defined above. Such forty-five (45) days shall be applied against
the 130 day cap. The remaining balance of up to 85 accrued sick days will be
transferred to a Retiree Health Savings Plan.


There is no other payment of accrued but unused sick leave.
*amended 9-3-13*


Accrued Sick Leave Credit for Surviving Spouse


In the event that an employee dies during the course of his employment and is survived
by a spouse, their accrued sick leave credits, up to 130 days, at the time of death, shall
be converted to a monetary value (hours of credit times normal hourly rate of pay
received immediately prior to death) which shall be available toward the payment of
health insurance premiums for the surviving spouse. In the event that the retired
employee shall precede his spouse in death and there remains at that time to his credit
a balance, such balance shall be used to purchase health insurance for the surviving
spouse so long as the spouse is alive and there remains a balance in the fund, or,
should the spouse not elect to continue his/her coverage, paid monthly to the spouse in
an amount equal to the applicable monthly health insurance premium.


Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) Leave


The City complies with both the Wisconsin and Federal Family and Medical Leave Acts
(FMLA). (Complete copies are available for review in the Clerk’s Office.)


The state and federal FMLA laws permit eligible employees to take unpaid leave in the
following circumstances:


 For the employee's own serious health condition.
 For a serious health condition involving the employee's parent, child or spouse.
 For the birth or adoption of a child. Foster placement is also covered under the


federal law.


The state law covers employees who have worked for at least 1 year and been paid for
at least 1000 hours in the preceding 12 months. The federal law also has a 1-year
qualification period, but uses 1250 hours actually worked as the minimum requirement.







16


The state benefit is:


 2 weeks per calendar year for the employee's own serious health condition.
 2 weeks per calendar year for a serious health condition involving the employee's


parent, child or spouse.
 6 weeks in cases of birth or adoption.


The federal law allows a total of 12 weeks per 12 month period. In determining the
federal FMLA benefit, the City calculates the 12 months from the date the leave was
first taken.


Leave taken under the terms of FMLA is unpaid, although an employee may generally
substitute accrued time off (i.e. sick leave, vacation) for qualifying absences. All leaves
must be preapproved by the Department Head. During an approved FMLA, the City will
continue to make its contribution toward the employee’s health insurance. The
employee shall make timely contributions towards excess life insurance, income
continuation insurance and union dues.


If an employee requires a leave of absence, he/she shall notify the Department Head as
soon as the need for the leave is known. At that time the employee will be given
additional information regarding his/her obligations during the leave, including medical
certification and fitness to return to work requirements.


Other Medical Leave


An employee requiring leave beyond that available as FMLA leave due to his or her own
medical condition may request a medical leave of absence. All such requests are
subject to the approval of the department head and the Personnel Committee. Such
leaves shall generally not exceed ninety (90) calendar days.


All leave of absence requests shall be made to the supervisor or the department head
as far in advance as possible. Leave of absence requests must be approved by the
department head and the Personnel Committee. During the first thirty (30) calendar
days of an approved leave of absence, the City will continue to pay the health and life
insurance premiums. Thereafter, except as otherwise provided by state or federal FMLA
laws, health and life insurance may be continued during a leave of absence provided
that the City is reimbursed for the insurance premium. Vacation leave, holiday leave,
sick leave and longevity bonus, an any other benefit shall not be earned during a leave
of absence, except as provided by applicable state or federal law.







17


V. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS


Statement of Employee Benefits


The City intends that these Work Rules, together with other written materials that have
been prepared in connection with the various employee benefits discussed below or
elsewhere in this manual, constitute the means of notification to employees of the terms
of such benefits. To the extent that the explanation contained in these Work Rules
differs from the terms on any insurance contract or other document prepared in
connection with a particular plan or benefits, such insurance contract or other document
will govern. If you need copies of any of these documents, or have any questions
concerning their terms, please contact the Personnel Director.


The City reserves the right to modify, amend or terminate the benefits described in
these Work Rules at any time, provided that with respect to group health and life
insurance (and any other benefits, to the extent required by state or federal law) any
modification, amendment or termination that reduces or eliminates a benefit will only
apply to claims for such a benefit which arise after the date of such modification,
amendment, or termination.


Vacation


All full-time and permanent part-time employees shall be granted vacation with pay as
follows, credited to the employee on the first of January each year:


 1 week - after 1 full year of service, but less than 2 years of service
 2 weeks - after 2 full years of service, but less than 6 full years of service
 3 weeks - after 6 full years of service
 4 weeks - after 10 full years of service; and one additional day of vacation for


each additional year of service thereafter until reaching a maximum of 5 weeks.


For purposes of this section, a vacation week will consist of the employee’s normally
scheduled hours. Example: If an employee’s normal work week consists of 20 hours,
one week of vacation will consist of 20 hours; or if the employee’s normal work week
consists of 25 hours, one week of vacation will consist of 25 hours.


Computation of benefits when a full time employee goes to part time is as
follows:


No loss of longevity. (i.e. If the employee was entitled to five weeks vacation at
full time hours – 40 hours per week; the employee would be entitled to five weeks
vacation at part time hours, i.e. 20 hour week or 25 hour week, based on
normally scheduled work hours.)







18


Computation of benefits when a part time employee goes to full time is as
follows:


No loss of longevity, but equivalency would be calculated. Vacation would be
computed at full time hours. (i.e. If the employee has worked 10 years at 20
hours per week, this would equal 5 years of full time.


Vacation leave is not cumulative and employees must take their vacation by the end of
the year credited, except that the Department Head and Mayor may allow earned
vacation time to accumulate if an employee obtains prior consent and it is determined to
be in the best interest of the City.


A tentative vacation leave schedule for all employees must be submitted to the
Department Head by February 15th.


All vacation requests must be approved by the Department Head or their designee in
advance.


Eligible employees who terminate employment for any reason will receive a pro-rated
vacation benefit. The following procedure should be used when determining pro-rated
vacations:


 Employees that were hired before 1973 had vacations pro-rated when they
started. On January 1 following their hire date, they received a pro-rated number
of hours of the basic 40 allowed.


Example: Employee started July 1. On January 1 we would divide the day of the
year, 182, by 365 days, times 40 hours. That would equal 20 hours earned in
year hired, credited and used after January 1 the following year.


For each additional week eligible for, the same procedure would be followed.


When you quit or retire, your vacation earned and credited on January 1 is 100%
payable. If employee works past the first of the year, the pro-rated amount
earned would also be payable. The procedure for pro-rating is the number of
days worked past January 1, divided by 365, multiply by the number of hours of
vacation allowed per year.


 Employees hired after January 1,1973, receive 40 hours vacation on the first of
January following date hired.


Example: New employee started July 1, 1982, 40 hours vacation would be
available to him on January 1, 1983. If employee quits or retires, pro-ration would
be done from anniversary date to date of termination.







19


Employee worked 60 days past anniversary date. 60 days divided by 365 days
times 40 hours equals 6.4 hours payable to employee.


If employee terminates 60 days prior to anniversary date, the same amount
would be deducted from final check if vacation had already been used.


Holidays


All full-time employees will be granted the following holidays off with pay:


New Year’s Day Labor Day Day after Thanksgiving Day
Memorial Day Thanksgiving Day Christmas Day
Independence Day Martin Luther King Jr. Day


All permanent part-time employees will be granted the same holidays as above with pay
as follows:


Full day holiday – 100% of their normally scheduled hours


If any of the holidays fall on Sunday, then Monday will be observed as the holiday. If
any of the holidays fall on Saturday, then Friday will be observed as the holiday.


To receive holiday pay, an employee must have worked or be on an authorized leave
with pay, both the day preceding and following the holiday.


If one of the holidays falls during an employee’s vacation, the employee will be granted
an additional day of leave to use as vacation.


Employees working on named holidays will also receive compensation time off equal to
the amount of time worked.


Time Off


All full-time employees will be granted the following time off with pay:


Christmas Eve Afternoon 4 hours
New Year’s Eve Afternoon 4 hours
Employee’s Birthday 8 hours
2 Floating Days Off 8 hours each


All permanent part-time employees shall be granted the following time off with pay as
follows:


Christmas Eve Afternoon 50% of normally scheduled hours
New Year’s Eve Afternoon 50% of normally scheduled hours







20


Employee’s Birthday 100% of normally scheduled hours
2 Floating Days Off 100% of normally scheduled hours each day


All time off is subject to employee attendance on the work days preceding and following
the time off, unless on authorized leave including sick leave, vacation, or comp time,
and subject to attendance on the balance of the day in question.


If Christmas Eve or New Year’s Eve fall on Saturday or Sunday, then the prior Friday
will be the afternoon off. If Christmas Eve or New Year’s Eve falls on a Friday, then the
prior Thursday will be the afternoon off. Floating Days Off must be approved in
advance.


Police Dispatcher & Police Sergeant Holidays


All full-time Police Dispatchers shall be granted the following holidays off with pay:


New Year's Day Thanksgiving Day
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day Christmas Eve
Memorial Day Christmas Day
Independence Day 2 Floating Holiday’s
Labor Day


If a holiday falls on the employee's scheduled day off, the employee shall be paid those holiday
hours at their hourly rate in the pay period in which the holiday falls.


If a holiday falls on the employee's day of work or paid leave, the employee will receive pay for
those holiday hours at their hourly rate or have the option of taking another day off of which the day off
shall be with the Chief’s approval.


If an employee works on a holiday he/she shall be paid an additional one-half (1/2) times their
hourly rate for those hours worked. Holiday pay shall be in addition to compensation normally paid the
employee for such hours.


The floating holiday shall be selected by the employee upon sufficient notice to the Chief of Police
to allow the Chief of Police to arrange a substitute and provided that on the day requested, the Chief is
able to obtain a substitute.


To receive holiday pay, an employee must have worked or been on an authorized leave, the days
preceding and following the holiday.


Continuing Education


All continuing education requests for attendance at seminars, workshops, and short
courses must be coordinated with and approved by the Department Head as far in
advance as possible. To qualify for reimbursement or payment, the employee must
successfully complete the course or seminar with a grade of “C” or better; or where
applicable, obtain a completion certificate.







21


All employees will be granted time without loss of pay, for the purpose of taking
examinations required for their appropriate State Certification, if the possession of such
license or certification becomes a condition of employment. The employee shall provide
the results of the examination to the Department Head upon receipt. An employee may
be compensated for more than two testing attempts with prior approval of the
Department Head.


All employees will be reimbursed for the examination and licensing fee where the
possession of such license is a condition of employment.


Continuing education must be strongly related to the employee’s current position
requirements.


Length-of-Service Payment


A length-of-service payment will be provided to all eligible employees. To be eligible, the
employee must have completed three full years of continuous City employment prior to
December 1 of the calendar year in which the payment is made. Continuous
employment will include full time or permanent part-time status, sick leave status,
approved military service, and periods of Worker’s Compensation status while a City
employee.


The amount of the length-of-service payment will be based upon date of hire.


The first length-of-service payment for full time employees is $150.00. Longevity for
permanent part-time employees (20 hours per week or more) will be prorated based on
the employee’s normally scheduled work week. Example: If an employee works 20
hours per week, their first length of service payment will be $75.00.


Subsequent length-of-service payments are increased by $50.00 for full-time employees
and a prorated amount for permanent part-time employees for each additional year of
continuous employment.


Except as otherwise provided by applicable state or federal law, a non-medical leave of
absence beyond 30 calendar days is considered a break in continuous employment.


Eligible employees who retire, die, or voluntarily terminate employment will receive a
pro-rated length-of-service payment. Pro-ration is determined by dividing the length-of-
service payment for the current year by 12 months and multiplying by the number of
months the employee has worked for that year.


Example: If full-time employee is terminating employment after completing 10
years and 2 months, his/her pro-rated length-of-service is determined as follows:


11 years times $50 = $550.00







22


$550 x 2/12 = $91.66


Payment of length-of-service will be made the payday closest to December 1.


Health Insurance


The City is self-insuring for health coverage. Hospital, surgical, and medical expenses
including prescription drugs are covered according to our insurance Plan Document.
Insurance is effective on the day after hire. Insurance benefits are for full-time
employees. The City is self-insuring for health coverage. Hospital, surgical, and medical
expenses are covered including prescription drugs according to our insurance Plan
Document. Insurance is effective on the day after hire. Insurance benefits are for full-
time employees. Full-time employees will pay a $30.00 premium payment per month for
family coverage and a $15.00 premium payment per month for single coverage.
Permanent part-time employees choosing to participate in the City’s Health Insurance
will pay their share of the health insurance premium according to the hours they are
normally scheduled to work per week (example: an employee scheduled to work 20
hours per week will pay ½ of the imputed premium; an employee scheduled to work 30
hours per week will pay ¼ of the imputed premium).


For full information about premiums, deductibles, limits, and co-pays, please refer to the
Plan Documents given at the time of employment and periodically updated. If you need
a copy, please contact the City Clerk/Personnel Director.


Employee out-of-pocket expenses may be run through a flexible spending plan. Please
see the City Clerk/Personnel Director for information about this plan.


The City will designate a medical facility for all pre-employment physicals and any
employment related physicals as required by the City. A form will be provided to be filled
out by the medical facility.


Dental Insurance


The City is self-insuring for dental coverage. Insurance benefits are for full-time
employees. Permanent part-time employees choosing to participate in the City’s Dental
Insurance Plan will pay their share of the dental insurance premium according to the
hours they are normally scheduled to work per week (example: an employee scheduled
to work 20 hours per week will pay one-half of the imputed premium; an employee
scheduled to work 30 hours per week will pay ¼ of the imputed premium). Any dental
treatment costing in excess of $200.00 should have prior authorization before
proceeding. Please refer to the plan documents given at time of employment and
periodically updated. If you need a copy, please contact the City Clerk/Personnel
Director.


Continuation of Health & Dental/COBRA







23


Upon termination from the City for any reason other than gross misconduct, an
employee may elect to continue group medical coverage at group rates to the extent
and number of months allowed by applicable state and federal continuation laws
(COBRA). An employee who elects continuation coverage shall be responsible for the
entire required monthly premiums. It is also possible to convert other group plans to
individual plans. The Personnel Director will discuss the conversion of any benefits with
employees at termination. Employees may also request information on this subject at
any time prior to actual termination. Please contact the Personnel Director regarding
COBRA/Retiree rates.


Eyeglasses (This benefit has been suspended)


For full-time employees, the City will pay up to $200.00, in a 2 year period, per
individual living in the employee’s household as a dependent, toward one pair of
prescription glasses or contact lenses (new or changed). Proof of prescription is
required. In lieu of prescription glasses, the employee (and dependents living at home)
may submit a claim, up to a total amount of Two Hundred Dollars ($200.00), for contact
lenses once every two (2) years, which claim may include multiple purchases.
Sunglasses are not included.


For Permanent part-time employees, the City will pay up to a prorated amount, based
on the employee’s normally scheduled hours of work, of $200, in a 2-year period,
toward one pair of prescription lenses or contact lenses (new or changed – proof of
prescription is required) per individual living in the employee’s household as a
dependent. This benefit does not include sunglasses. Example: an employee scheduled
to normally work 20 hours per week will receive up to ½ the cost of the prescription
lenses or contact lenses, limited to $100.


Retirement


The City is covered under the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS). The City
contributes a percentage of the full-time, permanent part-time and limited part-time
employee's and employer's WRS contribution. WRS rates are set annually by the State
of Wisconsin.


For purposes of calculating sick leave payout or use at retirement, the earliest
retirement age for general category employees is fifty-five (55) and protective category
employees is fifty (50).The prospective retiree should also give at least 90 days notice
to WRS to assure that the benefits will begin on a timely basis. For more information on
this program, please consult the ETF “Your Benefit Handbook," given to you at the time
of hire or available from the City Clerk/Personnel Director.


Group Life Insurance


The City pays 100% of the premium cost of basic life insurance for full-time employees,
permanent part-time and limited part-time employees.







24


The amount of basic life insurance is determined by the annual salary of each employee
from the previous year as reported to the Wisconsin Retirement System. Each
employee will receive $1,000.00 insurance for each portion of $1,000.00 in earnings the
previous year. An employee must be employed for six months before becoming eligible
for the basic life insurance program. The basic life insurance must be paid for until the
employee reaches age 65, after which the insurance is paid up, but reduced in value by
25% a year for the next three years. Thus, an employee has paid up insurance at 25%
of wages upon retirement at age 67. For more information on this program, please
consult the ETF “Your Benefit Handbook”, given to you at the time of hire or available
from the City Clerk/Personnel Director.


Income Continuation Insurance


The City provides the Wisconsin Public Employer's Group Income Continuation
Insurance Program to all full-time, permanent part-time and limited part-time employees.
This program provides income continuation during periods of serious illness resulting in
total disability. An employee is “totally disabled” if they are unable to perform their job
due to major illness or accidental bodily injury. The City's share of the premium shall be
based on the 90-day waiting period. Any employee requesting the 30-day or 60-day
waiting period will pay the difference between the 90-day waiting period and the 30 or
60-day waiting period, whichever they choose. For more information on this program,
please consult the ETF “Your Benefit Handbook”, given to you at the time of hire or
available from the City Clerk/Personnel Director.







25


Uniforms and Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)


Coveralls (one per employee) and safety clothing are paid for by the City for employees
when deemed necessary by the Department Head. Use of coveralls for day-to-day use
is discouraged. The City recommends coveralls be used for especially dirty jobs. These
items are City property. Cleaning is the responsibility of the employee. Cleaning is to be
done at least weekly unless unworn.


The City will provide one or two piece insulated winter coveralls for each employee
regularly assigned to work outdoors in inclement weather. Replacement of such item as
a result of normal wear and tear shall be with the prior approval of the Department
Head.


The City shall provide uniforms at the discretion of the department head to all
employees required to wear them. If the City rents uniforms, the uniforms shall be
cleaned through a rental service at no cost to the employee.


Employees will be reimbursed for the purchase of safety shoes in the following amounts
for those departments where it is deemed necessary by the Department Head:


Full time employees will be reimbursed for the purchase of safety shoes in the amount
of $150.00 per year when required by the City.


Permanent part-time employees will be reimbursed for the purchase of safety shoes in
the amount of $150.00 every two years when required by the City.


Limited permanent part-time employees will be reimbursed for the purchase of safety
shoes in the amount of $75.00 every two years when required by the City.


Seasonal and temporary employees, if required, must furnish their own safety shoes.


All employees required to work in inclement weather will be provided by the City with a
pair of rubber rain boots which shall be replaced at the discretion of the Department
Head.


Except to the extent already expressly provided in this article, the Employer will provide
all required protective equipment and/or clothing.


All sworn Police Department Sergeants shall have the same uniform allowance as


agreed to in the current Union Labor Contract.


The Employer agrees to provide a uniform allowance of Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00)


per year for uniformed unit employees. Purchase shall be of items approved by the







26


Chief of Police (see Appendix B), and must be approved by the Chief prior to purchase.


Reimbursement shall be by voucher to the Chief of Police. New employees will be


provided an initial uniform issue as set forth in Appendix “B”, for the first year of


employment. If a Sergeant shall terminate employment with the City within his/her first


year of service, all uniform items provided by the City shall be immediately returned to


the Police Department. Clothing or accessories damaged in the line of duty will be


replaced, with the approval of the Police Chief, by the City, provided a claim is


submitted within seven (7) calendar days of the date the damage is or should have


been first apparent to the Sergeant.


All police department sworn Sergeants shall be provided with ballistic vests.


Vests shall be replaced according to the manufacturer's specifications. If a ballistic vest


is purchased for the employee, the employee shall wear it while on duty and in uniform,


unless otherwise excused by the Chief of Police or his/her designee.


If damaged in the line of duty, the Employer shall replace watches and


eyeglasses or contact lenses in an actual cost not to exceed Fifty Dollars ($50.00), Two


Hundred Dollars ($200.00) and One Hundred Dollars ($100.00), respectively for all


sworn police department Sergeants.


Such firearms and ammunition as are prescribed by the Chief of Police shall be


paid for by the Employer. Only prescribed equipment will be carried, except other


equipment approved by the Chief of Police, but not required by the Chief of Police, may


be carried at the Sergeants expense. All firearms and ammunition paid for by the


Employer per this section shall be replaced or repaired by the Employer when


necessary due to normal wear and tear through the course of employment.


VI. PAY PRACTICES


Pay Days


The regular City payday is bi-weekly on Friday. Should this day occur on a holiday, the
payday will be on the day prior to the holiday.


In addition to their regular rate of pay, Sergeants who work between the hours of 2:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m.
shall receive a shift differential of fifty cents ($0.50) for each hour worked during that period. This shift
premium shall apply only to tours of duty worked between the specified hours; it will not be paid for
special assignments, court appearances, etc.







27


Time Sheets


All employees are required to complete and sign timesheets using the forms provided
by the City. The timesheet must be filled out with all hours worked (including times in
and out) and turned into the employee’s supervisor so that they may be turned into
Payroll every other Monday by 8 a.m. Vacation days, sick days, holidays, and absences
such as jury duty, funeral leave or military service must be specifically noted on the time
sheet for days on which they occur. All time sheets must be approved and signed by
supervisors prior to being sent to Payroll.


Electronic Direct Deposit


The City provides direct deposit of paychecks. This is a service which saves time and
provides added security. Each paycheck will be automatically deposited to the
employee’s checking or savings account (or divided between two accounts) as the
employee directs. Each pay day, employees will receive a pay voucher for their records.
It is much like a voided check with all the same information which would appear on a
regular check. All employees are required to complete a direct deposit authorization
form at the start of employment.


Business Expense Reimbursement


All expenses over $100.00, or meetings lasting more than one day, must have received
prior authorization from the Department Head in order to be considered for
reimbursement.


Requests for out of state conferences must be submitted to the Department Head and
Mayor for prior approval. If the funds are already budgeted, no additional approval is
necessary. If not budgeted for, the request must also be submitted to the appropriate
committee and City Council for action.


All claims must represent reasonable and necessary expenses actually incurred.


Employees will be reimbursed for amounts expended for their own meals (excluding
alcoholic beverages) and mileage at State-approved rates (rates will be updated
biennially). Lodging claims incurred in the performance of official duties will be
considered for reimbursement with the approval of the Department Head or if for a
Department Head, the Mayor.


Employees shall be reimbursed when authorized and required to use their personal
automobile in the performance of their official duties. Employees must use a City vehicle
when available.


A purchase order or appropriate form and Application for Training/Conference form
(available from the City Clerk/Personnel Director) must be prepared by the employee
and approved by the Department Head prior to submittal for reimbursement.







28


Reimbursement requests must be submitted within 7 days of incurring expense.
Expense claims not received within 7 days will be reimbursed at the City’s discretion.


Receipts for meals, including tips, lodging and transportation must be attached to the
Travel/Training Reimbursement Form (available from the Clerk’s Office).


Employee Information


It is important that the personnel records of the City be accurate at all times. In order to
avoid issues or compromising benefit eligibility or having W2’s returned, the City
expects that employees will promptly notify the City Clerk/Personnel Director of any
change in name, home address, telephone number, marital status, number of
dependents, or any other pertinent information which may change.


VII. EMPLOYEE CONDUCT AND JOB SAFETY


Position Descriptions


Within one week of employment, job change, or promotion, each full time and
permanent part time employee will be given a copy of their position description detailing
the requirements and expectations of the position for which the employee was hired or
reassigned. The employee will sign a statement indicating agreement with and
understanding of the position description. This position description may be reviewed
and updated periodically as needed. When changes are made, the employee will be
given an updated copy and will sign a statement indicating agreement with and
understanding of the position description.


Performance Reviews


Performance reviews are normally conducted annually with the exception of a review at
the end of an employee’s trial period. All performance reviews are based on merit,
achievement, job description fulfillment and performance in the position. Reporting
supervisors will review and discuss the review with each employee.


Job Safety


The City recognizes that safe working conditions are of prime importance and will
continue to take every reasonable precaution to protect the safety and health of the
employees at their work. Employees shall keep their work place neat, clean and orderly.
Safety equipment provided by the City must be used whenever appropriate. No
employee-owned personal safety equipment should be used without prior approval of
the Supervisor and/or Department Head. Employees shall use all safety
equipment/devices applicable to the duties they are performing. It is the employee’s
responsibility to learn the locations of all safety and emergency equipment. All required
safety equipment will be provided by the City and employees will be responsible for the
reasonable upkeep of this equipment. Any problems with or defects in equipment







29


should be reported immediately to the employee’s supervisor.


In the interest of safety, all employees, excluding the office staff, must wear long pants
and a shirt throughout the workday at the discretion of the Department Head. Safety
shoes must be worn at the direction of the Department Head. Department Heads have
the authority to make seasonal adjustments in clothing requirements.


Safety Glasses


The City reserves the right to require the use of eye protection for employees. In such
cases, the City will provide the appropriate type of safety glasses for the duties
performed. The employee is responsible for the cost of any non-essential feature. When
safety glasses are required and safety glasses other than the safety glasses provided
by the City are used, the employee must provide and pay for their own.


Safety Belts


It is the interest of the City of Stoughton to reduce injury through the use of safety belts.
All employees operating or riding in a motor vehicle while engaged in City business are
mandated to use safety belts, if so equipped. It is the responsibility of the person
operating the vehicle to ensure that all passengers and themselves are wearing safety
belts.


Worker’s Compensation and Injury Reporting


The City of Stoughton will follow all laws and regulations regarding worker’s
compensation insurance and benefits. All injuries shall be reported to the employee’s
immediate supervisor and the City Clerk/Personnel Director as soon as practical on the
prescribed form. Additional information on Worker’s Compensation Coverage is
available through the City Clerk/Personnel Director.


All on-the-job injuries must be reported to the supervisor by the employee and to the
City Clerk/Personnel Director by the Department Head immediately after occurrence. It
is essential that the following information be reported:


 Time of the injury.
 Description of the job being performed at the time of the injury.
 The extent of the injury.
 Description of the aid administered.
 Witnesses to the injury.


A written report must be filed within 24 hours of occurrence. The reporting form is
available from the City Clerk/Personnel Director. Adherence to these procedures will
assure that the appropriate benefits will not be jeopardized.







30


Unsafe Activity Reporting


Unsafe activity or inappropriate use of City property in the work place will not be
tolerated and must be reported to the Department Head for action. Each employee has
a duty to comply with the safety rules of the City, to assist in maintaining a hazard-free
environment, to report any accidents or injuries including any breaches of safety, and to
report any unsafe equipment, working condition, process or procedure at once to a
supervisor. No employee will be punished or reprimanded for reporting safety violations
or hazards.


Work Station Conduct


Employees shall immediately contact their supervisor in the event of a vehicular or
property damage accident or occurrence. The supervisor shall insure that the Police
Department and the City Clerk/Personnel Director are contacted in writing as
appropriate, secure the area and evidence, and provide all appropriate documentation
to the offices of the City Clerk/Personnel Director, or to the Utilities Operations
Superintendent and the Utilities Finance/Administrative Manager, as appropriate.


The use of City owned tools, materials, or equipment for personal activities or for
activities not performed in the best interest of the City are prohibited. Privately owned
materials and equipment are not to be stored on City owned property. This includes the
private use of City owned vehicles during the rest period or unpaid break unless such
use is authorized by the Department Head. All employees who have access to
computers will be required to read and sign off on the City’s Electronic Communication
& Information Systems Policy.


Personal activities must not interfere with or delay the performance of assigned duties
nor the work of others. Personal activities must be limited to approved break times.
Family members and friends of City employees may not interfere with or delay the
performance of assigned duties nor the work of others.


The City of Stoughton is committed to a professional method of approaching workplace
conflicts and concerns. We advocate solving any problem at the earliest opportunity
with the lowest level of administrative oversight possible. Many problems are matters of
miscommunication or misinformation easily solved through direct and honest discussion
between the affected parties, often without the intervention of anyone else. It is every
employee’s responsibility to develop and maintain the job skills necessary to conduct
successful conflict management and resolution. In the event of a problem or issue, all
employees and Department Heads must do the following, either in person or in writing if
face-to-face discussion is not possible, applying each step in turn, to arrive at a
reasonable and timely resolution of workplace concerns:


1. Directly speak/write to the person(s) concerned or involved in the situation,
without involving other coworkers. Be sure your conversation/material clearly
states the problem, a possible resolution, and sets a timeframe for decision







31


making or settlement. Be willing to listen. See the other person’s point of view.
Admit fault as necessary or accept compromise. Everyone’s feelings are
important. Decision making requires facts and documentation, so be ready to
give it. Admit defeat gracefully. Be ready to accept the answer that is best for the
taxpayer or ratepayer, even if you don’t agree.


2. If resolution is not possible, both parties must go to the Department Head for
assistance in developing a workable solution.


3. If still unresolved, the parties, Department Head, and Mayor will meet to find a
resolution. Matters of day-to-day operation will be handled solely by the Mayor,
whose decision is final. Policy questions will be referred to the appropriate
standing committee for investigation and the Common Council for final resolution.


Failure to use professional methods of conflict resolution will not be tolerated and will be
followed by disciplinary action.


Alcohol & Substance Abuse


The City is committed to maintaining a workplace free from substance abuse.
Substance abuse, either at work or away from work, can seriously endanger the safety
of employees and citizens alike. Likewise, substance or alcohol abuse has been
demonstrated to cause absenteeism, poor job performance, and the inability to perform
work safely.


Additionally, if an employee is taking a prescribed controlled substance which may
adversely affect or limit his/her ability to perform his/her duties, the employee must
notify his/her Supervisor and/or Department Head of such known side effects prior to
the performance of any such duties.


Department Heads are responsible for communicating to every employee that the City’s
position applies to all alcohol or controlled substances. As a condition of employment,
all City employees must abide by the policy.


The use, possession, sale, manufacture or transfer of controlled substances is
prohibited at all times with an exemption for Police Personnel acting in their official
capacity for possession only in handling of police cases.


The consumption of alcoholic beverages or controlled substances during the work day
or while on standby is prohibited, as is reporting for work or being at work, while under
the influence of alcohol or a controlled substance. Possession of alcoholic beverages
while on City premises and/or in any City work environment is prohibited, except for
Police acting in official capacity. Disciplinary action will be taken in cases where
violations occur.


All employees should report evidence of alcohol or controlled substance abuse to a







32


supervisor or Department Head immediately. In cases where the use of alcohol or
controlled substances pose an imminent threat to the safety of persons or property, an
employee must report the violation. Failure to do so could result in disciplinary action for
the non-reporting employee.


Department Heads have the authority to require “reasonable suspicion” drug and
alcohol testing and to send employees home, on sick leave, for the remaining work
hours who have apparently consumed controlled substances or manifest behavior
during the work day that appears to impair the performance of their job. Investigatory
conference(s) will be scheduled as soon as possible after the employee returns to work.
Participants for this conference will be the employee, the Department Head, a union
representative if applicable, and other person(s) deemed appropriate by the Mayor or
City Clerk/Personnel Director.


Random drug testing will occur for CDL License holders, as mandated by the Federal
Government order. Employees in positions which are identified as safety sensitive will
be required to undergo annual random controlled substance/alcohol screening
according to the Commercial Driver’s License (CDL) policy. Controlled
substance/alcohol tests for all other employees will be limited to post-incident, situations
exhibiting reasonable suspicion, or related to safety sensitive employment positions.


Pursuant to the Drug Free Work Place Act of 1988, employees must report to their
Department Head any conviction under a criminal drug statute for violations occurring
on the job or during working hours, whether on or off City premises, within 5 days after
conviction. Violations of any provisions of this substance abuse policy will be considered
grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including, discharge, even for the first offense.
Because the City recognizes alcoholism and drug abuse as treatable conditions,
employees are encouraged to voluntarily refer themselves for professional assistance
prior to any disciplinary action being initiated.







33


Tobacco Use


The City endeavors to provide a healthy environment and therefore prohibits any form
of tobacco use or consumption in city buildings or vehicles.


Driver's Licenses and Traffic Tickets


An employee whose job requires driving city vehicles or a personal vehicle in
conducting city business must promptly notify his/her supervisor if his/her driver's
license is revoked, suspended, or restricted in any way. Employees are expected to
abide by traffic rules and regulations while on duty. An employee who receives a traffic
or parking ticket while on the job must pay the fine.


CDL Requirements


Any employee whose current position requires him/her to have a valid Commercial
Driver’s License (CDL) shall immediately inform his/her Department Head and the City’s
Personnel Director of any revocation, loss or suspension of their CDL privileges. Upon
revocation, loss or suspension of the CDL, the employee shall not operate any vehicle
of the City which requires such licensure. The City may in its sole discretion, temporarily
reclassify an employee who loses his/her CDL to the status of CDL exempt.


Reclassification to the status of CDL exempt shall be based upon the following factors:
the availability of suitable and necessary work within the employee’s current
department; the employee’s overall employment history, including but not limited to skill
set, disciplinary record, and attendance record. The City’s application of these factors
shall not be arbitrary or capricious.


While temporarily reclassified as CDL exempt, the employee’s wage rate shall be
adjusted accordingly to 90% of employee’s former pay rate during the duration of the
employee’s CDL exempt status.


An employee’s CDL exempt status shall not exceed three hundred sixty five (365) days.
Such exempt status may be terminated at any time by the City for good cause. The CDL
exempt classification is not to be construed as a permanent position and will only apply
during periods of CDL suspensions. An employee placed on CDL exempt status will be
expected to perform all of their regular job duties except those requiring a CDL. The
opportunity for continued employment during a CDL suspension or revocation will only
be afforded to an employee once during their employment with the City. If a second
CDL suspension or revocation is imposed upon the employee, they will be deemed
unqualified to continue in their position and will be subject to dismissal. An employee
whose CDL licensure is revoked or suspended as a result of work-related incident or
other operation of a City vehicle is not eligible for CDL exempt status and is subject to
immediate discharge.


As a condition of being placed on CDL exempt status, the employee agrees to







34


participate in and comply with reasonable and necessary driving or substance abuse
programs which may be established as a condition of reinstatement of his/her CDL
licensure and to provide to the City, upon request, proof of compliance with such
programs.


Workplace Violence


The City of Stoughton is committed to providing a safe and healthy work environment
that is free from any threats or acts of violence. Towards this commitment, the City will
not tolerate any threats or acts of violence perpetrated by employees or people from
outside the workplace. Violence is defined to include, but is not limited to: physical
assault, aggressive behavior directed at an individual, purposeful destruction of another
person's or the City's property, intimidation through verbalized or implied threats, and
threatening or harassing telephone calls. Any reported act or threat will be investigated
as a criminal act and/or a serious violation of City policy. Any confirmed act or threat by
an employee will be grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including termination of
employment, as appropriate.


Further, patrons and employees are prohibited from bringing authorized, concealed
and/or unconcealed weapons, as defined by state statute (i.e. handgun, knife, bully club
or taser) to the worksite, including the storage of weapons with their personal
belongings in the workplace. This prohibition does not include firearms stored in an
employee’s personal vehicle, even while on city business, and does not apply if the
firearm is in a vehicle driven or parked in a parking facility, or to any part of the building,
grounds or lands used as a parking facility, as well as city parks (this restriction does
not apply to employees who use city provided vehicles). Law enforcement officers
employed by the City Police Department or other agencies may bring firearms to the
worksite if authorized by the Chief of Police.


Patrons and employees are prohibited from carrying a concealed or unconcealed
weapon in a law enforcement facility, jail, secure mental health facility as defined by
state law, courthouse (including areas used as municipal courts while in session),
anywhere beyond the security checkpoint at an airport [this prohibition does not apply to
vehicles driven or parked at such locations], and in any city public building.


Patrons and employees who carry authorized, concealed or unconcealed weapons or
display intimidating, threatening and/or violent behavior will be held accountable under
City policy and work rules, as well as local, state and federal law. An employee who
harasses, threatens, attempts to or inflicts bodily harm to co-workers, representatives of
other agencies, or members of the general public is in violation of this policy. All City
managers and employees are responsible for committing to and becoming involved in
the prevention of workplace violence and promotion of a safe work environment.


Any employee who has been a recipient of a threat of violence or victim of an act of
violence is to make a report to the Personnel Director who will forward the information to
the Police Chief. Such reports will be kept confidential to the extent possible. We ask







35


each employee’s cooperation and commitment to the prevention of violence in the
workplace.


Hearing Conservation Policy


The City of Stoughton is committed to providing a safe environment for its employees
and visitors to its facilities. The Hearing Conservation Policy is composed of the
following responsibilities as mandated by OSHA Standard 29 CRF 1919.95 effective
April 7, 1983:


Responsibilities of the Employer:


1. To provide noise level surveys of affected work areas.
2. To file and maintain noise level survey data.
3. Generate a list to all employees of “Hearing Protection Needed” areas.
4. Provide baseline hearing test for all employees, and annual subsequent


audiograms for employees exposed at or above a time-weighted average of 85
decibels.Provide hearing protection devices for employees and visitors who will
be in a “Hearing Protection Needed” area.


5. Sign all areas that require “Hearing Protection Needed”.
6. Noise exposure measurement records shall be retained for two years.
7. Audiometric test records shall be retained in personnel file permanently.
8. Provide annual employee training on the effects of noise on hearing; purpose


and use of hearing protectors, the advantages and disadvantages of various
types; instruction in the selection, fitting, use and care of protectors; and the
purpose of audiometric testing and an explanation of the test procedures.


Responsibilities of Employees:


1. Read and understand noise level survey.
2. In the proper areas, wear hearing protection equipment provided, be trained in


their use, selection, fitting and care.
3. Inform employer of defective hearing protection equipment.
4. Ensure visitors wear hearing protection equipment in “Hearing Protection


Needed” areas.
5. Inform employer of work areas that are not surveyed that may need “Hearing


Protection Needed” status.


Responsibilities of Non-Employees and Visitors:


Wear hearing protection equipment provided before entering “Hearing Protection
Needed” areas.







36


Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Control Plan


In accordance with the OSHA Bloodborne Pathogens Standard, 29 CFR 1910.1030, the
City has developed a Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Control Plan. The purpose of
the exposure control plan is to: 1) Eliminate or minimize employee occupational
exposure to blood or certain other body fluids; and 2) Comply with OSHA Bloodborne
Standard. Employees shall participate in annual training regarding this Plan. Contact
your Supervisor for more information.


Written Hazard Communication Program


The City’s Written Hazard Communication Program enables employees to know health
and safety information about hazardous chemicals they work with and/or are exposed to
in their individual work area(s) of the workplace. The City Safety Coordinator is
responsible for receiving and cataloguing all current Material Safety Data Sheets
(MSDS’s) and MSDS lists from the Department Heads.


The Department Head and their designee shall manage this program in their
Departments(s) and maintain a current MSDS list and copies of all MSDS’s in a Written
Hazard Communication Program folder specific to the individual work area(s) where it is
available to be reviewed by all employees at that workplace. The Department Head or
their designee shall insure that all containers and piping used for handling hazardous
chemicals are properly labeled at all times. The Department Head or their designee
shall conduct training sessions with all employees at least annually to discuss the
MSDSs and labeling and report the effectiveness of the training session to the City
Safety Coordinator in writing.


All employees shall participate in the training sessions, remain familiar with the MSDS
list and information in the MSDSs, and insure that all containers and piping used to
handle hazardous chemicals in their individual work area(s) are properly labeled at all
times.


Employee Assistance Program


Please see the City Clerk/Personnel Director for a current copy of the Employee
Assistance Program Manual.


Disciplinary Action


Discipline may result when an employee’s actions do not conform with generally
accepted standards of good behavior, when an employee violates a policy or rule,
when an employee’s performance is not acceptable, or when the employee’s
conduct is detrimental to the interests of the City of Stoughton. Disciplinary action may
call for any of four steps – verbal warning, written warning, suspension (with or without
pay) or termination of employment – depending on the problem and the number of
occurrences. There may be circumstances when one or more steps are bypassed.
Certain types of employee problems are serious enough to justify either a suspension or







37


termination of employment without going through progressive discipline steps. The
City of Stoughton reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to impose disciplinary
action as may be appropriate to the particular circumstances.


The City is committed to fair and consistent enforcement of its rules and standards of
conduct. In evaluating whether disciplinary action is to be taken and, if so, the type of
disciplinary action, the City will consider all relevant factors including the nature and
seriousness of the offense, the impact on the City, co-workers, or others associated with
the City and the employee’s overall employment record.


While the City will generally employ a system of progressive discipline in cases of non-
serious offenses, the City reserves the right to impose such level of discipline as it
determines appropriate in the circumstances. The rules listed below are by way of
example and should not be read to in any way limit the City’s right to discipline for any
reason. Except as otherwise provided under a collective bargaining agreement or under
an individual contract of employment of fixed duration, all employment with the City is
considered at-will and nothing in this policy or otherwise in these Work Rules is
intended or to be construed to create a property right.


The following are grounds for disciplinary actions up to and including discharge as
determined appropriate by the City:


Grounds for Disciplinary Action (examples only)


 Carelessness resulting in injury, property damage or a dangerous condition
 Reckless or careless driving while using a City vehicle
 Release of confidential information
 Insubordination or failure to perform an assigned task
 Conduct which reflects unfavorably upon the City as an employer
 Discourtesy or use of abusive language
 False statements at the time of employment
 Dishonesty
 Falsification of organization records or reports
 Willingly making a false statement to a supervisor, official, the public, or any City


board or commission
 Violation of City ordinance, administrative regulation, department rule, state or


federal laws that relate to specific job functions
 Refusal to be examined by City authorized personnel, fully licensed physician or


intoxilizer operator when so directed, if applicable to position
 Theft or unauthorized removal of property belonging to another
 Indecent behavior on City premises
 Refusal to work overtime during a designated emergency, without justifiable


cause (Defined emergency = an emergency situation during any period in which
the health, safety, or welfare of the community is threatened)


 Violation of, or disregard for, an established safety practice







38


 Provoking, instigating, or participating in an activity intended to disrupt the
established work routine


 Documented unsatisfactory work performance
 Unauthorized use or possession of tools, machinery, or equipment
 Gambling on City property during working hours
 Loafing, loitering, or otherwise wasting time during work hours
 Being late for work without permission or notification
 Misuse of sick leave or other benefits
 Leaving the work station without permission prior to the scheduled quitting time
 Violation of harassment policy
 Possession, transfer, sale or use of controlled substances
 Possession, or consumption of alcohol while on duty or on City premises
 Reporting for, or being at work while under the influence of alcohol or controlled


substance, use of alcohol in circumstances which impairs the person's ability to
adequately undertake the responsibilities of the position


 Violation of applicable CDL standards with regard to the use of alcohol prior to
reporting or while performing safety sensitive functions


 Refusal to be tested for use of alcohol or controlled substances or tampering with
the conduct or results of such tests


This list is meant to provide examples only, and is not all inclusive.


Discipline at or below the level of a written warning may be issued by the employee’s
Department Head with a copy of any such disciplinary action being provided to the City
Clerk/Personnel Director at the time issued.


Discipline involving a suspension should generally be reviewed with the City
Clerk/Personnel Director and/or Personnel Committee before being imposed, except
where immediate suspension is deemed necessary to protect persons or property.


Prior to discharge, the matter will be reviewed by the Personnel Committee, Personnel
Director and Mayor, as appropriate.


An employee who disagrees with a disciplinary action may request review of the matter
by the Personnel Committee or its designee. The Personnel Committee will determine
the type and extent of review to be conducted. The decision of the Personnel
Committee or its designee is final and not subject to further review.


Disciplinary actions involving employees covered by a collective bargaining agreement
are subject to such review as the agreement may provide for. Disciplinary actions
involving sworn personnel are subject to the requirements of sec. 62.13(5), Wis. Stats.
and any applicable collective bargaining agreement.







39


VIII. Grievance Procedure (adopted by the Common Council 9/13/2011)


This policy is intended to comply with Section 66.0509, Wis. Stats., and provides a
grievance procedure addressing issues concerning workplace safety, discipline and
termination. This policy applies to all employees covered under Section 66.0509, Wis.
Stats., other than police and fire employees subject to Section 62.13(5), Wis. Stats.
An employee may appeal any level of discipline under this grievance procedure.


Definitions


For purposes of this policy, the following definitions apply:


Employee discipline includes all levels of progressive discipline, but shall not include
the following items:


 Placing an employee on paid administrative leave pending an internal
investigation;


 Counseling, meetings or other pre-disciplinary action;
 Actions taken to address work performance, including use of a


performance improvement plan or job targets;
 Demotion, transfer or change in job assignment; or
 Other personnel actions taken by the employer that are not a form of


progressive discipline.


Employee termination shall include action taken by the employer to terminate an
individual's employment for misconduct or performance reasons, but shall not include
the following personnel actions:


 Voluntary quit;
 Layoff or failure to be recalled from layoff at the expiration of the recall period;
 Retirement;
 Job abandonment, “no-call, no-show”, or other failure to report to work; or
 Termination of employment due to medical condition, lack of qualification or


license, or other inability to perform job duties.


Workplace safety is defined as conditions of employment affecting an
employee’s physical health or safety, the safe operation of workplace equipment and
tools, safety of the physical work environment, personal protective equipment,
workplace violence, and training related to same.


Requirements of Written Grievance


Any written grievance filed under this policy must contain the following information:


 The name and position of the employee filing it,
 A statement of the issue involved,







40


 A statement of the relief sought,
 A detailed explanation of the facts supporting the grievance;
 The date(s) the event(s) giving rise to the grievance took place,
 The identity of the policy, procedure or rule that is being challenged;
 The steps the employee has taken to review the matter, either orally or in writing,


with the employee’s supervisor; and
 The employee’s signature and the date.


Steps of the Grievance Procedure


Employees should first discuss complaints or questions with their immediate supervisor.
Every reasonable effort should be made by supervisors and employees to resolve any
questions, problems or misunderstandings that have arisen before filing a grievance.
Employee may choose to be represented during any time of the grievance process at
their own cost.


1. Step 1 – Written Grievance Filed with the Department Head. The employee must
prepare and file a written grievance with the Department Head within five (5)
business days of when the employee knows, or should have known, of the
events giving rise to the grievance. The Department Head or his/her designee
will investigate the facts giving rise to the grievance and inform the employee of
his/her decision, if possible within ten (10) business days of receipt of the
grievance. In the event the grievance involves the Department Head, the
employee may initially file the grievance with the Mayor, who shall conduct the
Step 1 investigation.


2. Step 2 – Review by Mayor. If the grievance is not settled at Step 1, the
employee may appeal the grievance to the Mayor within five (5) business days
of the receipt of the decision of the department head at Step 1. The Mayor
or his/her designee will review the matter and inform the employee of
his/her decision, if possible within ten (10) business days of receipt of the
grievance.


3. Step 3 – Impartial Hearing Officer. If the grievance is not settled at Step 2, the
employee may request in writing, within five (5) business days following receipt
of the Mayor’s decision, a request for written review by an impartial hearing
officer. The City of Stoughton shall select the impartial hearing officer. If the
employee objects to the city’s choice, a substitute impartial hearing officer will
be chosen by the City. The hearing officer shall not be a City employee. In all
cases, the grievant shall have the burden of proof to support the grievance.
The impartial hearing officer will determine whether the City of Stoughton
acted in an arbitrary and capricious manner. This process does not involve a
hearing before a court of law; thus, the rules of evidence will not be followed.
Depending on the issue involved, the impartial hearing officer will determine
whether a hearing is necessary, or whether the case may be decided based







41


on a submission of written documents. The impartial hearing officer shall
prepare a written decision.


4. Step 4 – Review by the Governing Body If the grievance is not resolved after
Step 3, the employee or the Mayor shall request within five (5) business days of
receipt of the written decision from the hearing officer a written review by the
Governing Body. For Library employees, the appeal shall be filed with the
Library Board. For all other employee, the appeal shall be filed with the City
Council. The City Council shall not take testimony or evidence; it may only
determine whether the hearing officer reached an arbitrary or incorrect result
based on a review of the record before the hearing officer. The matter will be
scheduled for the City Council’s next regular meeting. The City Council will
inform the employee of its findings and decision in writing within ten (10)
business days of the City Council meeting. The City Council shall decide the
matter by majority vote and this decision shall be final and binding.


An employee may not file a grievance outside of the time limits set forth above. If the
employee fails to meet the deadlines set forth above, the grievance will be considered
resolved. If it is impossible to comply with the deadlines due to meeting notice
requirements or meeting preparation, the grievance will be reviewed at the next possible
meeting date. An employee must process his/her grievance outside of normal work
hours, unless the employee elects to use accrued paid time (vacation, comp time
etc.) in order to be paid for time spent processing his/her grievance through the various
steps of the grievance procedure.


IX. Unlawful Harassment (Harassment in the Workplace Policy adopted by the
Common Council 10-14-08)


Purpose


The purpose of this policy is to maintain a healthy work environment in which all
individuals are treated with respect and dignity and to provide procedures for reporting,
investigating and resolving complaints of harassment and discrimination.


Policy


It is the policy of the City of Stoughton that all employees have the right to work in an
environment free of all forms of harassment. The City of Stoughton will not tolerate,
condone, or allow harassment by any employee or other non-employees that conducts
business with the City. The City of Stoughton considers harassment and discrimination of
others to be forms of serious employee misconduct. Therefore, the City of Stoughton shall
take direct and immediate action to prevent such behavior, and to remedy all reported
instances of harassment and discrimination. A violation of this policy can lead to discipline
up to and including termination, with repeated violations, even if “minor”, resulting in
greater levels of discipline as appropriate.







42


Definitions


Verbal Harassment: Sexual innuendoes, degrading or suggestive comments, repeated
pressure for dates, jokes of a sexual nature, unwelcome sexual flirtations, degrading
words used to describe an individual, obscene and/or graphic descriptions of an
individual’s body or threats that job, wages, assignments, promotions or working
conditions could be affected if the individual does not agree to a suggested sexual
relationship.


Non-Verbal Harassment: Sexually suggestive or offensive objects or pictures,
inappropriate usage of voicemail, e-mail, the internet, or other such sources as means to
express or obtain sexual material, comments, etc., printed or written materials including
offensive cartoons, suggestive or offensive sounds, whistling, catcalls, or obscene
gestures. Any material which inappropriately raises the issues of sex or discrimination.
Treating an employee differently than other employees when they have refused an offer
of sexual relations.


Physical Harassment: Unsolicited or unwelcome physical contact of a sexual nature,
which may include touching, hugging, massages, kissing, pinching, patting, or
intentionally brushing against the body of another person.


Other Forms of Harassment: Persistent and unwelcome conduct or actions on the basis
of race, national origin, religion, creed, disability, arrest record or conviction record,
marital status, sexual orientation, membership in the military reserve, or use or nonuse of
lawful products away from work is prohibited under this policy and §111.31-111.39, Wis.
Stats.


Harassment on any basis (race, sex, age, disability, etc.) exists whenever: Submission to
harassing conduct is made, either explicit or implicit, a term or condition of an individual’s
employment; submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for an
employment decision affecting an individual; the conduct interferes with an employee’s
work or creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment. Such conduct is
prohibited under this policy and §111.31-111.39 Wis. Stats.


Unwelcome: Sexual conduct is unwelcome whenever the person subjected to it considers
it unwelcome. The conduct may be unwelcome even though the victim voluntarily
engages in it to avoid adverse treatment.


Prohibited Activity (Sexual Harassment and Harassment)


Sexual harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual
favors and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:


 Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or
condition of employment; or







43


 Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an employee is used as the basis
for employment decisions affecting the employee; or


 Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an
employee’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive
working environment.


Harassment is any verbal, written, visual or physical act that creates a hostile, intimidating
or offensive work environment or interferes with an individual’s job performance.


 No employee shall either explicitly or implicitly ridicule, mock, deride, or belittle any
person.


 Employees shall not make offensive or derogatory comments to any person, either
directly or indirectly based on race, color, sex, religion, age, disability, sexual
orientation, or national origin. Such harassment is a prohibited form of
discrimination under state and federal employment law and/or is also considered
misconduct subject to disciplinary action by the city.


Covered Individuals


Individuals covered under this policy include employees and applicants for employment,
volunteers, elected officials, appointed members of committees, commissions and
boards, contractors, vendors, and members of the public.


Each Supervisor shall be responsible for:


 Preventing prohibited activities as defined above.
 Monitoring the unit work environment on a daily basis for signs that harassment


may be occurring;
 Training and counseling all employees on what constitutes harassment and sexual


harassment, on the types of behavior prohibited, the City’s policy and procedures
for reporting and resolving complaints of harassment;


 Stopping any observation that may be considered harassment, and taking
appropriate steps to intervene, whether or not the involved employees are within
his/her line of supervision; and


 Taking immediate action to prevent retaliation towards the complaining party and
to eliminate the hostile work environment where there has been a complaint of
harassment, pending investigation. If a situation requires separation of parties,
care should be taken to avoid actions that appear to punish the complainant.
Transfer or reassignment of any of the parties involved should be voluntary if
possible and, if non-voluntary, should be temporary pending the outcome of the
investigation.


Failing to carry out these responsibilities will be considered in any evaluation or
promotional decisions and may be grounds for discipline.







44


Each Supervisor has the responsibility to assist any employee of the City who comes to
that supervisor with a complaint of harassment in documenting and filing a complaint with
the internal investigation authority as designated by the City while maintaining the highest
level of confidentiality possible.


Each employee of the City is responsible for assisting in the prevention of harassment
through the following acts:


 Refraining from participation in or encouragement of actions that could be
perceived as harassment;


 Reporting acts of harassment to a supervisor; and
 Encouraging any employee who confides that he or she is being harassed or


discriminate against to report these acts to a supervisor.


Failure of any employee to carry out the above responsibilities will be considered in any
performance evaluation or promotional decisions and may be grounds for discipline.


Complaint Procedure


Any employee encountering harassment is encouraged but not required to inform another
employee that his or her actions are unwelcome and offensive. This initial contact can be
either verbal or in writing. The employee is to document all incidents of harassment to
provide the fullest basis for investigation.


Any employee who has unsuccessfully attempted to terminate the harassment and who
believes that he or she is being harassed shall report the incident(s) as soon as possible
to their supervisor so that steps may be taken to protect the employee from further
harassment, and so that appropriate investigative and disciplinary measures may be
initiated. Where doing so is not practical, the employee may instead file a complaint with
another supervisor, the Personnel Director for the City (City Clerk), the City Attorney, or
Mayor.


The supervisor or other person to whom a complaint is given shall meet with the
employee and document the incident(s) complained of, the person(s) performing or
participating in the harassment, any witnesses to the incident(s) and the date(s) on which
it occurred.


Any employee who does not feel it is practical to file their complaint with the above listed
people may file the complaint with either or both of the following:


Wisconsin Department of Work Force Development-Equal Rights Division
201 E. Washington Avenue
Room A100
P.O. Box 8928
Madison, Wisconsin 53708







45


United States Equal Opportunities Commission
1-800-669-4000


If the employee exercises the reporting options of either of the above two listed agencies,
they must file a copy of the complaint with the City Attorney within 24 hours of filing of the
complaint.


The internal investigation authority shall be responsible for investigating any complaint
alleging harassment or discrimination.


 The internal investigative authority shall immediately notify the Mayor and the City
Attorney if the complaint contains evidence of criminal activity, such as battery,
rape, or attempted rape.


 The investigation shall include a determination as to whether other employees are
being harassed by the person, and whether other city employees participated in or
encouraged the harassment.


 The internal investigative authority shall inform the parties involved of the outcome
of the investigation.


 A file of harassment and discrimination complaints shall be maintained in a secure
location. The Mayor shall be provided with an annual summary of these
complaints.


There shall be no retaliation against any employee for filing a harassment or
discrimination complaint, or for assisting, testifying, or participating in the investigation of
such a complaint per state law.


The complaining party’s confidentiality will be maintained throughout the investigatory
process to the extent practical and appropriate under the circumstances.


Complainants or employees accused of harassment may file a grievance/appeal in
accordance with City procedures when they disagree with the investigation or disposition
of a harassment claim.


This policy does not preclude any employee from filing a complaint or grievance with an
appropriate outside agency.


Retaliation


Retaliating against any employee for filing a harassment or discrimination complaint, or
for assisting, testifying, or participating in the investigation of such a complaint, is illegal
and is prohibited by this City and by federal and state statutes.


Retaliation is a form of employee misconduct. Any evidence of retaliation shall be
considered a separate violation of this policy and shall be handled by the same complaint
procedures established for harassment and discrimination complaints.







46


Monitoring to ensure that retaliation does not occur is the responsibility of the chief,
supervisors, Department Heads, employees and the appropriate internal investigative
authority.


X. CODE OF ETHICS


As defined in Municipal Code 2-2, the proper operation of democratic government
requires that public officials and employees be independent, impartial, and responsible
to the people; that government decisions and policy be made in proper channels of the
governmental structure; that public office not be used for personal gain; and that the
public have confidence in the integrity of its government. In recognition of these goals, a
code of ethics was established for all City officials and employees, whether elected or
appointed, paid or unpaid, including members of boards, committees, and commissions
of the City. The purpose of this code is to establish guidelines for ethical standards of
conduct for all such officials and employees by setting forth those acts or actions that
are incompatible with the best interests of the City and by directing disclosure by such
officials and employees of private financial or other interests in matters affecting the
City. The provisions and purpose of the code and such rules and regulations as may be
established are hereby declared to be in the best interest of the City.


Public officials and employees are agents of public purpose and hold offices for the
benefit of the public. They are bound to uphold the Constitution of the United States and
the Constitution of the State of Wisconsin and carry out impartially the laws of the
nation, State, and municipality and to observe in their official acts the highest standard
of morality and to discharge faithfully the duties of their office regardless of personal
consideration, recognizing that the public interest must be their prime concern. Their
conduct in their official affairs should be above reproach so as to foster respect for all
government.


All officials and employees of the City should be loyal to the objectives expressed by the
electorate. Appointed officials and employees should adhere to the rules of work and
performance established as the standard for their positions by the appropriate authority.


Officials and employees should not exceed their authority or breach the law or ask
others to do so, and they should work in full cooperation with other public officials and
employees unless prohibited from so doing by law or by officially recognized
confidentiality of their work.


Definitions


Financial Interest: any interest which shall yield directly or indirectly, a monetary or other
material benefit to the officer or employee or to any person employing or retaining the
services of the officer or employee.


Person: any person, corporation, partnership, or joint venture.







47


Immediate Family: any individual’s spouse; and an individual’s relative by marriage,
lineal descent, or adoption who receives, directly or directly, more than one-half of their
support from the individual or from whom the individual receives, directly or indirectly,
more than one-half of their support.


Use of Public Property


No official or employee shall request or permit the unauthorized use of City-owned
vehicles, equipment, materials, or property for personal convenience or profit.


Obligations to Citizens


No official or employee shall grant any special consideration, treatment, or advantage to
any citizen beyond that which is available to every other citizen.


Financial interest prohibited: No local public official or employee may use his or her
public position or office to obtain financial gain or anything of substantial value for their
private benefit or their immediate family, or for an organization with which they are
associated. This does not prohibit a local public official from using the title of prestige of
their office to obtain campaign contributions that are permitted and reported as required
by Chapter 11 of the Wisconsin Statutes.


No official or employee shall engage in or accept private employment or render service,
for private interest, when such employment or service is incompatible with the proper
discharge of their official duties or would tend to impair such official or employee’s
independence or judgment or action in the performance of their official duties, unless
otherwise permitted by law and unless disclosure is made as hereinafter provided.


No official or employee will, without proper legal authorization, disclose confidential
information concerning the property, government or affairs of the City, nor will such
official or employee use such information to advance the financial or other private
interest of such official or employee or others.


No official or employee will accept any gift, whether in the form of service, loan, thing, or
promise from any person, firm or corporation which to their knowledge is interested
directly or indirectly in any manner whatsoever in business dealings with the City; nor
will any such official or employee accept any gifts, favor, or thing of value that may tend
to influence such official or employee in the discharge of their duties, or grant in the
discharge of their duties any improper favor, service, or thing of value, except campaign
contributions as controlled by Sub (7). Gifts received under unusual circumstances
should be referred to the Ethics Board within 10 days for recommended disposition.


No official or employee who in their capacity as such officer or employee participates in
the making of a contract in which such officer or employee has a private pecuniary
interest, direct or indirect, or performs in regard to that contract some function requiring
the exercise of discretion on the part of such official or employee, shall enter into any







48


contract with the City unless, within the confines of 946.13, Wis. Stats., the contract is
awarded through a process of public notice and competitive bidding.


Any member of the City Council who has a financial interest in any proposed legislation
before the Council shall disclose on the records of the Council the nature of and extent
of such interest. Any other official or employee who has a financial interest in any
proposed legislative action of the Council and who participates in discussion with or
gives official opinions or recommendations to the Council, will disclose on the records of
the Council the nature of and extent of such interest.


All elected and appointed officials and employees as directed by the City Council must
file an initial statement of economic interests and amend such statement if substantial
changes have occurred in economic interests as defined and limited to paragraph (e)
below with the Ethics Board.


If a person must make a disclosure as provided in paragraph (a) above, within 7 days
after such person becomes a candidate for any elective City office, prior to appointment
to such office such person must file a statement of economic interests or a statement as
provided in paragraph (e) below with the Ethics Board.


Elected and appointed officials now serving a definite term must comply with provisions
of this section within 90 days of adoption of forms and procedure by the Ethics Board.


A person filing any statement of economic interests under this section must file the
statement on a form prescribed by the Ethics Board and must supply the following
information to the Ethics Board; a description of all parcels of real estate within the City
and adjoining towns or villages in which the person or spouse owns any interest,
including an option to purchase, if such property is to be considered for rezoning or
purchase by an entity of government, but exempting homestead property. All candidates
for elective and appointive office required to file under this section shall identify any and
all interests of more than 2% or $7,500 (whichever is lesser) he, she, or their spouse
has in any business organization, either as an owner, part owner, partner, silent partner,
or lender. The statement shall include a listing of all corporations or businesses on
which the person or spouse serves as a director or on a consultation basis.


Any candidate, elected or appointed official or employee who feels their standards of
privacy would be compromised by a statement of economic interests may decline to
offer such a statement. In lieu thereof, they must initially file a statement with the Ethics
Board of their knowledge and awareness of the requirements to disclose interest in
legislation required under sub. (g)(4) of this section.


Campaign contributions must be reported by all candidates for City office in strict
conformity with the provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes. Any campaign contribution
tendered to or accepted by a candidate subsequent to the final statutory report must be
reported to the City Clerk, who will forward a copy of such report to the Ethics Board.


Revised by Personnel Committee: 9/26/2011,12/19/2011







49


Adopted by Council: 2/14/2012
Amended by Council: 11/27/2012, 08/27/2013







50


INDEX


Subject Page


A


Accrued Sick Leave Credit, Retiree ................... 14


Accrued Sick Leave Credit, Surviving Spouse ... 14


Alcohol & Substance Abuse …………………….. 28-29


Alcoholic Beverages (Reimbursement) ………... 25


Americans with Disabilities Policy Statement…. 4-5


At-Will Employment………………………………. 4


B


Birthday ……………………………………………. 18-19


Bloodborne Pathogens Exposure Control Plan . 33


Breaks ……………………………………………... 9


Business Expense Reimbursement ……………. 24-25


C


Certification ……………………………………….. 19


Christmas Day ……………………………………. 18


Christmas Eve Afternoon ………………………... 18-19


COBRA ……………………………………………. 21


Code of Ethics ……………………………………. 43-45


Compensatory Time ……………………………... 10


Complaint Procedure (Harassment) …………… 41-42


Computation of Benefits FT to PT & visa versa. 16-17


Concealed Weapons .......................................... 31


Concerns, Workplace ......................................... 28


Conferences ………………………………………. 24-25


Conflicts, Workplace ……………………………... 28


Continuation of Health/Dental Coverage……... 21


Continuing Education ……………………………. 19


Controlled Substance Abuse ……………………. 28-29


Co-Pay …………………………………………….. 21


Courses …………………………………………… 19


Coveralls ………………………………………….. 23


Subject Page


D


Deductibles ……………………………………….. 20


Demotion ………………………………………….. 6


Dental Insurance …………………………………. 21


Department Heads (List of) ……………………... 10


Discharge …………………………………………. 34, 35


Disciplinary Action ……………………………….. 33-35


Discrimination …………………………………….. 4


Driver’s License …………………………………... 30


Drug abuse ……………………………………….. 28-29


Drug Free Work Place Act ………………………. 29


Drug Testing ……………………………………… 29


E


Earned Rest Period ……………………………… 9


Electronic Direct Deposit ………………………… 24


Emergency Response Requirements ………….. 5-6


Employee Assistance Program …………………. 33


Employee Benefits, Statement of ....................... 16


Employee Conduct ………………………………. 25-26


Employee Information …………………………… 25


Ending Time, Workday ....................................... 8


Equal Employment Opportunity…………………. 4


Ethics, Code of …………………………………… 43-45


Examinations, Continuing Education ................. 19


Examinations, Physical ...................................... 21


Expense Reimbursement ……………………….. 24-25


Eye Protection ……………………………………. 26


Eyeglasses ………………………………………... 21-22


F


Family & Medical Leave Act Leave …………….. 14-15


Family, Definition, for Funeral Leave ................. 12


Family, Definition, for Sick Leave ....................... 13


Flex Time ………………………………………….. 9







51


Subject Page


Floating Days Off ………………………………… 18-19


FMLA Leave ………………………………………. 14


Funeral Leave …………………………………….. 11


G


Grievance Procedure ……………………………. 36-38


Grounds for Disciplinary Action (examples) …… 34-35


Group Life Insurance …………………………….. 22-23


H


Harassment in the Workplace …………………... 38-43


Health Insurance …………………………………. 20-21


Hearing Conservation Policy…………………….. 32


Holidays …………………………………………… 18


Hospital Expenses ……………………………….. 20


Hours of Work …………………………………….. 8-11


I


Income Continuation Insurance ………………… 23


Independence Day ………………………………. 18


Injuries (on-the-job) ……………………………… 27


Insurance, Dental ............................................... 21


Insurance, Group Life ........................................ 22


Insurance, Health ............................................... 20-21


Insurance, Income Continuation ........................ 22


Introduction ……………………………………….. 4


Involuntary Termination …………………………. 7


J


Job Safety ………………………………………… 26


Jury Duty ………………………………………….. 12


L


Labor Day …………………………………………. 18


Lateral Transfer …………………………………... 6


Leaves of Absence ………………………………. 11-15


Length-of-Service Payment ……………………... 19


Licensing Fees, Continuing Education ............... 19


Subject Page


Life Insurance …………………………………….. 23


Lodging Reimbursement ………………………… 25


Lunch Break ………………………………………. 9


M


Martin Luther King Jr. Day ………………………. 18


Medical Expenses ………………………………... 20


Medical Leave, Other…………………………….. 15


Memorial Day …………………………………….. 18


Military Duty ………………………………………. 12


N


New Year’s Day ………………………………….. 18


New Year’s Eve Afternoon ……………………… 18-19


Non-Verbal Harassment ……………………….... 39


O


On-Call ............................................................... 11


Overtime …………………………………………... 10


P


Pall Bearer Leave ………………………………… 12


Part-time ………………………………………….. 8, 16-17,


18-19


Pay Days ………………………………………….. 24


Pay Practices ……………………………………... 24-25


Performance Reviews …………………………… 25-26


Personal Activities ……………………………….. 27


Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) ............... 23


Personnel Records ………………………………. 25


Physical Examination ......................................... 21


Physical Harassment ……………………………. 39


Physician’s Statement …………………………… 13


Police Dept. Work Period ……………………….. 9


Position Descriptions ……………………………. 25


PPE .................................................................... 23


Pre-Employment Physical ………………………. 21







52


Subject Page


Prescription Drug Expenses …………………….. 21


Promotion …………………………………………. 6


Property Damage Reporting ……………………. 27


Public Property, Use of ………………………….. 44


R


Random Drug Testing …………………………… 29


Reasonable Suspicion …………………………… 29


Reimbursement of Business Expenses ……….. 24-25


Response Time …………………………………... 5-6


Rest Period ……………………………………….. 9


Retaliation, Prohibition of ………………………... 42-43


Retirement ………………………………………… 22


Reviews, Performance ....................................... 25-26


Rubber Rain Boots ………………………………. 24


S


Safety ……………………………………………… 23, 26-27


Safety Belts……………………………………….. 26


Safety Clothing …………………………………… 23


Safety Glasses …………………………………… 26


Safety Shoes ……………………………………… 23, 26


Seminars ………………………………………….. 19


Severe Weather ................................................. 11


Sexual Harassment ……………………………… 39-40


Sick Leave ………………………………………… 12-14


Sick Leave, Accrued Credit, Retiree .................. 14


Sick Leave, Accrued Credit, Surviving Spouse .. 14


Starting Time, Workday ..................................... 8


State Certification ………………………………… 19


Subpoena …………………………………………. 12


Surgical Expenses ……………………………….. 20


Suspension ……………………………………….. 14, 33,


34


T


Subject Page


Termination, Voluntary ....................................... 7


Termination, Involuntary .................................... 7


Testing, Continuing Education ........................... 19


Thanksgiving Day ………………………………… 18


Thanksgiving Day, Day after ……………………. 18


Threat of Violence ………………………………... 31


Time off ……………………………………………. 18-19


Time Sheets ………………………………………. 24


Tobacco Use ……………………………………… 30


Traffic Tickets …………………………………….. 30


Training/Conference Reimbursement ………….. 24-25


Transfer (Lateral) ………………………………… 6


Trial Period ………………………………………... 5


V


Vacation …………………………………………… 16-17


Vehicles, City-owned …………………………….. 27, 30


Vehicular Accident Reporting …………………… 27


Verbal Harassment ………………………………. 39


Violence, Workplace ……………………………... 31-32


Voluntary Termination …………………………… 7


W


Wage Appeals ……………………………………. 7-8


Weather, Severe ................................................ 11


Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) …………. 22


Work Period (Police Dept. ) …………………….. 9


Work Station Conduct …………………………… 27-28


Workday ……….………………………………….. 8


Worker’s Compensation …………………………. 26-27


Workplace Conflicts & Concerns ……………… 28


Workplace Violence ……………………………… 31-32


Workshops ……………………………………….. 19


Workweek …..…………………………………….. 8


Written Hazard Communication Program…….. 33







AFFIRMATION OF RECEIPT


I have read the Work Rules for the City of Stoughton, as approved by the Common
Council on 02/14/2012 and amended by Council action on 11/27/2012 and 08/27/2013,
and I fully understand that non-compliance with these rules may result in disciplinary
action up to and including termination.


______________________________________________________________________
Employee Name (PLEASE PRINT)


______________________________________________________________________
Employee Signature Date





		R-58-2015 Sergent nonunion work rules.pdf

		Work Rules 2013-rev042015-FINAL VERSION.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing Execution of Documents pertaining to the restructuring of the American
Transmission Company LLC


Committee
Action:


Fiscal Impact:


Utilities Committee recommends approval 6-0 with one abstention


None


File
Number:


R-165-2015 Date Introduced: October 27, 2015


WHEREAS, the American Transmission Company LLC (ATCLLC) is an independent
transmission company established in 2001 under Wisconsin Act 9; and


WHEREAS, by a Resolution dated October 27, 2015, the Common Council of the City of
Stoughton (“City”) authorized the execution and delivery of all documents necessary to acquire an
equity ownership interest in ATCLLC, including execution and delivery of the Operating Agreement of
the American Transmission Company LLC, dated January 1, 2001; and


WHEREAS, certain owners of ATCLLC have determined subsequently that they wish to
restructure the company in order to facilitate investment outside ATCLLC’s traditional footprint, and to
that end have developed an Amended and Restated Operating Agreement, an Exchange Agreement, and
other ancillary documents needed to implement the desired restructuring (“Holdco Documents”) and to
protect non-exchanging owners who wish to limit their investment to ATCLLC’s current service
territory; and


WHEREAS, the City has determined that it wishes to retain its equity interest in ATCLLC and
therefore to be designated as a “Non-Exchanging Owner”, as defined in the Exchange Agreement;


WHEREAS, the Holdco Documents have been provided to representatives of the City by
ATCLLC in substantially final form and have been reviewed by such representatives or their designees;


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Stoughton Utilities Director Robert P. Kardasz,
P.E. is hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Amended and Restated Operating Agreement and
the Exchange Agreement, and, together with other City officials, to take all such other actions as may be
required on behalf of the City to retain the City’s equity interest in ATCLLC as a Non-Exchanging
Owner.







Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Attest:


Lana Kropf, City Clerk Date


Council Action: Override Vote







   
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  October 20, 2015 
 


To:  Lana C. Kropf (Packet via E-Mail and Hard Copy)  


  Stoughton City Clerk  


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E.  


  Stoughton Utilities Director 
 


Subject: Items For The October 27, 2015 Stoughton Common Council Meeting Packet. 


 


The items from the October 19, 2015 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting are 


enclosed.  Please include them in the October 27, 2015 Stoughton Common Council Meeting 


Packet. 


 


Consent Agenda: 


 


1. Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List. 


2. Stoughton Utilities Committee September 14, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes. 


3. Stoughton Utilities August 2015 Financial Summary. 


4. Stoughton Utilities August 2015 Statistical Worksheet. 


 


Business: 


 


1. Stoughton Utilities Proposed Execution Of Documents Pertaining To The Restructuring 


Of The American Transmission Company LLC. 


2. Proposed License Agreement To Allow Dane County To Place Antennas And Other 


Equipment On The Stoughton Utilities East Water Tower. 


 


Encl. 


 


cc: Mayor Donna L. Olson, Chairperson-Stoughton Utilities Committee (Packet via E-Mail) 


 


Alderperson Paul Lawrence, President-Stoughton Common Council (Packet via E-Mail) 


 


 Sean O Grady-Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent (Memo via E-Mail) 


 


Brian R. Hoops-Stoughton Utilities Technical Operations Supervisor (Packet via E-Mail) 


   


  Kim M. Jennings, CPA-Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager (Memo 


via E-Mail) 


 


 


 







 


DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR 
MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, October 19, 2015 – 5:03 p.m. 
Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
600 S. Fourth St. 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
Members Present: Alderperson Michael Engelberger, Citizen Member 


David Erdman, Alderperson Greg Jenson, Citizen 
Member John Kallas, Mayor Donna Olson, Citizen 
Member Alan Staats, and Alderperson Elvin (Sonny) 
Swangstu.  


  
Excused: None. 
 
Absent: None. 
 
Others Present: Alderperson Ron Christianson, Stoughton Utilities 


Finance and Administrative Manager Kim Jennings, 
CPA, Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz, P.E., 
and Stoughton Fire Chief Scott Wegner. 


  
Stoughton Utilities Proposed Execution Of Documents Pertaining To The 
Restructuring Of The American Transmission Company LLC:  Stoughton 
Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the proposed execution 
of documents pertaining to the restructuring of the American Transmission 
Company LLC.  Discussion followed. Motion by Alderperson Elvin (Sonny) 
Swangstu, the motion seconded by Citizen Member David Erdman, to approve 
and recommended the approval and adoption of the corresponding Resolution 
authorizing execution of documents pertaining to the restructuring of the American 
Transmission Company LLC to the Stoughton Common Council on October 27, 
2015. The motion carried 6 to 0 with Citizen Member Alan Staats abstaining.  
 







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  October 13, 2015  


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: ATCLLC (American Transmission Company) Restructuring Option. 


 


The Stoughton Utilities Committee and the Stoughton Common Council approved the 


retainage of the present ATCLLC traditional footprint structure option back on January 


20, 2015 and January 27, 2015 respectively.  Since then, a number of utilities have been 


working with Attorney Richard Heinemann to facilitate the local execution of the 


Operating Agreement and the Exchange Agreement. 


 


The Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of ATCLLC (Operating Agreement) 


has been updated to eliminate provisions that are no longer relevant and to facilitate the 


company’s reorganization.  It is proposed that the Utilities Director execute this 


document and that his execution of the Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of 


ATCLLC be duly authorized by the attached resolution. 


 


The Exchange Agreement is necessary to implement the transfer of member units from 


ATCLLC to Holdco.  It requires the signature of all ATC members, including municipal 


owners.  It is proposed that the Utilities Director execute this document and that his 


execution of the Exchange Agreement be duly authorized by the attached resolution. 


 


Both documents are voluminous but available for review. 


 


It is proposed that the Stoughton Utilities Committee approve and recommend the 


approval and the adoption of the corresponding Resolution Authorizing Execution Of 


Documents Pertaining To The Restructuring Of The American Transmission Company 


LLC to the Stoughton Common Council on October 27, 2015.  


 


Encl.      


 


cc: Attorney Richard A. Heinemann-Boardman and Clark LLP 


Sean O Grady-Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 


Brian R. Hoops-Stoughton Utilities Technical Operations Supervisor 


Kim M. Jennings, CPA-Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager 







HW DRAFT 


8/31/15 


 


 


AMENDED AND RESTATED 


 


 


 


 


OPERATING AGREEMENT 


 


 


 


 


OF 


 


 


 


AMERICAN TRANSMISSION COMPANY LLC 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Dated as of _______________, 2015 
 


 







 


i 


 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


Page 


ARTICLE I  DEFINITIONS ........................................................................................................1 


Section 1.1 Definitions ...........................................................................................................1 


ARTICLE II  FORMATION OF COMPANY .........................................................................12 


Section 2.1 Name, Office, Registered Agent and Continuance ............................................12 


Section 2.2 Governing Law ..................................................................................................12 


Section 2.3 Purpose ...............................................................................................................12 


Section 2.4 Powers ................................................................................................................14 


Section 2.5 Restrictions ........................................................................................................14 


Section 2.6 Term ...................................................................................................................14 


Section 2.7 Adequacy ...........................................................................................................15 


Section 2.8 Operating Protocols ...........................................................................................15 


ARTICLE III  MEMBERS AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS .........................................16 


Section 3.1 Members and Schedule A ..................................................................................16 


Section 3.2 Reserved .............................................................................................................16 


Section 3.3 Reserved .............................................................................................................16 


Section 3.4 Pre-emptive Rights ............................................................................................16 


Section 3.5 Reserved .............................................................................................................17 


Section 3.6 Voluntary Additional Capital Contributions ......................................................17 


Section 3.8 Capital Accounts ................................................................................................20 


Section 3.9 Reserved .............................................................................................................21 


Section 3.10 No Interest ..........................................................................................................21 


Section 3.11 No Third Party Beneficiary ................................................................................21 


Section 3.12 Member Units as Securities ...............................................................................21 


Section 3.13 Month-End Convention .....................................................................................22 


Section 3.14 Investment in Corporate Manager .....................................................................22 


ARTICLE IV  RIGHTS, OBLIGATIONS AND POWERS OF THE CORPORATE 


MANAGER ....................................................................................................22 


Section 4.1 Management of the Company ............................................................................22 


Section 4.2 Authority of Corporate Manager .......................................................................23 


Section 4.3 Indemnification and Exculpation of Indemnitees ..............................................23 


Section 4.4 Liability of the Corporate Manager ...................................................................24 


Section 4.5 Corporate Expenses and Administrative Expenses ...........................................25 


Section 4.6 Reserved .............................................................................................................25 


Section 4.7 Title to Company Assets ....................................................................................25 


ARTICLE V  ACCOUNTING, TAX AND FISCAL MATTERS ...........................................26 


Section 5.1 Fiscal and Taxable Year ....................................................................................26 


Section 5.2 Books .................................................................................................................26 


Section 5.3 Records ..............................................................................................................26 


Section 5.4 Company Funds .................................................................................................27 







 


ii 


 


Section 5.5 Tax Returns ........................................................................................................27 


Section 5.6 Tax Elections .....................................................................................................27 


Section 5.7 Tax Matters, Tax Elections and Special Basis Adjustments .............................27 


ARTICLE VI  ALLOCATIONS AND DISTRIBUTIONS ......................................................28 


Section 6.1 Allocations .........................................................................................................28 


Section 6.2 Cash Available for Distribution .........................................................................30 


Section 6.3 No Right to Distributions in Kind......................................................................32 


Section 6.4 Limitations on Distributions ..............................................................................32 


Section 6.5 Distributions Upon Liquidation .........................................................................32 


Section 6.6 Substantial Economic Effect ..............................................................................33 


Section 6.7 Quarter-End Convention ....................................................................................33 


ARTICLE VII  CHANGES IN CORPORATE MANAGER ..................................................34 


Section 7.1 Transfer of the Corporate Manager’s Member Interest .....................................34 


Section 7.2 Admission of a Substitute or Additional Corporate Manager ...........................35 


Section 7.3 Effect of Bankruptcy, Withdrawal or Liquidation of the Corporate Manager ..35 


Section 7.4 Removal of a Corporate Manager ......................................................................36 


ARTICLE VIII  RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE NON-MANAGING 


MEMBERS .....................................................................................................37 


Section 8.1 Management of the Company ............................................................................37 


Section 8.2 Power of Attorney ..............................................................................................37 


Section 8.3 Limitation on Liability of Non-Managing Members .........................................37 


Section 8.4 Redemption Right ..............................................................................................37 


Section 8.5 Registration ........................................................................................................40 


ARTICLE IX  TRANSFER ........................................................................................................46 


Section 9.1 Purchase Not for Distribution ............................................................................46 


Section 9.2 Restrictions on Transfer of Member Interests ...................................................46 


Section 9.3 Reserved .............................................................................................................47 


Section 9.4 Admission of Substitute Member ......................................................................47 


Section 9.5 Rights of Assignees of Members Interests ........................................................48 


Section 9.6 Effect of Bankruptcy or Termination of a Non-Managing Member..................48 


Section 9.7 Month-End Convention .....................................................................................48 


ARTICLE X  AMENDMENTS; VOTING ...............................................................................49 


Section 10.1 Amendments ......................................................................................................49 


Section 10.2 Amendments Requiring Consent of Voting Members ......................................49 


Section 10.3 Limitations on Voting ........................................................................................49 


ARTICLE XI  MISCELLANEOUS ...........................................................................................50 


Section 11.1 Notices ...............................................................................................................50 


Section 11.2 Entire Agreement ...............................................................................................50 


Section 11.3 Interpretation and Construction .........................................................................51 


Section 11.4 Counterparts .......................................................................................................51 


Section 11.5 Binding on Successors .......................................................................................51 







 


iii 


 


Section 11.6 Severability ........................................................................................................51 


Section 11.7 Rights and Remedies .........................................................................................51 


Section 11.8 Economic Benefit ..............................................................................................51 


 







 


iv 


 


Schedules and Exhibits 


Schedule A List of Members and Member Units 


Exhibit A Notice of Exercise of Redemption Right 


Exhibit B Dispute Resolution Provisions 


 







AMERICAN TRANSMISSION COMPANY LLC  


 


AMENDED AND RESTATED 


 


OPERATING AGREEMENT 


THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED OPERATING AGREEMENT of AMERICAN 


TRANSMISSION COMPANY LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company (the “Company”), is 


made and entered into as of ______________, 2015, by and among the parties listed on Schedule 


A, for the regulation of the affairs and conduct of the Company and certain relationships with and 


among its Members. 


RECITALS 


1. 1999 Wisconsin Act 9 includes provisions commonly referred to as the Reliability 


2000 Legislation, which authorized the organization of a new company to provide electric 


transmission service. 


2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Reliability 2000 Legislation, electric transmission 


utilities were authorized to contribute their transmission assets to such company, and certain other 


electric utilities were authorized to make cash contributions to such company. 


3. The Members have previously entered into an Operating Agreement dated as of 


January 1, 2001, as amended by a first amendment thereto dated as of June 2, 2001, a second 


amendment thereto dated as of May 30, 2003, a third amendment thereto dated as of December 


26, 2003, a fourth amendment thereto dated as of February 20, 2008, and a fifth amendment dated 


as of April 23, 2013 (as amended, the “Original Agreement”). 


4. The Members desire to amend and restate the Original Agreement. 


ARTICLE I 


 


DEFINITIONS 


Section 1.1 Definitions. 


In addition to the definitions contained in this Agreement, the following terms used herein 


shall have the following meanings assigned to them. 


“Act” means the Wisconsin Limited Liability Company Act, Chapter 183 of the Wisconsin 


Statutes, as amended from time to time. 


“Additional Securities” means any additional Corporate Shares (other than Corporate 


Shares issued in connection with an exchange pursuant to Section 8.4 hereof) or rights, options, 


warrants or convertible or exchangeable securities containing the right to subscribe for or purchase 


Corporate Shares, as set forth in Section 3.7(a)(ii). 


“Adjustment in Value” has the meaning provided in Section 3.8(b). 







 


2 


“Administrative Expenses” means (i) all administrative and operating costs and expenses 


incurred by the Company, (ii) those administrative costs and expenses of the Corporate Manager, 


including any salaries or other payments to directors, officers or employees of the Corporate 


Manager, and any accounting and legal expenses of the Corporate Manager, which expenses the 


Members have agreed, are expenses of the Company, and not the Corporate Manager, and (iii) to 


the extent not included in clause (ii) above, Corporate Expenses. 


“Affected Holdco Member” has the meaning provided in Section 6.2(b). 


“Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person: 


(a) Any Person owning or holding directly or indirectly 5% or more of the voting 


securities of such Person; 


(b) Any Person in any chain of successive ownership of 5% or more of the voting 


securities of such Person; 


(c) Any corporation 5% or more of whose voting securities are owned by any Person 


owning 5% or more of the voting securities of such Person or by any Person in any chain of 


successive ownership of 5% or more of the voting securities of such Person; 


(d) Any Person who is an officer or director of such Person or of any corporation in 


any chain of successive ownership of 5% or more of the voting securities of such Person; 


(e) Any corporation operating a servicing organization for furnishing supervisory, 


construction, engineering, accounting, legal or similar services to such Person, which corporation 


has one or more officers or one or more directors in common with such Person, and any other 


corporation which has directors in common with such Person if the number of directors of the 


corporation is more than one-third of the total number of such Person’s directors; or 


(f) Any subsidiary of such Person. 


“Agreement” means this Amended and Restated Operating Agreement, as it may be 


amended from time to time in accordance with its terms. 


“Article 8” means Article 8 of the Uniform Commercial Code as codified at Chapter 408 


of the Wisconsin Statutes. 


“Capital Account” has the meaning provided in Section 3.8. 


“Capital Contributions” means the aggregate contributions by a Member to the capital of 


the Company as set forth on Schedule A, as amended from time to time. 


“Cash Amount” means an amount of cash per Member Unit equal to the Value of the 


Corporate Shares Amount on the date of receipt by the Corporate Manager of a Notice of 


Redemption. 







 


3 


“Cash Available for Distribution” shall mean, for any period, the excess, if any, of (i) the 


cash receipts of the Company (other than from Capital Contributions or a Terminating Capital 


Transaction), receipts from the sale, exchange or other disposition of Company assets, and 


amounts withdrawn from Reserves, over (ii) disbursements of cash by the Company (other than 


distributions to Members and amounts paid with receipts from a Terminating Capital Transaction), 


including the payment of operating expenses, debt service on loans, capital expenditures, federal, 


state, or local income taxes and franchise taxes imposed directly on the Company and amounts set 


aside for Reserves.  The foregoing amounts are intended not to exceed “operating cash flow 


distributions,” as defined in Section 1.707-4(b) of the Regulations. 


“Chapter 196” means Chapter 196 of the Wisconsin Statutes, Regulation of Public 


Utilities. 


“Charter” means the Second Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the 


Corporate Manager filed with the Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions, as such Articles 


may be amended or restated from time to time. 


“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time (or any 


corresponding provisions of succeeding law). 


“Commission” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 


“Company” means American Transmission Company LLC, and its successors and 


assigns. 


“Company Minimum Gain” has the meaning set forth in Regulations Section 1.704-2(d).  


In accordance with Regulations Section 1.704-2(d), the amount of Company Minimum Gain is 


determined by first computing, for each Company nonrecourse liability, any gain the Company 


would realize if it disposed of the property subject to that liability for no consideration other than 


full satisfaction of the liability, and then aggregating the separately computed gains.  A Member’s 


share of Company Minimum Gain shall be determined in accordance with Regulations Section 


1.704-2(g)(1). 


“Company Record Date” has the meaning provided in Section 6.2(h). 


“Conversion Factor” means 1.0, provided that in the event that the Corporate Manager 


(i) declares or pays a dividend on its outstanding Corporate Shares in Corporate Shares or makes 


a distribution to all holders of its outstanding Corporate Shares in Corporate Shares, (ii) subdivides 


its outstanding Corporate Shares or (iii) combines its outstanding Corporate Shares into a smaller 


number of Corporate Shares, the Conversion Factor shall be adjusted by multiplying the 


Conversion Factor by a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the number of Corporate Shares 


issued and outstanding on the record date for such dividend, distribution, subdivision or 


combination (assuming for such purposes that such dividend, distribution, subdivision or 


combination has occurred as of such time), and the denominator of which shall be the actual 


number of Corporate Shares (determined without the above assumption) issued and outstanding 


on such date; and provided further, that in the event that an entity shall become Corporate Manager 


pursuant to any merger, consolidation or combination of the Corporate Manager with or into 


another entity (the “Successor Entity”), the Conversion Factor shall be adjusted by multiplying the 







 


4 


Conversion Factor by the number of shares of the Successor Entity into which one Corporate Share 


is converted pursuant to such merger, consolidation or combination, determined as of the date of 


such merger, consolidation or combination and as otherwise contemplated by Section 7.1(c).  Any 


adjustment to the Conversion Factor shall become effective immediately after the effective date of 


such event retroactive to the record date, if any, for such event; provided, however, that if the 


Corporate Manager receives a Notice of Redemption after the record date, but prior to the effective 


date of such dividend, distribution, subdivision or combination, the Conversion Factor shall be 


determined as if the Corporate Manager had received the Notice of Redemption immediately prior 


to the record date for such dividend, distribution, subdivision or combination.   


“Corporate Expenses” means (i) costs and expenses relating to the formation and 


continuity of existence and operation of the Corporate Manager and any subsidiaries thereof 


(which subsidiaries shall, for purposes hereof, be included within the definition of Corporate 


Manager), including taxes, fees and assessments associated therewith, any and all costs, expenses 


or fees payable to any director, officer or employee of the Corporate Manager, (ii) costs and 


expenses relating to any public offering and registration of securities by the Corporate Manager 


and all statements, reports, fees and expenses incidental thereto, including, without limitation, 


underwriting discounts and selling commissions applicable to any such offering of securities, and 


any costs and expenses associated with any claims made by any holders of such securities or any 


underwriters or placement agents thereof, (iii) costs and expenses associated with any repurchase 


of any securities by the Corporate Manager, (iv) costs and expenses associated with the preparation 


and filing of any periodic or other reports and communications by the Corporate Manager under 


federal, state or local laws or regulations, including filings with the Commission, (v) costs and 


expenses associated with compliance by the Corporate Manager with laws, rules and regulations 


promulgated by any regulatory body, including the Commission and any securities exchange, 


(vi) costs and expenses associated with any 401(k) plan, incentive plan, bonus plan or other plan 


providing for compensation for the employees of the Corporate Manager, (vii) costs and expenses 


incurred by the Corporate Manager relating to any issuing or redemption of Member Interests and 


(viii) all other operating or administrative costs of the Corporate Manager incurred in the ordinary 


course of its business on behalf of or in connection with the Company. 


“Corporate Manager” means ATC Management Inc., a Wisconsin corporation, and any 


Person who becomes a substitute or additional Corporate Manager as provided herein, and any of 


their successors as Corporate Manager. 


“Corporate Share” means one share of Common Stock of the Corporate Manager. 


“Corporate Shares Amount” means a number of Corporate Shares equal to the product 


of the number of Member Units offered for redemption by a Redeeming Member pursuant to a 


completed Notice of Redemption submitted by such Redeeming Member to the Corporate 


Manager, multiplied by the Conversion Factor as adjusted to and including the Specified 


Redemption Date; provided that in the event the Corporate Manager issues to all holders of 


Corporate Shares rights, options, warrants or convertible or exchangeable securities entitling the 


shareholders to subscribe for or purchase Corporate Shares, or any other securities or property 


(collectively, the “rights”), and the rights have not expired at the Specified Redemption Date, then 


the Corporate Shares Amount shall also include such rights issuable to a holder of the Corporate 







 


5 


Shares on the record date fixed for purposes of determining the holders of Corporate Shares 


entitled to rights. 


“Dispute Resolution Provisions” means those provisions for resolving disputes among 


the Members and the Company and Corporate Manager set forth as Exhibit B to this Agreement. 


“DATC” means Duke-American Transmission Company, LLC, a Delaware limited 


liability company.  


“Dominant Member” means a Member (other than Holdco), including such Member’s 


subsidiaries and Affiliates, holding Member Units representing a Percentage Interest equal to or 


in excess of 34.07%. 


“Effective Date” means June 12, 2000. 


“Electric Utility” means (i) a public utility as defined in § 196.01 of the Wisconsin 


Statutes, that is involved in the generation, transmission, distribution or sale of electric energy, 


(ii) a municipal electric company organized under § 66.073 of the Wisconsin Statutes, (iii) a 


wholesale electric cooperative as defined in § 196.485(1) (k) of the Wisconsin Statutes, or (iv) a 


Retail Electric Cooperative. 


“Equity Accounting” means the accounting standard that allows a Member, subject to 


certain conditions, to report its investment in the Company on such Member’s balance sheet and 


its allocable share of the Company’s profits on such Member’s income statement, as such standard 


is applied on the Effective Date. 


“Event of Bankruptcy” as to any Person means the filing of a petition for relief as to such 


Person as debtor or bankrupt under the Bankruptcy Code of 1978 or similar provision of law of 


any jurisdiction (except if such petition is contested by such Person and has been dismissed within 


90 days); insolvency or bankruptcy of such Person as finally determined by a court proceeding; 


filing by such Person of a petition or application to accomplish the same or for the appointment of 


a receiver or a trustee for such Person or a substantial part of its assets; commencement of any 


proceedings relating to such Person as a debtor under any other reorganization, arrangement, 


insolvency, adjustment of debt or liquidation law of any jurisdiction, whether now in existence or 


hereinafter in effect, either by such Person or by another, provided that if such proceeding is 


commenced by another, such Person indicates its approval of such proceeding, consents thereto or 


acquiesces therein, or such proceeding is contested by such Person and has not been finally 


dismissed within 90 days. 


“Excess Tax Expense Recovery Income” means the amount by which Tax Expense 


Recovery Income allocated to a Member under Section 6.1(a)(i) during a given Natural Calendar 


Quarter for any given Natural Calendar Quarter exceeds the Member’s Tax Expense Recovery 


Income Distributable Amount. 


“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 


“FERC” means the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, or its successor in interest. 







 


6 


“FERC Books of Account” means those books of account pertaining to transmission that 


are required by FERC to be maintained by companies that have filed transmission tariffs with 


FERC. 


“Fundamental Matter” means (and is limited to) the following matters (in each case, only 


to the extent that this Agreement or applicable law requires the vote or consent of the Members): 


(i) the sale of substantially all of the assets of the Company; (ii) the merger, consolidation or equity 


exchange of the Company; (iii) amendments to this Agreement that would disproportionately and 


adversely affect a Dominant Member’s express rights as a Member relative to the other Members; 


(iv) the bankruptcy of the Company; and (v) an initial public offering of the Company. 


 


“GAAP” means United States generally accepted accounting principles consistently 


applied. 


“Holdco” means ATC Holdco LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, or its successor 


in interest. 


“Indemnitee” means (i) any Person made a party to a proceeding by reason of its status as 


the Corporate Manager or a director, officer or employee of the Corporate Manager or the 


Company and (ii) such other Persons (including Affiliates of the Company or the Corporate 


Manager) as the Corporate Manager may designate from time to time, in its sole and absolute 


discretion. 


“IPO Registration Statement” has the meaning provided in Section 8.5(a). 


“Land Right” means any right in real property, including fee simple ownership easement, 


lease or other right, that has been acquired for a Transmission Facility that is located or intended 


to be located on the real property. 


“Listing” means with respect to any Person, the closing of an offering of stock, member 


units or other equity interests of such Person that has the effect of listing such interests on the New 


York Stock Exchange, American Stock  Exchange, or NASDAQ, or any of their successors. 


“Losses” has the meaning provided in Section 6.1(f). 


“Majority in Interest” means the affirmative vote or consent of Members or Non-


Managing Members (excluding any Corporate Manager that is designated as a special Non-


Managing Member pursuant to Section 7.4(c)), as applicable, holding Percentage Interests 


aggregating greater than 50% of the Percentage Interests held by the Members or Non-Managing 


Members, as applicable. 


“Member Interest” means an ownership interest in the Company held by a Member and 


includes any and all benefits to which the holder of such a Member Interest may be entitled as 


provided in this Agreement, together with all obligations of such Person to comply with the terms 


and provisions of this Agreement. 


“Member Nonrecourse Debt Minimum Gain” means “partner nonrecourse debt 


minimum gain” as set forth in Regulations Section 1.704-2(i).  A Member’s share of Member 







 


7 


Nonrecourse Debt Minimum Gain shall be determined in accordance with Regulations 


Section 1.704-2(i)(5). 


“Member’s Tax Expense Recovery Income Distributable Amount” means, with respect 


to each Taxable Member and each Partially Taxable Member, that portion of Tax Expense 


Recovery Income directly attributable to such Member as determined by the Corporate Manager 


in its calculation of Tax Expense Recovery Income.  Upon the request of a Member, the Corporate 


Manager shall incorporate taxes incurred by such Member attributable to ownership of the 


Company in its calculation of Tax Expense Recovery Income to the extent such inclusion is not 


inconsistent with FERC policy, federal tax law, or PLR-104-140930-7.  If a Member desires a 


change in FERC policy related to taxes incurred by such Member attributable to its ownership of 


the Company, the Company shall cooperate with the Member in pursuing such change, including 


making all appropriate or necessary FERC filings, to the extent the proposed change is not 


inconsistent with federal tax law or PLR-104930-07.  The Company’s cooperation with respect to 


such change shall not limit any other Member’s right under Section 11.8(c) to take independent 


legal or regulatory positions regarding the Company’s tariffs and rates.  In no event shall the 


aggregate total of Member’s Tax Expense Recovery Income Distributable Amount during any 


Natural Calendar Quarter exceed the cumulative Tax Expense Recovery Income received by the 


Company for such Natural Calendar Quarter. 


“Member Unit” means a Member Interest in the Company.  The number of Member Units 


owned by each Member shall be as set forth on Schedule A, as it may be amended from time to 


time. 


“Members” means the Persons identified on Schedule A from time to time and their 


successors and permitted assigns. 


“Merchant Transmission Project” means a transmission project that does not have 


captive customers from which project costs are being recovered.      


“MISO” means the Midcontinent Independent Transmission System Operator, Inc., or any 


independent system operator or regional transmission organization that has been approved under 


federal law to succeed the MISO, or any other regional transmission organization to which the 


Company has placed operating control of its Transmission Assets. 


“MISO OATT” has the meaning provided in the definition of “Tax Expense Recovery 


Income.” 


“NASDAQ” means the Nasdaq National Market System. 


“Natural Calendar Quarter” means any of the three-month periods January 1 through 


March 31; April 1 through June 30; July 1 through September 30; and October 1 through December 


31, which shall together comprise the Company’s calendar fiscal year until a Listing when the 


Company’s fiscal year may be altered to facilitate such Listing. 


“Net Book Value” means the aggregate Capital Accounts of all the Members kept in 


accordance with Section 3.8. 







 


8 


“Non-Managing Member” means any Person named as a Member on Schedule A other 


than the Corporate Manager, and any Person who becomes a Substitute or additional Non-


Managing Member, in such Person’s capacity as a Non-Managing Member in the Company. 


“Notice of Redemption” means the Notice of Exercise of Redemption Right substantially 


in the form attached as Exhibit A. 


“OATT” means a FERC-approved Open Access Transmission Tariff by which the 


Company is bound. 


“Offer” has the meaning provided in Section 7.1(b)(ii). 


“Operations Date” means January 1, 2001, the date that the Company commenced 


operations. 


“Original Agreement” has the meaning provided in the Recitals. 


 “Partially Taxable Member” means (i) a Member whose allocable income from the 


Company includes amounts that (A) are generally exempt from federal, state, and local income 


taxes and franchise taxes and (B) are taxable to such Member despite such Member’s tax-exempt 


status, and (ii) a Member that is taxed as a partnership but whose partners or members include both 


taxable and tax-exempt entities. 


“Percentage Interest” means the percentage interest of each Member in the Company, as 


determined by dividing the Member Units owned by such Member by the total number of Member 


Units then outstanding. 


“Person” means an individual, corporation, general or limited partnership, joint venture, 


trust, unincorporated association, limited liability company or any other legal or commercial entity. 


“Profits” has the meaning provided in Section 6.1(f). 


“PSCW” means the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, or its successor in interest. 


“PUHCA” means the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935, as amended. 


“Put Right” has the meaning provided in Section 8.4(b). 


“Redeeming Member” has the meaning provided in Section 8.4(a). 


“Redemption Amount” means either the Cash Amount or the Corporate Shares Amount, 


as selected by the Corporate Manager pursuant to Section 8.4(b). 


“Redemption Right” has the meaning provided in Section 8.4(a). 


“Redemption Shares” has the meaning provided in Section 8.5(a). 


“Registrable Shares” has the meaning provided in Section 8.5(b). 







 


9 


“Registration Request” has the meaning provided in Section 8.5(a). 


“Registration Statement” means a Shelf Registration Statement or the IPO Registration 


Statement. 


“Regulations” means the Income Tax Regulations promulgated under the Code, as such 


Regulations may be amended from time to time (including corresponding provisions of succeeding 


Regulations). 


“Reliability 2000 Legislation” means that portion of Wisconsin Act 9 (the 1999-2001 


Biennial Budget Act) relating to public utility holding companies, electric power transmission, 


public benefits and other aspects of electric utility regulation, as amended. 


“Reserves” means the amount of cash determined from time to time by the Corporate 


Manager to be required by the Company for its operations, including the construction of additional 


Transmission Facilities. 


“Retail Electric Cooperative” means a cooperative organized under Chapter 185 of the 


Wisconsin Statutes that provides retail electric service to its members. 


“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. 


“Service” means the Internal Revenue Service. 


“Shelf Registration Statement” has the meaning provided in Section 8.5(a). 


“Specified Redemption Date” means the first business day of the month that is at least 60 


calendar days after the receipt by the Corporate Manager of a Notice of Redemption. 


“Subsidiary” means any entity in which the Company, whether directly or indirectly, has 


an economic interest of at least 50%, or as to which the Corporate Manager serves as manager. 


For the avoidance of doubt, neither Holdco nor ATC Development Manager Inc. shall be 


considered a Subsidiary of the Company as a result of any management services agreement or 


arrangement.   


“Substitute Members” means those Persons admitted as Members in accordance with 


Section 9.4. 


“Successor Entity” has the meaning provided in the definition of “Conversion Factor” 


contained herein. 


“Survivor” has the meaning provided in Section 7.1(c). 


“Taxable Member” means a Member that generally is not exempt from federal, state, or 


local income taxation and franchise taxation.  With respect to any Member that is taxed as a 


partnership, the determination shall be made with respect to such Member’s partners or members, 


and such Member shall be a Taxable Member if all of its partners or members generally are not 


exempt from federal, state, or local income taxation and franchise taxation, and shall be a Partially 







 


10 


Taxable Member to the extent that it has both taxable and tax-exempt or partially taxable partners 


or members.  It is anticipated that Holdco will be a Taxable Member. 


“Tax-Exempt Member” means (i) a Member whose share of income or loss of the 


Company is generally exempt from federal, state, or local income taxation and franchise taxation, 


and (ii) a Member that is taxed as a partnership but all of whose partners or members are tax-


exempt. 


“Tax Expense Recovery Income” means the portion of the Company’s revenue (derived 


either directly or through a Subsidiary) attributable to the total amount of federal, state, or local 


income taxes and franchise taxes set forth on line 27 of page 3 of Attachment O of the MISO Open 


Access Transmission and Energy Markets Tariff, FERC Electric Tariff, Third Revised Volume 


No. 1 (“MISO OATT”) (or such other line in the then-applicable transmission tariff on which the 


information currently required to be reported on line 27 may be reported in the future in the event 


that (i) MISO amends the MISO OATT or (ii) the Company is no longer providing transmission 


service under the MISO OATT, as the same may be amended from time to time), less the amount 


of any income, franchise or other similar taxes that are imposed on and paid directly by the 


Company (either directly or through a Subsidiary) that are included in the amount set forth on such 


line 27 (or such other line in the then-applicable transmission tariff on which the information 


currently required to be reported on line 27 may be reported in the future in the event that (i) MISO 


amends the MISO OATT or (ii) the Company is no longer providing transmission service under 


the MISO OATT, as the same may be amended from time to time).  In no event shall the cumulative 


allocation of the Tax Expense Recovery Income during any Natural Calendar Quarter exceed the 


cumulative Tax Expense Recovery Income received by the Company (either directly or through a 


Subsidiary) during such Natural Calendar Quarter. 


“Tax Matters Member” has the meaning provided in Section 5.7. 


“Terminating Capital Transaction” means the sale, exchange or other disposition of all 


or substantially all of the assets of the Company, after which transaction the Company is dissolved 


and terminated. 


“Trading Day” means a day on which the principal national securities exchange on which 


a security is listed or admitted to trading is open for the transaction of business or, if a security is 


not listed or admitted to trading on any national securities exchange, shall mean any day other than 


a Saturday, a Sunday or a day on which banking institutions in the State of New York are 


authorized or obligated by law or executive order to close. 


“Transaction” has the meaning provided in Section 7.1(b). 


“Transfer” means the offer, sale, assignment or other disposition of all or any portion of a 


Member’s Membership Interest, whether voluntarily or by operation of law or at judicial sale or 


otherwise. 


“Transmission Area” means the footprint of the Company in MISO as of the date of this 


Agreement, together with any future transmission upgrades or additions that are within, or directly 


interconnected with, the State of Wisconsin and/or the Upper Peninsula of Michigan. 







 


11 


“Transmission Assets” means the Transmission Facilities and associated Land Rights. 


“Transmission-Dependent Utility” means an Electric Utility that is not a Transmission 


Utility and that is dependent on the transmission system of another Person for delivering electricity 


to the electric utility’s customers. 


“Transmission Facility” means any pipe, pipeline, duct, wire, line, conduit, pole, tower, 


equipment or other structure used for the transmission of electric power. 


“Transmission Utility” means a cooperative organized under Chapter 185 of the 


Wisconsin Statutes or a public utility (as defined in § 196.01 of the Wisconsin Statutes) that owns 


a Transmission Facility in Wisconsin and that provides transmission service in Wisconsin. 


“Value” means, with respect to any security, the average of the daily market price of such 


security for the ten consecutive Trading Days immediately preceding the date of such valuation.  


The market price for each such Trading Day shall be: (i) if such security is listed or admitted to 


trading on any securities exchange or the NASDAQ, the closing sale price, regular way, on such 


day, or if no such sale takes place on such day, the average of the closing bid and asked prices, 


regular way, on such day, (ii) if such security is not listed or admitted to trading on any securities 


exchange or the NASDAQ, the last reported sale price on such day or, if no sale takes place on 


such day, the average of the closing bid and asked prices on such day, as reported by a reliable 


quotation source designated by the Corporate Manager, or (iii) if such security is not listed or 


admitted to trading on any securities exchange or the NASDAQ and no such last reported sale 


price or closing bid and asked prices are available, the average of the reported high bid and low 


asked prices on such day, as reported by a reliable quotation source designated by the Company, 


or if there shall be no bid and asked prices on such day, the average of the high bid and low asked 


prices, as so reported, on the most recent day (not more than ten days prior to the date in question) 


for which prices have been so reported; provided that if there are no bid and asked prices reported 


during the ten days prior to the date in question, the value of the security shall be determined by a 


reputable investment bank or other valuation firm having experience in the valuation of public 


utility or electric transmission businesses that is proposed by the Corporate Manager, provided that 


the Non-Managing Members that will participate in the transaction for which Value is to be 


determined consent to such proposed selection, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, 


conditioned or delayed.  In such event the Corporate Manager shall instruct the bank or firm to 


establish an equity value for the entity applying a valuation methodology that is consistent with 


valuation analyses then prevalent in the industry, and the valuation of the security shall be the 


equity value divided by the total number of equity securities outstanding on a fully diluted basis, 


without applying any discount for minority ownership or lack of liquidity.  The costs of such 


valuation determination shall be borne by the Company, provided that the Company will not be 


obligated to pay for more than one valuation determination in any twelve-month period, except as 


provided in the succeeding sentence.  If a subsequent Member in any twelve-month period requests 


an additional valuation, the cost therefor shall be paid one-half by the Company and one-half by 


the Member or Members participating in the transaction for which Value is to be determined.  In 


the event the security includes any additional rights, then the value of such rights shall be 


determined by the Corporate Manager acting in good faith on the basis of such quotations and 


other information as it considers, in its reasonable judgment, appropriate. 







 


12 


“Voting Members” means each of WPPI and Holdco as long as it is a Member; provided 


that if any of WPL Transco, ATC Holding LLC, MGE Transco Investment LLC, Rainy River 


Energy Corporation-Wisconsin or Wisconsin Electric Power Company is a Member of the 


Company, but it or an Affiliate is not a member of Holdco, it shall be a Voting Member.    


“WPPI” means WPPI Energy. 


ARTICLE II 


FORMATION OF COMPANY 


Section 2.1 Name, Office, Registered Agent and Continuance. 


(a) The name of the Company is AMERICAN TRANSMISSION COMPANY LLC.  


The Company’s registered office is located at 8040 Excelsior Drive, Suite 200, Madison, WI, 


53717, and its registered agent is CT Corporation System, whose business office is identical with 


the Company’s registered office.  The Company’s principal office and place of business is located 


at W234 N2000 Ridgeview Parkway Court, Waukesha, Wisconsin 53188-1022, or such other 


places as the Corporate Manager may determine. 


(b) The Company was formed upon the filing of a Certificate of Formation with the 


Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions on June 12, 2000, and hereby continues its 


existence. 


Section 2.2 Governing Law. 


This Agreement and all questions with respect to the rights and obligations of the Members, 


the construction, enforcement and interpretation hereof, and the formation, administration and 


termination of the Company shall be governed by the provisions of the Act and other applicable 


laws of the State of Wisconsin and the Federal Power Act. 


Section 2.3 Purpose. 


(a) The sole purpose of the Company is the planning, constructing, operating, 


maintaining and expanding of Transmission Facilities in the Transmission Area, and the providing 


of transmission service with respect to such Transmission Facilities, to provide for an adequate 


and reliable transmission system that meets the needs of all users that are dependent on the 


transmission system, and that supports effective competition in energy markets without favoring 


any market participant, and to engage in any and all other activities incidental or appropriate 


thereto. 


(b) Subject to obtaining appropriate federal or state regulatory approvals and to the 


extent not inconsistent with the restrictions set forth in Section 2.3(e), the Company may acquire, 


own, lease, construct, operate and expand Transmission Assets in the Transmission Area, or 


purchase or acquire the right to provide transmission service over Transmission Facilities in the 


Transmission Area that the Company does not own. 


(c) Notwithstanding Section 2.3(b), the Company may not undertake: 







 


13 


(i) Merchant Transmission Projects in the Transmission Area; or 


(ii) Transmission projects in the Transmission Area that are competitively bid 


under FERC Order 1000 (or its successor), unless and until either (i) DATC is no longer 


owned directly or indirectly, 50% by the Company and/or by Holdco and 50% by Duke 


Energy Corporation; or (ii) Holdco advises the Company that DATC does not intend to bid 


on or undertake such transmission project.  If DATC does not intend to bid on a 


transmission project that is to be competitively bid under FERC Order 1000 (or its 


successor), Holdco shall promptly notify the Company that DATC does not intend to bid 


on such transmission project; or 


(iii) A transmission project in the Transmission Area to which WPPI objects.  


Upon approval by the Corporate Manager’s board of directors of a transmission project in 


the Transmission Area, the Corporate Manager shall notify WPPI, and shall provide it with 


information with respect to the proposed project, including its cost and timing, together 


with such other information as WPPI may reasonably request.  If WPPI objects to such 


transmission project within twenty Business Days following its receipt of the necessary 


information from the Corporate Manager, the Corporate Manager shall promptly notify 


Holdco that WPPI has objected to the transmission project.   


(d) Holdco hereby agrees that it may not (either directly or through an Affiliate, as 


defined in its Operating Agreement as of the date hereof) develop or participate in a transmission 


project in the Transmission Area, unless: 


(i) It is a Merchant Transmission Project; 


(ii) It is a transmission project that is competitively bid under FERC Order 1000 


(or its successor), as to which DATC proposes to bid on or undertake, and DATC is owned, 


directly or indirectly, 50% by the Company and/or Holdco and 50% by Duke Energy 


Corporation at the time such bid is to be submitted; or 


(iii) WPPI Energy objects to a transmission project in the Transmission Area 


that the Company proposed to undertake, and the Company has advised Holdco that WPPI 


has objected to such transmission project.   


(e) The Company undertakes and acknowledges that it shall: 


(i) Have the exclusive duty to provide transmission service in those areas 


where it owns or leases Transmission Assets;  


(ii) Assume the obligations of a Transmission Utility under any agreement of 


such Transmission Utility to provide transmission service over its Transmission Facilities 


or credits for the use of Transmission Facilities, provided that the Company may modify 


any such agreement to the extent allowed under the agreement and to the extent allowed 


under state or federal law; and 







 


14 


(iii) Ensure that the Transmission Facilities in the Transmission Area are 


planned, constructed, operated, maintained and controlled as part of a single transmission 


system, and are included in a single zone for the purpose of the MISO OATT. 


Section 2.4 Powers. 


The Company shall have all the powers incident and appropriate to the performance of its 


purposes as set forth in Section 2.3, and all other powers of limited liability companies under the 


Act.  Without limiting the foregoing, the Company shall have all the powers of a transmission 


company under Chapter 196, and as appropriate, under analogous provisions of other states’ laws 


where the Company is conducting business. 


Section 2.5 Restrictions.  The Company may not: 


(a) sell or transfer its Transmission Assets located in the Transmission Area to, or 


merge such Transmission Assets with, another Person, unless (A) such Transmission Assets are 


sold, transferred or merged on an integrated basis and in a manner that ensures that the Company’s 


Transmission Facilities in the Transmission Area are planned, constructed, operated, maintained 


and controlled as a single transmission system and (B) the successor agrees to be bound by the 


provisions of Section 2.7; 


Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company may sell, transfer or otherwise merge assets on a 


state-by-state basis, provided that such assets are sold, transferred or merged on an integrated basis 


and in a manner that ensures that such assets are planned, constructed, operated, maintained and 


controlled as a single transmission system, and the successor agrees to be bound by the provisions 


of Section 2.7.  


(b) Bypass the distribution facilities of an Electric Utility or provide service directly to 


a retail customer or member of a retail cooperative; 


(c) Own electric generation facilities, or sell, market or broker electric capacity or 


energy in a relevant wholesale or retail market, or as determined by the PSCW, except that, if 


authorized or required by FERC, the Company may purchase or resell ancillary services obtained 


from third parties and engage in redispatch activities that are necessary to relieve transmission 


constraints or operate a control area. 


Section 2.6 Term. 


(a) The Company shall have perpetual existence unless sooner dissolved or terminated 


as provided herein.  Subject to any approvals required under state or federal law, the Company 


shall be dissolved upon the first to occur of the following events: 


(i) The determination by the Corporate Manager to dissolve and terminate the 


Company in accordance with Section 183.0901(1) of the Act; or 


(ii) The entry of a decree of judicial dissolution under Section 183.0902 of the 


Act. 







 


15 


(b) The bankruptcy, insolvency, dissociation or dissolution of one or more of the Non-


Managing Members shall not dissolve the Company. 


(c) Upon the dissolution of the Company for any reason, the Corporate Manager shall 


proceed promptly to wind up the affairs of and liquidate the Company.  The Corporate Manager 


shall have reasonable discretion to determine the time, manner and terms of any sale or sales of 


the Company’s property pursuant to such liquidation. 


Section 2.7 Adequacy. 


(a) Subject to applicable regulatory approvals, including adherence to least-cost 


planning requirements and principles, and subject to the oversight and direction of MISO where 


applicable, the Company shall have a public utility duty to operate, maintain, plan and construct 


its transmission system so that the system is adequate: 


(i) (A) to support effective competition in energy markets without 


 favoring any market participant; 


(B) to deliver on a reliable basis the reasonable, projected needs of all 


of the loads on the electric distribution systems connected to and dependent upon 


the Company’s facilities for delivery of reliable, low-cost and competitively-priced 


electricity to such distribution systems; and 


(C) to provide needed support to the distribution systems interconnected 


to the Company’s system, where a transmission addition is the least-cost electric 


solution to an improvement need, including but not limited to, the reliability needs 


of the distribution systems that are owned by the initial Non-Managing Members 


or their members. 


(ii) to receive energy from both existing and new generating facilities connected 


to and dependent upon the Company’s transmission of such energy. 


(b) In meeting these obligations, the Company shall treat the needs of each electric 


distribution system interconnected to the Company’s system, the electric loads on each system and 


interconnected generation facilities, in a non-discriminatory manner.  The costs of additions to the 


Company’s transmission system to meet this adequacy obligation shall not be directly assigned or 


charged to a distribution system, to end users or to generating facilities separately, except in 


circumstances where approved or required by the appropriate regulatory agency. 


Section 2.8 Operating Protocols. 


(a) The Company has established certain operating protocols that are consistent with 


the OATT. 


(b) If the Company provides terms in any of its agreements with a Member that are 


more favorable to a Member than those granted to any other Member, all Members similarly 


situated (including any member of a Member) shall be entitled to such terms.  A term is not more 


favorable if each Member is offered cost-based terms. 







 


16 


ARTICLE III 


 


MEMBERS AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 


Section 3.1 Members and Schedule A. 


(a) The name, address, Capital Contributions, number of Member Units and 


Percentage Interest of each of the Members are listed on Schedule A. 


(b) The Company may, upon approval of the Board of Directors of the Corporate 


Manager, admit such additional Persons as Members after the Operations Date upon such terms 


and conditions as the Corporate Manager deems appropriate, provided, however, that with respect 


to the issuance of Member Units for cash, it shall first have complied with the provisions of Section 


3.6. 


(c) The Corporate Manager shall amend Schedule A upon the admission of additional 


Members and upon any adjustment in the Members’ Capital Contributions, number of Member 


Units and Percentage Interests. 


Section 3.2 Reserved. 


Section 3.3 Reserved. 


Section 3.4 Pre-emptive Rights. 


(a) Purchase of Right. 


(i) Any Member (including Holdco on behalf on an Affected Holdco Member) 


that has elected to receive distributions approximating 100% of such Member’s, or an 


Affected Holdco Member’s, allocable share of Company Profits pursuant to Section 6.2(c) 


may, in such Member’s sole discretion, contribute cash to the Company in an amount equal 


to the amount determined in Section 6.2(d) for additional Member Units. 


(ii) Upon the contribution of additional Transmission Assets located in the State 


of Wisconsin after the Operations Date and until a Listing by the Company or Corporate 


Manager, any Wisconsin-based Member which on December 31, 2000 was a 


Transmission-Dependent Utility shall have the right to maintain its Percentage Interest 


calculated one day before contribution of such additional Transmission Assets by paying 


cash for additional Member Units; provided, however, that a Transmission-Dependent 


Utility that is a member of Holdco shall have no right to become a Member or maintain its 


Percentage Interest herein. 


(b) Member Unit Price. 


(i) The price for Member Units issued pursuant to Section 3.4(a)(i) shall equal 


the price at which such Member’s Member Units were redeemed. 







 


17 


(ii) The price for Member Units issued pursuant to Section 3.4(a)(ii) shall equal 


the price at which the Company is then issuing Member Units to others that is causing the 


dilution. 


(c) Notice.  Until a Listing by the Company or Corporate Manager, the Corporate 


Manager shall give prompt notice to each Tax-Exempt Member of any proposed contribution of 


Transmission Assets that would dilute a Tax-Exempt Member’s interest and permit it to maintain 


its Percentage Interest in accordance with Section 3.4(a)(ii).  If it desires to maintain its Percentage 


Interest, such Tax-Exempt Member shall, within 30 days thereafter, advise the Corporate Manager 


of its intention to purchase additional Member Units. 


(d) Payment of Purchase Price.  Any additional Member Units purchased shall be paid 


for within 30 days following the contribution giving rise to such right to purchase additional 


Member Units, but not earlier than 60 days after notice to the Tax-Exempt Members as provided 


for in Section 3.4(c) hereof.  Failure to purchase additional Member Units within the time specified 


shall terminate a Member’s rights pursuant to this Section 3.4 in respect of the event giving rise to 


such rights.  Payment shall be made by wire transfer of clearing house funds, if so specified by the 


Company, and otherwise by check payable to the order of the Company. 


Section 3.5 Reserved. 


Section 3.6 Voluntary Additional Capital Contributions. 


(a) No Member may be required at any time to contribute any additional amounts or 


assets to the Company. 


(b) If the Corporate Manager determines that additional equity capital is required for 


Company operations and activities, and shall determine not to effect a Listing at that time or 


otherwise obtain funding in accordance with the provisions of Section 3.7, the Corporate Manager 


shall issue a call notice to the Members advising them of the total funding that the Company seeks, 


each Member’s pro rata share thereof (based upon its Percentage Interest), the price per Member 


Unit and the date upon which such voluntary contributions are to be payable, which shall be a date 


not less than 45 days subsequent to the date of such notice. 


(c) Each Member shall have the right, but not the obligation, to contribute its pro rata 


share for additional Member Units thereof by giving notice to the Company within 30 days 


following receipt of such call notice from the Corporate Manager.  If fewer than all the Members 


agree to contribute their pro rata amounts, then the other Members that do contribute their pro rata 


amounts shall have the right to contribute such additional amounts for additional Member Units in 


accordance with their Percentage Interests (excluding the Percentage Interests of the non-


participating Members).  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Holdco shall have the right to contribute 


additional amounts on account of itself and any Members who also are members of Holdco, and 


such Members shall not be eligible to make direct additional contributions hereunder. 


(d) Each Member shall make payment of its portion of the capital call on or before 


11:00 a.m., central time, on the due date.  Payment shall be made by wire transfer of clearing house 


funds, if so designated in the call notice, and otherwise by check payable to the order of the 


Company. 







 


18 


(e) Except as provided in Sections 3.4, 3.6(c) or 3.7, no Member shall have the right to 


make additional cash contributions to the Company after the Operations Date.  


Section 3.7 Issuance to Corporate Manager. 


The Corporate Manager may contribute additional capital to the Company, from time to 


time, and receive additional Member Interests in respect thereof, in the manner contemplated in 


this Section 3.7. 


(a) Issuances of Additional Company Interests. 


(i) General.  The Corporate Manager is hereby authorized to cause the 


Company to issue such additional Member Interests in the form of Member Units for any 


Company purpose at any time or from time to time to the Members (including the 


Corporate Manager) for such consideration and on such terms and conditions as shall be 


established by the Corporate Manager in its sole and absolute discretion, all without the 


approval of any Member.  Any additional Member Interests issued thereby may be issued 


in one or more classes, or one or more series of any of such classes, with such designations, 


preferences and relative, participating, optional or other special rights, powers and duties, 


including rights, powers and duties senior to Member Interests, all as shall be determined 


by the Corporate Manager in its sole and absolute discretion and without the approval of 


any Member, including without limitation, (i) the allocations of items of Company income, 


gain, loss, deduction and credit to each such class or series of Member Interests; (ii) the 


right of each such class or series of Member Interests to share in Company distributions; 


and (iii) the rights of each such class or series of Member Interests upon dissolution and 


liquidation of the Company; provided, however, that no additional Member Interests shall 


be issued to the Corporate Manager unless: 


(A) the additional Member Interests are issued in connection with an 


issuance of Corporate Shares of or other interests in the Corporate Manager, (1) 


which shares or interests have designations, preferences and other rights, all such 


that the economic interests are substantially similar to the designations, preferences 


and other rights of the additional Member Interests issued to the Corporate Manager 


by the Company in accordance with this Section 3.7 and (2) the Corporate Manager 


shall make a Capital Contribution to the Company in an amount equal to the 


consideration received in connection with the issuance of such shares of stock of or 


other interests in the Corporate Manager; 


(B) the additional Member Interests are issued in exchange for property 


owned by the Corporate Manager with a fair market value, as determined by the 


Corporate Manager, in good faith, equal to the value of the Member Interests; or 


(C) additional Member Interests are issued to all Members in proportion 


to their respective Percentage Interests. 


Without limiting the foregoing, the Corporate Manager is expressly authorized to cause the 


Company to issue Member Units for less than fair market value, so long as the Corporate Manager 







 


19 


concludes in good faith that such issuance is in the best interests of the Corporate Manager and the 


Company. 


(ii) Upon Issuance of Additional Securities.  The Corporate Manager shall not 


issue any additional Corporate Shares (other than Corporate Shares issued in connection 


with an exchange pursuant to Section 8.4 hereof) or rights, options, warrants or convertible 


or exchangeable securities containing the right to subscribe for or purchase Corporate 


Shares other than to all holders of Corporate Shares, unless (A) the Corporate Manager 


shall cause the Company to issue to the Corporate Manager Member Interests or rights, 


options, warrants or convertible or exchangeable securities of the Company having 


designations, preferences and other rights, all such that the economic interests of such 


Member Interests or rights, options, warrants or securities are substantially similar to those 


of the Additional Securities, and (B) the Corporate Manager contributes the proceeds from 


the issuance of such Additional Securities and from any exercise of rights contained in such 


Additional Securities to the Company.  Without limiting the foregoing, the Corporate 


Manager is expressly authorized to issue Additional Securities for less than fair market 


value, and to cause the Company to issue to the Corporate Manager corresponding Member 


Interests, so long as (x) the Corporate Manager concludes in good faith that such issuance 


is in the best interests of the Corporate Manager and the Company, including without 


limitation, the issuance of Corporate Shares and corresponding Member Units pursuant to 


an employee share purchase plan providing for employee purchases of Corporate Shares at 


a discount from fair market value or employee stock options that have an exercise price 


that is less than the fair market value of the Corporate Shares, either at the time of issuance 


or at the time of exercise, and (y) the Corporate Manager contributes all proceeds from 


such issuance to the Company.  For example, in the event the Corporate Manager issues 


Corporate Shares for a cash purchase price and contributes all of the proceeds of such 


issuance to the Company as required hereunder, the Corporate Manager shall be issued a 


number of additional Member Units equal to the product of (A) the number of such 


Corporate Shares issued by the Corporate Manager, the proceeds of which were so 


contributed, multiplied by (B) a fraction, the numerator of which is 100%, and the 


denominator of which is the Conversion Factor in effect on the date of such contribution. 


(b) Certain Contributions of Proceeds of Issuance of Corporate Shares.  In connection 


with any and all issuances of Corporate Shares (other than an issuance in an exchange pursuant to 


Section 8.4), the Corporate Manager shall make Capital Contributions to the Company of the 


proceeds therefrom, provided that if the proceeds actually received and contributed by the 


Corporate Manager are less than the gross proceeds of such issuance as a result of any 


underwriter’s discount or other expenses paid or incurred in connection with such issuance, then 


the Corporate Manager shall make a Capital Contribution of such net proceeds to the Company 


but shall receive additional Member Units with a value equal to the aggregate amount of the gross 


proceeds of such issuance pursuant to Section 3.7(a) hereof.  Upon any such Capital Contribution 


by the Corporate Member, the Corporate Manager’s Capital Account shall be increased by the 


actual amount of its Capital Contribution pursuant to Section 3.8 hereof. 


(c) Redemption of Corporate Shares.  In the event the Corporate Manager redeems any 


Corporate Shares, then the Corporate Manager shall cause the Company to purchase from the 


Corporate Manager a number of Member Units as determined based on the application of the 







 


20 


Conversion Factor on the same terms that the Corporate Manager redeemed such Corporate 


Shares.  Moreover, if the Corporate Manager makes a cash tender offer or other offer to acquire 


Corporate Shares, then the Corporate Manager shall cause the Company to make a corresponding 


offer to the Corporate Manager to acquire an equal number of Member Units held by the Corporate 


Manager.  In the event any Corporate Shares are redeemed by the Corporate Manager pursuant to 


such offer, the Company shall redeem an equivalent number of the Corporate Manager’s Member 


Units for an equivalent purchase price based on the application of the Conversion Factor. 


Section 3.8 Capital Accounts. 


(a) A separate capital account (a “Capital Account”) shall be established and 


maintained for each Member in accordance with Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv).  Without 


limiting the foregoing, Capital Accounts shall be maintained in accordance with the following 


provisions: (i) to each Member’s Capital Account there shall be credited such Member’s Capital 


Contributions, such Member’s allocable share of Profits and any items in the nature of income or 


gain which are specially allocated pursuant to Sections 6.1(a), (b), (c) or (d) hereof, and the amount 


of any Company liabilities assumed by such Member or which are secured by any Company asset 


distributed to such Member, (ii) to each Member’s Capital Account there shall be debited the 


amount of cash and the fair market value as determined by the Corporate Manager, of any 


Company asset distributed to such Member pursuant to any provision of this Agreement, such 


Member’s allocable share of Losses and any items in the nature of expenses or losses which are 


specially allocated pursuant to Sections 6.1(a), (b), (c) or (d) hereof, and the amount of any 


liabilities of such Member assumed by the Company or that are secured by any asset contributed 


by such Member to the Company.  The foregoing provisions and the other provisions of this 


Agreement relating to the maintenance of Capital Accounts are intended to comply with 


Regulations Section 1.704-1(b), and shall be interpreted and applied in a manner consistent with 


such Regulations, and any dispute among the Company and the Members shall be resolved 


pursuant to the Dispute Resolution Provisions. 


(b) When a new or existing Member acquires an additional Membership Interest, the 


Corporate Manager shall determine the potential “Adjustment in Value” by multiplying the 


Company’s unrealized gain or loss (calculated by multiplying (x) the difference between (A) the 


Net Book Value and (B) the implied value of the Company, based upon the price per Member Unit 


of Member Units issued in exchange for such additional Membership Interest times the total 


number of Member Units outstanding, by (y) the difference between the contributing Member’s 


new Percentage Interest and its previous Percentage Interest, if any). 


(i) If a new or existing Member acquires an additional Membership Interest, 


and (A) the resulting potential Adjustment in Value exceeds 3% of the Net Book Value, or 


(B) if the aggregate Adjustment in Value measured from the time of the most recent 


adjustment exceeds 3% of the Net Book Value, the Corporate Manager shall revalue the 


property of the Company to its fair market value (as determined by the Corporate Manager, 


and taking into account Code Section 7701(g)) in accordance with Regulations Section 


1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(f). 


(ii) If (A) a new or existing Member acquires an additional Membership Interest 


in exchange for more than a de minimis Capital Contribution that is not covered by 







 


21 


Section 3.8(b)(i), (B) the Company distributes to a Member more than a de minimis amount 


of Company property as consideration for a Membership Interest or (C) the Company is 


liquidated within the meaning of Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(g), the Corporate 


Manager may, in its sole and absolute discretion, revalue the property of the Company to 


its fair market value (as determined by the Corporate Manager, in its sole and absolute 


discretion, and taking into account Code Section 7701(g)) in accordance with Regulations 


Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(f). 


(iii) When the Company’s property is revalued by the Corporate Manager, the 


Capital Accounts of the Members shall be adjusted in accordance with Regulations 


Sections 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(f) and (g), which generally require such Capital Accounts to be 


adjusted to reflect the manner in which the unrealized gain or loss inherent in such property 


(that has not been reflected in the Capital Accounts previously) would be allocated among 


the Members pursuant to Section 6.1 if there were a taxable disposition of such property 


for its fair market value (as determined by the Corporate Manager, in its sole and absolute 


discretion, and taking into account Code Section 7701(g)) on the date of the revaluation. 


Section 3.9 Reserved. 


Section 3.10 No Interest. 


No interest shall be paid on Capital Contributions or on the balance in each Member’s 


Capital Account. 


Section 3.11 No Third Party Beneficiary. 


No creditor or other third party having dealings with the Company shall have the right to 


enforce the right or obligation of any Member to make Capital Contributions or loans or to pursue 


any other right or remedy hereunder or at law or in equity, it being understood and agreed that the 


provisions of this Agreement shall be solely for the benefit of, and may be enforced solely by, the 


parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.  None of the rights or obligations of the 


Members herein set forth to make Capital Contributions shall be deemed an asset of the Company 


for any purpose by any creditor or other third party, nor may such rights or obligations be sold, 


transferred or assigned by the Company or pledged or encumbered by the Company to secure any 


debt or other obligation of the Company or of any of the Members.  In addition, it is the intent of 


the parties hereto that no distribution to any Member shall be deemed a return of money or other 


property in violation of the Act.  However, if any court of competent jurisdiction holds that, 


notwithstanding the provisions of this Agreement, any Member is obligated to return such money 


or property, such obligation shall be the obligation of such Member and not of the Corporate 


Manager.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, a deficit Capital Account of a Member 


shall not be deemed to be a liability of such Member or an asset or property of the Company. 


Section 3.12 Member Units as Securities. 


Member Units will not be evidenced by certificates, writings, instruments or other 


documents.  Membership Units shall be deemed to be “securities” as that term is defined in Article 


8.  The creation and perfection of a security interest in Member Units will be governed by Article 


8. 







 


22 


Section 3.13 Month-End Convention. 


For purposes of this Agreement, all Capital Contributions, other than the initial Capital 


Contributions, shall be deemed to be received at the end of the month in which they actually are 


received by the Company. 


Section 3.14 Investment in Corporate Manager.   


Except to the extent that Corporate Shares are received in response to a Notice of 


Redemption, the Members agree that each of the Non-Managing Members or their Affiliates other 


than Holdco (and with respect to Holdco, its members or their Affiliates other than Holdco) will 


hold shares of common stock in the Corporate Manager in roughly the same proportion as their 


respective Percentage Interests in the Company, excluding the Percentage Interests of the 


Corporate Manager.  If a new Person becomes a Member of the Company, it shall, as a condition 


to becoming a Member of the Company, acquire that number of Corporate Shares such that it shall 


have a proportionate interest therein roughly equal to its Percentage Interest in the Company, 


excluding the Percentage Interests of the Corporate Manager.  Similarly, a Person who owns or 


acquires shares of common stock of the Corporate Manager will have an indirect interest in the 


Company through the Corporate Manager’s use of the proceeds thereof to acquire Member Units 


in the Company pursuant to Section 3.7.  


 


ARTICLE IV 


 


RIGHTS, OBLIGATIONS AND POWERS OF THE CORPORATE MANAGER 


Section 4.1 Management of the Company. 


(a) Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, the Corporate Manager 


shall have full, complete and exclusive discretion to manage and control the business of the 


Company for the purposes herein stated, and shall make all decisions affecting the business and 


assets of the Company.  Subject to the restrictions specifically contained in this Agreement, the 


powers of the Corporate Manager shall include, without limitation, the authority to take all actions 


on behalf of the Company as provided in Section 2.4 and to take such other action, execute, 


acknowledge, swear to or deliver such other documents and instruments, and perform any and all 


other acts that the Corporate Manager deems necessary or appropriate for the formation, 


continuation and conduct of the business and affairs of the Company.  The Corporate Manager 


shall have all powers as a manager under the Act to do all things necessary and convenient to carry 


out the Company’s business to the fullest extent provided by the Act. 


(b) Except as otherwise provided herein, to the extent the duties of the Corporate 


Manager require expenditures of funds to be paid to third parties, the Corporate Manager shall not 


have any obligations hereunder except to the extent that Company funds are reasonably available 


to it for the performance of such duties, and nothing herein contained shall be deemed to authorize 


or require the Corporate Manager, in its capacity as such, to expend its individual funds for 


payment to third parties or to undertake any individual liability or obligation on behalf of the 


Company. 







 


23 


Section 4.2 Authority of Corporate Manager. 


Subject to applicable regulatory approvals, the Corporate Manager may appoint, employ, 


contract or otherwise deal with any Person for the transaction of the business of the Company, 


which Person may, under supervision of the Corporate Manager, perform any acts or services for 


the Company as the Corporate Manager may approve.  The Corporate Manager agrees that, during 


the time that the Company owns any interest in DATC, the Corporate Manager will vote the 


Company’s interest consistent with the way in which Holdco’s corporate manager is voting 


Holdco’s interests therein.    


Section 4.3 Indemnification and Exculpation of Indemnitees. 


(a) The Company shall indemnify an Indemnitee from and against any and all expenses 


(including fees, costs, charges, disbursements, attorneys’ fees and any other expenses incurred in 


connection with a proceeding) and liabilities (including any obligation to pay a judgment, 


settlement, penalty, assessment, forfeiture or fine, including an excise tax assessed with respect to 


an employee benefit plan, and reasonable expenses) arising from any and all claims, demands, 


actions, suits or proceedings, civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, that relate to the 


operations of the Company in which any Indemnitee may be involved, or is threatened to be 


involved, as a party or otherwise, unless it is established that: (i) the Indemnitee failed to deal fairly 


with the Company or its Members in connection with a matter in which the Indemnitee has a 


material conflict of interest; (ii) the Indemnitee violated criminal law, unless the Indemnitee had 


reasonable cause to believe that its conduct was lawful or had no reasonable cause to believe that 


the conduct was unlawful; (iii) the matter relates to a transaction from which the Indemnitee 


derived an improper personal profit; or (iv) the Indemnitee engaged in willful misconduct.  The 


termination of any proceeding by judgment, order or settlement does not create a presumption that 


the Indemnitee did not meet the requisite standard of conduct set forth in this Section 4.3(a).  The 


termination of any proceeding by conviction or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, 


or an entry of an order of probation prior to judgment, creates a rebuttable presumption that the 


Indemnitee acted in a manner contrary to that specified in this Section 4.3(a).  Any indemnification 


pursuant to this Section 4.3(a) shall be made only out of the assets of the Company. 


(b) The Company may reimburse an Indemnitee for reasonable expenses incurred by 


an Indemnitee who is a party to a proceeding in advance of the final disposition of the proceeding 


upon receipt by the Company of (i) a written affirmation by the Indemnitee of the Indemnitee’s 


good faith belief that the standard of conduct necessary for indemnification by the Company as 


authorized in this Section 4.3 has been met, and (ii) a written undertaking by or on behalf of the 


Indemnitee to repay the amount if it shall ultimately be determined that the standard of conduct 


has not been met. 


(c) The indemnification provided by this Section 4.3 shall be in addition to any other 


rights to which an Indemnitee or any other Person may be entitled under any agreement, pursuant 


to any vote of the Members, as a matter of law or otherwise, and shall continue as to an Indemnitee 


who has ceased to serve in such capacity. 


(d) The Company may purchase and maintain insurance, on behalf of the Indemnitees 


and such other Persons as the Corporate Manager shall determine, against any liability that may 







 


24 


be asserted against or expenses that may be incurred by such Person in connection with the 


Company’s activities, regardless of whether the Company would have the power to indemnify 


such Person against such liability under the provisions of this Agreement. 


(e) For purposes of this Section 4.3, the Company shall be deemed to have requested 


an Indemnitee to serve as fiduciary of an employee benefit plan whenever the performance by it 


of its duties to the Company or the Corporate Manager also imposes duties on, or otherwise 


involves services by, it to the plan or participants or beneficiaries of the plan; excise taxes assessed 


on an Indemnitee with respect to an employee benefit plan pursuant to applicable law shall 


constitute fines within the meaning of this Section 4.3; and actions taken or omitted by the 


Indemnitee with respect to an employee benefit plan in the performance of its duties for a purpose 


reasonably believed by it to be in the interest of the participants and beneficiaries of the plan shall 


be deemed to be for a purpose that is not opposed to the best interests of the Company. 


(f) In no event may an Indemnitee subject the Non-Managing Members to personal 


liability by reason of the indemnification provisions set forth in this Agreement. 


(g) An Indemnitee shall not be denied indemnification in whole or in part under this 


Section 4.3 because the Indemnitee had an interest in the transaction with respect to which the 


indemnification applies if the transaction was otherwise permitted by the terms of this Agreement. 


(h) The provisions of this Section 4.3 are for the benefit of the Indemnitees, their heirs, 


successors, assigns and administrators and shall not be deemed to create any rights for the benefit 


of any other Persons. 


(i) Any amendment, modification or repeal of this Section 4.3 or any provision hereof 


shall be prospective only and shall not in any way affect the indemnification of an Indemnitee by 


the Company under this Section 4.3 as in effect immediately prior to such amendment, 


modification or repeal with respect to matters occurring, in whole or in part, prior to such 


amendment, modification or repeal, regardless of when claims relating to such matters may arise 


or be asserted. 


Section 4.4 Liability of the Corporate Manager. 


(a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Agreement, the Corporate 


Manager shall not be liable for monetary damages to the Company or any Members for losses 


sustained or liabilities incurred as a result of actions or omissions consistent with the standard to 


which directors of a Wisconsin corporation are held.  The Corporate Manager shall not be in breach 


of any duty that the Corporate Manager may owe to the Non-Managing Members or the Company 


or any other Persons under this Agreement or of any duty stated or implied by law or equity 


provided the Corporate Manager, acting in good faith, abides by the terms of this Agreement. 


(b) The Non-Managing Members expressly acknowledge that the Corporate Manager 


is acting on behalf of the Company and the Corporate Manager’s shareholders collectively, that 


the Corporate Manager is under no obligation to consider the separate interests of the Non-


Managing Members (including, without limitation, the tax consequences to Non-Managing 


Members or the tax consequences of some, but not all, of the Non-Managing Members) in deciding 


whether to cause the Company to take (or decline to take) any actions.  In the event of a conflict 







 


25 


between the interests of the shareholders of the Corporate Manager on one hand and the Non-


Managing Members on the other, the Corporate Manager shall endeavor in good faith to resolve 


the conflict.  The Corporate Manager shall not be liable for monetary damages for losses sustained, 


liabilities incurred or benefits not obtained by Non-Managing Members in connection with such 


decisions, provided that the Corporate Manager has acted in good faith. 


(c) Subject to its obligations and duties as Corporate Manager set forth in Section 4.1 


hereof, the Corporate Manager may exercise any of the powers granted to it under this Agreement 


and perform any of the duties imposed upon it hereunder either directly or by or through its agents.  


The Corporate Manager shall not be responsible for any misconduct or negligence on the part of 


any such agent appointed by it in good faith. 


(d) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement or the Act, any action of 


the Corporate Manager on behalf of the Company or any decision of the Corporate Manager to 


refrain from acting on behalf of the Company, undertaken in the good faith belief that such action 


or omission is necessary or advisable in order to protect the ability of the Company to continue to 


be classified as a partnership for federal, state and local income tax purposes, is expressly 


authorized under this Agreement and is deemed approved by all of the Non-Managing Members. 


(e) Any amendment, modification or repeal of this Section 4.4 or any provision hereof 


shall be prospective only and shall not in any way affect the limitations on the Corporate Manager’s 


liability to the Company and the Non-Managing Members under this Section 4.4 as in effect 


immediately prior to such amendment, modification or repeal with respect to matters occurring, in 


whole or in part, prior to such amendment, modification or repeal, regardless of when claims 


relating to such matters may arise or be asserted. 


Section 4.5 Corporate Expenses and Administrative Expenses. 


(a) Except as provided in this Section 4.5 and elsewhere in this Agreement (including 


the provisions of Article VI regarding distributions, payments and allocations to which it may be 


entitled), the Corporate Manager shall not be compensated for its services as Corporate Manager 


of the Company. 


(b) The Corporate Manager is entitled to be reimbursed for all Corporate Expenses and 


Administrative Expenses incurred by it on behalf of the Company and its Subsidiaries.  To the 


extent that the Corporate Manager provides services or other accommodations to a third party, the 


Corporate Manager will fairly and equitably allocate its expenses among the Company and such 


other party or any other entities for which the Corporate Manager serves as manager.  


Section 4.6 Reserved. 


Section 4.7 Title to Company Assets. 


Except to the extent that the Corporate Manager may possess a nominal fractional 


undivided interest in the Transmission Assets, title to Company assets, whether real, personal or 


mixed and whether tangible or intangible, shall be deemed to be owned by the Company as an 


entity, and no Member, individually or collectively, shall have any ownership interest in such 


Company assets or any portion thereof.  Title to any or all of the Company assets may be acquired 







 


26 


and held in the name of the Company or for the account of the Company, by the Corporate Manager 


or one or more nominees, as the Corporate Manager may determine.  The Corporate Manager 


hereby declares and warrants that any Company assets for which legal title is held in the name of 


the Corporate Manager or any nominee or Affiliate of the Corporate Manager shall be property of 


the Company under Section 183.0701 of the Act and shall be held by the Corporate Manager for 


the exclusive use and benefit of the Company in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.  


All Company assets shall be recorded as the property of the Company in its books and records, 


irrespective of the names in which legal title to such Company assets are held. 


ARTICLE V 


 


ACCOUNTING, TAX AND FISCAL MATTERS 


Section 5.1 Fiscal and Taxable Year. 


The Company hereby adopts the calendar year, January 1 through and including December 


31, as its fiscal and tax year, except as otherwise may be required by Code Section 706. 


Section 5.2 Books. 


The books and records of the Company shall be kept in accordance with usual and 


customary accounting practices on the accrual method and in accordance with GAAP, FERC’s 


Uniform System of Accounts, and applicable tax requirements. 


Section 5.3 Records. 


(a) The Company shall keep at its principal place of business all of the following: 


(i) A list, kept in alphabetical order, of each past and present Member and 


manager.  The list shall include the full name and last-known mailing address of each 


Member or manager, the date on which the person became a Member or manager and the 


date, if applicable, on which the Person ceased to be a Member or manager. 


(ii) A copy of the Company’s articles of organization and all amendments to 


the articles. 


(iii) Copies of the Company’s federal, state and local income or franchise tax 


returns and financial statements, if any, for the four most recent years or, if such returns 


and statements are not prepared for any reason, copies of the information and statements 


provided to, or which should have been provided to, the Members to enable them to prepare 


their federal, state and local income tax returns for the four most recent years. 


(iv) Copies of this Agreement, all amendments hereto and any operating 


agreements no longer in effect. 


(b) Upon reasonable request, a Member or any member of Holdco may, at such 


Person’s own expense, inspect and copy during ordinary business hours any Company record 


required to be kept under Section 5.3(a). 







 


27 


(c) The Corporate Manager shall provide, to the extent that the circumstances render it 


just and reasonable, true and full information of all things affecting the Members, including any 


records relating to the Transmission Assets contributed by such Member or any member of Holdco, 


to any Member or member of Holdco, or to the legal representative of any such Person upon 


reasonable request of such Person or the legal representative. 


(d) The failure of the Company to keep or maintain any of the records or information 


required under this Section shall not be grounds for imposing liability on any Person for the debts 


and obligations of the Company. 


Section 5.4 Company Funds. 


The funds of the Company shall be kept in the name of the Company in one or more 


separate bank accounts with banks or trust companies as selected by the Corporate Manager.  


Withdrawals from such bank accounts shall be made only by Persons approved by the Corporate 


Manager. 


Section 5.5 Tax Returns. 


(a) The Corporate Manager shall cause the Company to timely file all Company 


income tax returns required to be filed by the jurisdictions in which the Company conducts 


business or derives income.  By June 30 of each year, the Corporate Manager shall cause to be 


furnished to each Person who was a Member during the prior fiscal year all available information 


necessary for inclusion in such person’s income tax returns for such year. 


(b) Within 45 days following the end of each fiscal quarter, the Corporate Manager 


shall cause to be forwarded to each Person who was a Member during such quarter, a statement 


setting forth such Member’s share of taxable income for such quarter, it being understood that all 


such numbers shall be estimates and subject to year-end adjustment, and the Corporate Manager 


shall have no liability with respect to such numbers as long as they were provided in good faith. 


Section 5.6 Tax Elections. 


(a) The Members intend that the Company be treated as a partnership for U.S. federal 


income tax purposes.  Absent the consent of each Voting Member, no election shall be made by 


the Company or any Member for the Company to be treated as a corporation, or an association 


taxable as a corporation, under the Code or any provisions of any state or local laws. 


(b) Subject to Section 5.6(a), the Corporate Manager shall have the right, in its sole 


discretion but after consultation with the Members affected thereby, at any time to make or not to 


make elections for income tax purposes that are authorized or permitted by any law or regulation 


(including Code Section 754). 


Section 5.7 Tax Matters, Tax Elections and Special Basis Adjustments. 


The Corporate Manager shall be the tax matters member (the “Tax Matters Member”) of 


the Company within the meaning of Code Section 6231, unless and until it shall no longer own a 


Member Interest, in which event the Member owning the largest Member Interest shall serve as 







 


28 


the Tax Matters Member.  The Tax Matters Member shall have the right and obligation to take all 


actions authorized and required, respectively, by the Code for the Tax Matters Member, and shall 


manage any administrative tax proceedings conducted at the Company level by the Service with 


respect to Company matters.  All expenses and fees incurred by the Tax Matters Member on behalf 


of the Company not otherwise reimbursed shall constitute Corporate Expenses. 


Subject to the provisions of Section 5.6, all other elections required or permitted to be made 


by the Company under the Code may be made by the Tax Matters Member in accordance with any 


tax agreement among the Members or in the absence of such agreement, in such manner as 


determined by the Tax Matters Member, in the exercise of its reasonable discretion, and permitted 


by the provisions of the Code. 


ARTICLE VI 


 


ALLOCATIONS AND DISTRIBUTIONS 


Section 6.1 Allocations. 


(a) Profit and Loss.  Except as provided in Section 6.1(b), (c) and (d), for each month 


each Member shall be allocated the following items in the order of priority listed below with 


respect to each calendar month: 


(i) To each Taxable Member and each Partially Taxable Member, an amount 


equal to the Company’s Tax Expense Recovery Income multiplied by an allocation factor 


that is the quotient of such Member’s Percentage Interest divided by the total Percentage 


Interest of all Taxable and Partially Taxable Members.  If the Service amends or 


supplements PLR-104930-07 in any enforceable manner contemplated by Section 


11.8(b)(iv), then Tax Expense Recovery Income shall be allocated consistent with such 


amendment or supplement. 


(ii) To each Member, an amount equal to the Profit and Loss of the Company 


for such month multiplied by such Member’s Percentage Interest. 


(b) Minimum Gain Chargeback.  Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, (i) any 


expense of the Company that is a “nonrecourse deduction” within the meaning of Regulations 


Section 1.704-2(b)(1) shall be allocated in accordance with the Members’ respective Percentage 


Interests, (ii) any expense of the Company that is a “partner nonrecourse deduction” within the 


meaning of Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(2) shall be allocated to the Member that bears the 


“economic risk of loss” of such deduction in accordance with Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(1), 


(iii) if there is a net decrease in Company Minimum Gain within the meaning of Regulations 


Section 1.704-2(f)(1) for any Company taxable year, then, subject to the exceptions set forth in 


Regulations Section 1.704-2(f)(2),(3), (4) and (5), items of gain and income shall be allocated 


among the Members in accordance with Regulations Section 1.704-2(f) and the ordering rules 


contained in Regulations Section 1.704-2(j), and (iv) if there is a net decrease in Member 


Nonrecourse Debt Minimum Gain within the meaning of Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(4) for 


any Company taxable year, then, subject to the exceptions set forth in Regulations Section 


1.704(2)(g), items of gain and income shall be allocated among the Members in accordance with 







 


29 


Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(4) and the ordering rules contained in Regulations Section 1.704-


2(j).  A Member’s “interest in partnership profits” for purposes of determining its share of the 


nonrecourse liabilities of the Company within the meaning of Regulations Section 1.752-3(a)(3) 


shall be such Member’s Percentage Interest. 


(c) Qualified Income Offset.  If a Member receives in any taxable year an adjustment, 


allocation or distribution described in subparagraphs (4), (5) or (6) of Regulations Section 1.704-


1(b)(2)(ii)(d) that causes or increases a deficit balance in such Member’s Capital Account that 


exceeds the sum of such Member’s shares of Company Minimum Gain and Member Nonrecourse 


Debt Minimum Gain, as determined in accordance with Regulations Sections 1.704-2(g) and 


1.704-2(i), such Member shall be allocated specially for such taxable year (and, if necessary, later 


taxable years) items of income and gain in an amount and manner sufficient to eliminate such 


deficit Capital Account balance as quickly as possible as provided in Regulations Section 1.704-


1(b)(2)(ii)(d).  After the occurrence of an allocation of income or gain to a Member in accordance 


with this Section 6.1(c), to the extent permitted by Regulations Section 1.704-1(b), items of 


expense or loss shall be allocated to such Member in an amount necessary to offset the income or 


gain previously allocated to such Member under this Section 6.1(c). 


(d) Capital Account Deficits.  Loss shall not be allocated to a Member to the extent that 


such allocation would cause a deficit in such Member’s Capital Account (after reduction to reflect 


the items described in Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d)(4), (5) and (6)) to exceed the sum 


of such Member’s shares of Company Minimum Gain and Member Nonrecourse Debt Minimum 


Gain.  Any Loss in excess of that limitation shall be allocated to the other Members in accordance 


with their respective Percentage Interests.  After the occurrence of an allocation of Loss to a 


Member in accordance with this Section 6.1(d), to the extent permitted by Regulations Section 


1.704-1(b), Profit shall be allocated to such Member in an amount necessary to offset the Loss 


previously allocated to each Member under this Section 6.1(d). 


(e) Varying Interests.  If a Member transfers any part or all of its Membership Interest 


during a fiscal year of the Company, the distributive shares of the various items of Profit and Loss 


allocable among the Members during such fiscal year shall be allocated between the transferor and 


the transferee Member either (i) as if the Company’s fiscal year had ended on the date of the 


transfer or (ii) based on the number of days of such fiscal year that each was a Member.  If the 


Members’ Percentage Interests are adjusted during a fiscal year of the Company, the Profits and 


Losses for such fiscal year shall be allocated between the part of the year ending on the day when 


the adjustment occurs and the part of the year beginning on the following day either (i) as if the 


taxable year had ended on the date of the adjustment or (ii) based on the number of days in each 


part.  The allocation of Profits and Losses for the earlier part of the year shall be based on the 


Percentage Interests before adjustment, and the allocation of Profits and Losses for the later part 


shall be based on the adjusted Percentage Interests.  The Corporate Manager, in its sole and 


absolute discretion, shall determine which method shall be used to allocate the distributive shares 


of the various items of Profit and Loss. 


(f) Definition of Profit and Loss.  “Profit” and “Loss” and any items of income, gain, 


expense or loss referred to in this Agreement shall mean the Company’s net book income or loss 


(after taking into account all income and franchise taxes imposed directly on the Company), as 


determined in accordance with GAAP and consistent with the principles of maintaining Capital 







 


30 


Accounts in accordance with Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv), except that Profit and Loss 


shall not include the Company’s Tax Expense Recovery Income and all items of income, gain and 


expense that are specially allocated pursuant to Sections 6.1(a), 6.1(b), 6.1(c) or 6.1(d).  All 


allocations of income, profit, gain, loss and expense (and all items contained therein) for federal 


income tax purposes shall be identical to all allocations of such items set forth in this Section 6.1, 


except as otherwise required by Code Section 704(c) and Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(4).  The 


Corporate Manager elected the initial methods for allocating items of income, gain and expense as 


required by Code Section 704(c) with respect to the properties initially acquired by the Company.  


With respect to (i) other properties acquired by the Company and (ii) any amounts required to be 


taken into account using Code Section 704(c) principles due to a revaluation of Company assets 


pursuant to Section 3.8(b), the Corporate Manager shall have the authority, as provided in Section 


5.6, to elect the method to be used by the Company for allocating items of income, gain and 


expense as required by Code Section 704(c) with respect to such properties, and such election shall 


be binding on all Members. 


Section 6.2 Cash Available for Distribution. 


(a) Cash Available for Distribution shall be distributed to the Members within the time 


frame set forth in Section 6.7 and in such amounts as the Corporate Manager shall determine as 


follows: 


(i) First, to each Taxable Member and each Partially Taxable Member, an 


amount equal to its Member’s Tax Expense Recovery Income Distributable Amount; 


provided, however, that if the Service amends or supplements PLR-104930-07 in any 


enforceable manner contemplated by Section 11.8(b)(iv), cash distributions of amounts 


attributable to Tax Expense Recovery Income to each Member shall be based on and 


limited to the amount of Tax Expense Recovery Income allocated to such Member pursuant 


to Section 6.1(a)(i) consistent with such amendment or supplement.  In no event shall the 


aggregate amount of Tax Expense Recovery Income distributed pursuant to Section 6.2(a) 


exceed the amount of Tax Expense Recovery Income recovered and allocated to Members 


pursuant to Section 6.1(a)(i) in the preceding Natural Calendar Quarter.  The Corporate 


Manager shall make commercially reasonable efforts to retain the collected Tax Expense 


Recovery Income and other Cash Available for Distribution sufficient to make distributions 


in the aggregate amount provided in this clause.  However, if the Corporate Manager is 


unable to distribute to all Taxable Members and Partially Taxable Members the aggregate 


amount provided in this clause, the Corporate Manager shall distribute such lesser amount 


as is available to the Taxable Members and Partially Taxable Members on a pro rata basis 


according to their respective shares of Tax Expense Recovery Income for the preceding 


Natural Calendar Quarter. 


(ii) After the distribution set forth in Section 6.2(a)(i), to all Members an 


amount equal to their respective Percentage Interests of Profit and Loss, as allocated 


pursuant to Section 6.1(a)(ii); provided, that no distributions shall be permitted pursuant to 


Section 6.2(a)(i) until amounts required to be distributed pursuant to Section 6.2(a)(i) 


including all amounts relating to prior distribution periods have first been paid. 







 


31 


(b) In the event that a Member, or a member of Holdco (an “Affected Holdco 


Member”), loses the right to use Equity Accounting, such member, or Holdco on behalf on an 


Affected Holdco Member,  may, prior to October 1 of any year, notify the Corporate Manager that 


such Member, or Affected Holdco Member, has elected to receive a distribution of Cash Available 


for Distribution equal to 100% of such Member’s, or such Affected Holdco Member’s, allocable 


share of the Company’s Profits for that year.  Any Member  (including Holdco on behalf of an 


Affected Holdco Member) may provide the Corporate Manager with standing instructions to that 


effect that shall prevail unless and until revoked by such Member. 


(c) For any year during which a Member’s, or an Affected Holdco Member’s, election 


pursuant to Section 6.2(b) is in effect, the Corporate Manager will, subject to the requirements of 


the Act and Section 6.2(g), distribute Cash Available for Distribution to such Member, or to 


Holdco for such Affected Holdco Member, during that year in an amount approximating 100% of 


such Member’s, or such Affected Holdco Member’s, allocable share of Profits for the year. 


(d) Any amounts received by a Member (including Holdco on behalf of an Affected 


Holdco Member) pursuant to Section 6.2(c) that are in excess of amounts distributed pursuant to 


Section 6.2(a) shall be applied in redemption of all or a portion of the Member Units held by such 


Member, effective as of the end of the preceding Natural Calendar Quarter.  For purposes of this 


Section 6.2(d), each Member Unit shall be valued based upon the aggregate Net Book Value as of 


the end of the preceding Natural Calendar Quarter, divided by the number of Member Units 


outstanding as of the end of the preceding Natural Calendar Quarter. 


(e) Subject to Section 6.2(c) and (f), the Corporate Manager hereby declares its 


intention, subject to the requirements of the Act, to distribute Cash Available for Distribution to 


the Members pursuant to Section 6.2(a) on a quarterly basis in an amount approximating 80% of 


the Company’s net book income (after taking into account all expenses for income or franchise 


taxes imposed directly on the Company) as determined under GAAP.  Until a Listing by the 


Company or Corporate Manager, the record date for a distribution shall be the end of each Natural 


Calendar Quarter within the Company’s calendar fiscal year and the payment date shall be as set 


forth in Section 6.7.  Upon such a Listing, the Corporate Manager shall set such record dates and 


payment dates as may be required or are appropriate, consistent with the distribution of cash on a 


quarterly basis. 


(f) The Members acknowledge that the Corporate Manager’s estimate of quarterly 


book income (after taking into account all income or franchise taxes imposed on the Company) of 


the Company may not be precise, and consequently, recognize the right and obligation of the 


Corporate Manager to make an adjusting distribution annually once the Company’s audited 


financial statements have been prepared. 


(g) If the Company has insufficient Cash Available for Distribution to pay all amounts 


pursuant to Section 6.2(a) and Section 6.2(c), it shall pay amounts pursuant to Section 6.2(a) before 


paying any amounts pursuant to Section 6.2(c).  The Company shall use commercially reasonable 


efforts to pay amounts pursuant to Section 6.2(c), but shall not be obligated to borrow funds to 


enable it to do so.  The Company shall pay such amounts as soon as it is able to do so, subject to 


the prior obligation to make distributions pursuant to Section 6.2(a). 







 


32 


(h) If a new or existing Member acquires an additional Membership Interest in 


exchange for a Capital Contribution on any date other than the record date for a Company 


distribution (the “Company Record Date”), the cash distribution attributable to such additional 


Membership Interest relating to the Company Record Date next following the issuance of such 


additional Membership Interest shall be reduced in the proportion to (i) the number of days that 


such additional Membership Interest is treated as not held by such Member bears to (ii) the number 


of days between such Company Record Date and the immediately preceding Company Record 


Date. 


(i) In no event may a Member receive a distribution of cash with respect to a Member 


Unit if such Member is entitled to receive a cash dividend as the holder of record of a Corporate 


Share for which all or part of such Member Unit has been or will be redeemed. 


(j) Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the Corporate Manager 


is hereby authorized to distribute or otherwise transfer to Holdco and the Members that are its 


members, as and when it deems appropriate, in one or more distributions, all of the Company’s 


membership interests in DATC; provided that proportionately equivalent value is distributed in 


cash to all Members other than Holdco and its members.   


Section 6.3 No Right to Distributions in Kind. 


No Member shall be entitled to demand property other than cash in connection with any 


distributions by the Company.  No Member shall be entitled to withdraw from the Company in 


accordance with Section 183.0802(3) (a) of the Act, and except as provided in Section 6.2(c), no 


Member shall be entitled to obtain the return of any part of its Capital Contribution in the 


Company. 


Section 6.4 Limitations on Distributions. 


Notwithstanding any of the provisions of this Article VI, no Member shall have the right 


to receive from the Company, and the Company shall not have the right to make, a distribution to 


any Member, if after giving effect to the distribution, any of the following would occur: 


(a) The Company would be unable to pay its debts as they become due in the usual 


course of business; or 


(b) The fair value of the Company’s total assets would be less than the sum of its total 


liabilities plus the amount that would be needed, if the Company were to be dissolved at the time 


of the distribution, to satisfy the preferential rights upon dissolution of Members, if any, whose 


preferential rights are superior to those of the Members receiving the distribution. 


Section 6.5 Distributions Upon Liquidation. 


Upon liquidation of the Company in connection with a Terminating Capital Transaction or 


otherwise, after payment of, or adequate provision for, debts and obligations of the Company, any 


remaining assets of the Company shall be distributed to the Members in the following order of 


priority: 







 


33 


(a) First, toward satisfaction of all outstanding debts and other obligations of the 


Company; 


(b) Second, the balance, if any, to the Members with positive Capital Accounts in 


accordance with, and proportional to, their respective positive Capital Account balances. 


For purposes of this Section 6.5, the Capital Account of each Member shall be determined after 


the following adjustments: (i) all adjustments made in accordance with Sections 6.1 and 6.2 


resulting from Company operations and from all sales and dispositions of all or any part of the 


Company’s assets, and (ii) allocating to the Corporate Manager an amount equal to the excess of 


(A) the value of the Member Units it received in exchange for Capital Contributions of the 


proceeds of an issuance of Corporate Shares over (B) the actual amount of its Capital Contributions 


(i.e., as a result of any underwriters’ discount or other expenses paid or incurred in connection with 


such issuance).  Any distributions pursuant to this Section 6.5 shall be made by the end of the 


Company’s taxable year in which the liquidation occurs (or, if later, within 90 days after the date 


of the liquidation).  To the extent deemed advisable by the Corporate Manager, appropriate 


arrangements (including the use of a liquidating trust) may be made to assure that adequate funds 


are available to pay any contingent debts or obligations. 


The distributions set forth in this Section 6.5 are intended to comply with the requirement of 


Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(b)(2) that liquidating distributions be made in accordance 


with positive Capital Accounts.  It is intended that such distributions will result in the Members 


receiving aggregate distributions equal to the amount of distributions that would have been 


received if the liquidating distributions were made pursuant to Section 6.2.  However, if the 


balances in the Capital Accounts do not result in such intention being satisfied, items of income, 


gain, loss, deduction and credit will be reallocated among the Members for the fiscal year of the 


liquidation so as to cause the balances in the Capital Accounts to be, to the extent possible, in the 


amounts necessary so that such result is achieved. 


Section 6.6 Substantial Economic Effect. 


It is the intent of the Members that the allocations of Profit and Loss under the Agreement 


have substantial economic effect within the meaning of Code Section 704(b) as interpreted by the 


Regulations promulgated pursuant thereto.  Article VI and other relevant provisions of this 


Agreement shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with such intent. 


Section 6.7 Quarter-End Convention. 


Subject to the last sentence of Section 6.2(e), for purposes of this Agreement, all 


distributions (other than a distribution in complete redemption of a Member’s Member Interest) 


shall be made quarterly on the earlier of five business days following the first meeting of the Board 


of Directors of the Corporate Manager after the close of a Natural Calendar Quarter and the end 


of the first month following the close of such Natural Calendar Quarter. 







 


34 


ARTICLE VII 


 


CHANGES IN CORPORATE MANAGER 


Section 7.1 Transfer of the Corporate Manager’s Member Interest. 


(a) The Corporate Manager shall not transfer all or any portion of its Member Interest 


or withdraw as Corporate Manager except as provided in or in connection with a transaction 


contemplated by Section 7.1(b). 


(b) Except as otherwise provided in Section 7.1(c) hereof, the Corporate Manager shall 


not engage in any merger, consolidation or other combination with or into another Person or sale 


of all or substantially all of its assets, in each case which results in a change of control of the 


Corporate Manager (a “Transaction”), unless: 


(i) the consent of Non-Managing Members holding more than 50% of the 


Percentage Interests of the Non-Managing Members is obtained; or 


(ii) as a result of such Transaction all Non-Managing Members will receive for 


each Member Unit an amount of cash, securities or other property equal to the product of 


the Conversion Factor and the greatest amount of cash, securities or other property paid in 


the Transaction to a holder of one Corporate Share in consideration of one Corporate Share, 


provided that if, in connection with the Transaction, a purchase, tender or exchange offer 


(“Offer”) shall have been made to and accepted by the holders of more than 50% of the 


outstanding Corporate Shares, each holder of Member Units shall be given the option to 


exchange its Member Units for the greatest amount of cash, securities or other property 


that a Non-Managing Member would have received had it (A) exercised its Redemption 


Right and (B) sold, tendered or exchanged pursuant to the Offer the Corporate Shares 


received upon exercise of the Redemption Right immediately prior to the expiration of the 


Offer; or 


(iii) the Corporate Manager is the surviving entity in the Transaction and either 


(A) the holders of Corporate Shares do not receive cash, securities or other property in the 


Transaction or (B) all Non-Managing Members (other than the Corporate Manager or any 


subsidiary) receive an amount of cash, securities or other property (expressed as an amount 


per Corporate Share) that is no less than the product of the Conversion Factor and the 


greatest amount of cash, securities or other property (expressed as an amount per Corporate 


Share) received in the Transaction by any holder of Corporate Shares. 


(c) Notwithstanding Section 7.1(b), the Corporate Manager may merge with or into or 


consolidate with another entity if immediately after such merger or consolidation (i) substantially 


all of the assets of the successor or surviving entity (the “Survivor”), other than Member Units 


held by the Corporate Manager, are contributed, directly or indirectly, to the Company as a Capital 


Contribution in exchange for Member Units with a fair market value equal to the value of the 


assets so contributed as determined by the Survivor in good faith and (ii) the Survivor expressly 


agrees to assume all obligations of the Corporate Manager hereunder.  Upon such contribution and 


assumption, the Survivor shall have the right and duty to amend this Agreement as set forth in this 







 


35 


Section 7.1(c).  The Survivor shall in good faith arrive at a new method for the calculation of the 


Cash Amount, the Corporate Shares Amount and Conversion Factor for a Member Unit after any 


such merger or consolidation so as to approximate the existing method for such calculation as 


closely as reasonably possible.  Such calculation shall take into account, among other things, the 


kind and amount of securities, cash and other property that was receivable upon such merger or 


consolidation by a holder of Corporate Shares or options, warrants or other rights relating thereto, 


and to which a holder of Member Units could have acquired had such Member Units been 


exchanged immediately prior to such merger or consolidation.  Such amendment to this Agreement 


shall provide for adjustment to such method of calculation, which shall be as nearly equivalent as 


may be practicable to the adjustments provided for with respect to the Conversion Factor.  The 


Survivor also shall in good faith modify the definition of Corporate Shares and make such 


amendments to Section 8.4 hereof so as to approximate the existing rights and obligations set forth 


in Section 8.4 as closely as reasonably possible.  The above provisions of this Section 7.1 shall 


similarly apply to successive mergers or consolidations permitted hereunder. 


In respect of any transaction described in the preceding paragraph, the Corporate Manager 


is required to use its commercially reasonable efforts to structure such transaction to avoid causing 


the Non-Managing Members to recognize income or gain for federal income tax purposes by virtue 


of the occurrence of or their participation in such transaction, provided such efforts are consistent 


with the exercise of the board of the Corporate Manager’s fiduciary duties to the shareholders of 


the Corporate Manager under applicable law. 


(d) Notwithstanding Section 7.1(b), a Corporate Manager may transfer all or any 


portion of its Member Interest to (A) a wholly-owned subsidiary of such Corporate Manager or 


(B) the owners of all of the ownership interests of such Corporate Manager and following a transfer 


of all of its Member Interest, may withdraw as Corporate Manager. 


Section 7.2 Admission of a Substitute or Additional Corporate Manager. 


A Person shall be admitted as a substitute or additional Corporate Manager of the Company 


only if the following terms and conditions are satisfied: 


(a) the Person to be admitted as a substitute or additional Corporate Manager shall have 


accepted and agreed to be bound by all the terms and provisions of this Agreement by executing a 


counterpart thereof and such other documents or instruments as may be required or appropriate in 


order to effect the admission of such Person as a Corporate Manager and all other actions required 


by this Agreement in connection with such admission shall have been performed; and 


(b) if the Person to be admitted as a substitute or additional Corporate Manager is an 


entity, it shall have provided the Company with evidence satisfactory to counsel for the Company 


of such Person’s authority to become a Corporate Manager and to be bound by the terms and 


provisions of this Agreement. 


Section 7.3 Effect of Bankruptcy, Withdrawal or Liquidation of the Corporate Manager. 


(a) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Bankruptcy as to the Corporate Manager (and 


its removal pursuant to Section 7.4(a) hereof) or the withdrawal, removal or liquidation of the 


Corporate Manager, the Company shall be dissolved and terminated unless the Company is 







 


36 


continued pursuant to Section 7.3(b) hereof.  The merger of the Corporate Manager with or into 


any entity that is admitted as a substitute or successor Corporate Manager pursuant to Section 7.2 


hereof shall not be deemed to be the withdrawal, liquidation or removal of the Corporate Manager. 


(b) Following the occurrence of an Event of Bankruptcy as to the Corporate Manager 


(and its removal pursuant to Section 7.4(a) hereof) or the withdrawal, removal or liquidation of 


the Corporate Manager, the Non-Managing Members, within 90 days after such occurrence, may 


elect to continue the business of the Company by selecting, subject to Section 7.2 hereof and any 


other provisions of this Agreement, a substitute Corporate Manager by the vote of a Majority in 


Interest of the Non-Managing Members.  If the Non-Managing Members elect to continue the 


business of the Company and admit a substitute Corporate Manager, the relationship with the 


Members and of any Person who has acquired an interest of a Member in the Company shall be 


governed by this Agreement. 


Section 7.4 Removal of a Corporate Manager. 


(a) Except upon the consent of each Voting Member, the Non-Managing Members 


may not remove the Corporate Manager, with or without cause.  Upon the occurrence of an Event 


of Bankruptcy as to the Corporate Manager, the Corporate Manager shall be deemed to be removed 


automatically. 


(b) If a Corporate Manager has been removed pursuant to this Section 7.4 and the 


Company is continued pursuant to Section 7.3 hereof, such Corporate Manager shall promptly 


transfer and assign its Member Interest in the Company to the substitute Corporate Manager 


approved by a Majority in Interest of the Non-Managing Members in accordance with Section 


7.3(b) hereof and otherwise admitted to the Company in accordance with Section 7.2 hereof.  At 


the time of assignment, the removed Corporate Manager shall be entitled to receive from the 


substitute Corporate Manager the fair market value of the Member Interest of such removed 


Corporate Manager as reduced by any damages caused to the Company by such Corporate 


Manager.  Such fair market value shall be determined by an appraiser mutually agreed upon by 


the Corporate Manager and a Majority in Interest of the Non-Managing Members within 10 days 


following the removal of the Corporate Manager.  In the event that the parties are unable to agree 


upon an appraiser, the removed Corporate Manager and a Majority in Interest of the Non-


Managing Members each shall select an appraiser.  Each such appraiser shall complete an appraisal 


of the fair market value of the removed Corporate Manager’s Member Interest within 30 days of 


the Corporate Manager’s removal, and the fair market value of the removed Corporate Manager’s 


Member Interest shall be the average of the two appraisals; provided, however, that if the higher 


appraisal exceeds the lower appraisal by more than 20% of the amount of the lower appraisal, the 


two appraisers, no later than 40 days after the removal of the Corporate Manager, shall select a 


third appraiser who shall complete an appraisal of the fair market value of the removed Corporate 


Manager’s Member Interest no later than 60 days after the removal of the Corporate Manager.  In 


such case, the fair market value of the removed Corporate Manager’s Member Interest shall be the 


average of the two appraisals closest in value. 


(c) The Member Interest of a removed Corporate Manager, during the time after 


bankruptcy until transfer under Section 7.4(b), shall be converted to that of a special Non-


Managing Member; provided, however, such removed Corporate Manager shall not have any 







 


37 


rights to participate in the management and affairs of the Company, and shall not be entitled to 


any portion of the income, expense, profit, gain or loss allocations or cash distributions allocable 


or payable, as the case may be, to the Non-Managing Members.  Instead, such removed Corporate 


Manager shall receive and be entitled only to retain distributions or allocations of such items that 


it would have been entitled to receive in its capacity as Corporate Manager, until the transfer is 


effective pursuant to Section 7.4(b). 


(d) All Members shall have given and hereby do give such consents, shall take such 


actions and shall execute such documents as shall be legally necessary and sufficient to effect all 


the foregoing provisions of this Section. 


ARTICLE VIII 


 


RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE NON-MANAGING MEMBERS 


Section 8.1 Management of the Company. 


Except to the extent provided in Section 10.1, the Non-Managing Members shall not 


participate in the management or control of Company business nor shall they transact any business 


for the Company, nor shall they have the power to sign for or bind the Company, such powers 


being vested solely and exclusively in the Corporate Manager. 


Section 8.2 Power of Attorney. 


Each Non-Managing Member hereby irrevocably appoints the Corporate Manager its true 


and lawful attorney-in-fact, who may act for each such Member and in its name, place and stead, 


and for its use and benefit, to sign, acknowledge, swear to, deliver, file or record, at the appropriate 


public offices, any and all documents, certificates and instruments as may be deemed necessary or 


desirable by the Corporate Manager to carry out fully the provisions of this Agreement and the 


Act in accordance with their terms, which power of attorney is coupled with an interest and shall 


survive the death, dissolution or legal incapacity of the Non-Managing Member, or the transfer by 


such Member of any part or all of its Member Interest. 


Section 8.3 Limitation on Liability of Non-Managing Members. 


No Non-Managing Member shall be liable for any debts, liabilities, contracts or obligations 


of the Company.  After its Capital Contribution is fully paid, no Non-Managing Member shall, 


except as otherwise required by the Act, be required to make any further Capital Contributions or 


other payments or lend any funds to the Company. 


Section 8.4 Redemption Right. 


(a) Subject to Sections 8.4(b), 8.4(d), and 8.4(g), each Non-Managing Member shall 


have the right (the “Redemption Right”), to require the Company to redeem on a Specified 


Redemption Date all or a portion of the Member Units held by such Non-Managing Member at a 


redemption price equal to and in the form of the Cash Amount to be paid by the Company, provided 


that such Member Units shall have been outstanding for at least twelve months immediately prior 


to such Specified Redemption Date.  The Redemption Right shall be exercised pursuant to a Notice 







 


38 


of Redemption delivered to the Company (with a copy to the Corporate Manager) by the Non-


Managing Member who is exercising the Redemption Right (the “Redeeming Member”); 


provided, however, that the Company shall not be obligated to satisfy such Redemption Right if 


the Corporate Manager elects to purchase the Member Units subject to the Notice of Redemption; 


and provided, further, that no Non-Managing Member may deliver more than two Notices of 


Redemption during each calendar year.  A Non-Managing Member may not exercise the 


Redemption Right for less than 5,000 Member Units or, if such Non-Managing Members holds 


less than 5,000 Member Units, all of the Member Units held by such Member.  The Redeeming 


Member shall have no right, with respect to any Member Units so redeemed, to receive any 


distribution paid with respect to Member Units if the record date for such distribution is on or after 


the Specified Redemption Date. 


(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 8.4(a), a Non-Managing Member that 


exercises the Redemption Right shall be deemed to have offered to sell the Member Units 


described in the Notice of Redemption to the Corporate Manager, and the Corporate Manager may, 


in its sole and absolute discretion, elect to purchase directly and acquire such Member Units by 


paying to the Redeeming Member either the Cash Amount or the Corporate Shares Amount, as 


elected by the Corporate Manager (in its sole and absolute discretion), on the Specified 


Redemption Date, whereupon the Corporate Manager shall acquire the Member Units offered for 


redemption by the Redeeming Member and shall be treated for all purposes of this Agreement as 


the owner of such Member Units.  If the Corporate Manager shall elect to exercise its right to 


purchase Member Units under this Section 8.4(b) with respect to a Notice of Redemption, it shall 


so notify the Redeeming Member within five Business Days after the receipt by the Corporate 


Manager of such Notice of Redemption. 


In the event the Corporate Manager shall exercise its right to purchase Member Units with 


respect to the exercise of a Redemption Right in the manner described in the first sentence of this 


Section 8.4(b), the Company shall have no obligation to pay any amount to the Redeeming 


Member with respect to such Redeeming Member’s exercise of such Redemption Right, and each 


of the Redeeming Member, the Company and the Corporate Manager shall treat the transaction 


between the Corporate Manager and the Redeeming Member for federal income tax purposes as a 


sale of the Redeeming Member’s Units to the Corporate Manager.  Each Redeeming Member 


agrees to execute such documents as the Corporate Manager may reasonably require in connection 


with the issuance of Corporate Shares upon exercise of the Redemption Right. 


In the event the Corporate Manager elects to exercise its right to purchase Member Units 


of a Person that is a Tax-Exempt Member as of the date of this Agreement, by issuing the Corporate 


Shares Amount to such Redeeming Member as provided in this Section 8.4(b), then such 


Redeeming Member shall have the right (the “Put Right”) to require Holdco to purchase all or a 


portion of the Member Units held by such Redeeming Member at a redemption price equal to and 


in the form of the Cash Amount to be paid by Holdco on a Specified Redemption Date no later 


than 60 days following the exercise of the Put Right by the Redeeming Member; provided, 


however, that Holdco shall not be obligated to purchase more than seven per cent of the 


outstanding Member Units in any twelve-month period, absent the unanimous consent of Holdco’s 


members.  The Redeeming Member shall exercise the Put Right by notifying the Corporate 


Manager and Holdco within fifteen Business Days of receipt of the notice from the Corporate 


Manager of its election to purchase the Member Units by issuing the Corporate Shares Amount. 







 


39 


If a Tax-Exempt Member exercises its Put Right pursuant to the preceding paragraph, the 


Corporate Manager shall advise all the Tax-Exempt Members of the proposed exercise, and 


specify that any other Tax-Exempt Member that desires to exercise its Put Right at that time notify 


the Corporate Manager within 15 Business Days following the receipt of such notice.  If at the end 


of such 15-Business Day period, less than seven per cent of the outstanding Member Units are the 


subject of a Put Right, the Corporate Manager shall facilitate the purchase by Holdco of the 


Member Units in accordance with the previous paragraph.  If more than seven per cent of the 


outstanding Member Units are the subject of a Put Right at the end of such 15-Business Day period, 


the Corporate Manager shall inquire of Holdco if it is willing to waive the seven per cent cap, and 


if so, to what extent.  If the waiver is sufficient to permit the purchase of all Member Units subject 


to a Put Right, the Corporate Manger shall facilitate the purchase by Holdco of the Member Units 


in accordance with the previous paragraph.  If there are more Member Units subject to the Put 


Right than Holdco is obligated or willing to purchase (because more than seven percent of the 


Member Units are subject to a Put Right, or because there are more Member Units than Holdco is 


willing to purchase above that amount), then Holdco shall acquire from each Tax-Exempt Member 


that indicated an intention to exercise its Put Right that number of Member Units determined by 


multiplying the number of such Tax-Exempt Member’s Member Units that are subject to a Put 


Right by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of Member Units that Holdco is obligated 


or willing to purchase, and the denominator of which is the aggregate number of Member Units as 


to which Put Rights were requested.  Member Units that are not redeemed in accordance with the 


preceding sentence shall be retained by the applicable Tax-Exempt Member until such Tax-


Exempt Member determines to transfer or dispose of such Member Units, including by exercise 


of its Redemption Right with respect to such Member Units (and Put Right, if applicable).    


(c) Each Redeeming Member covenants and agrees that all Member Units (or 


Corporate Shares pursuant to Section 8.4(i) hereof) tendered for redemption pursuant to this 


Section 8.4 will be delivered to the Company, the Corporate Manager or Holdco, as the case may 


be, free and clear of all liens, claims, and encumbrances whatsoever, and should any such liens, 


claims or encumbrances exist or arise with respect to such Member Units (or Corporate Shares 


pursuant to Section 8.4(i) hereof), none of the Company, the Corporate Manger or Holdco shall be 


under any obligation to acquire such Member Units pursuant to Section 8.4(a) or Section 8.4(b) 


hereof or Corporate Shares pursuant to Section 8.4(i) hereof.   


(d) Any Cash Amount to be paid to a Redeeming Member pursuant to this Section 8.4 


shall be paid on the Specified Redemption Date; provided, however, that the Corporate Manager 


may elect to cause the Specified Redemption Date to be delayed for up to an additional 180 days 


to the extent required for the Corporate Manager to cause additional Corporate Shares to be issued 


to provide financing to be used to make such payment of the Cash Amount and may also delay 


such Specified Redemption Date to the extent necessary to effect compliance with applicable 


requirements of law.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporate Manager agrees to use its best 


efforts to cause the closing of the acquisition of redeemed Member Units (and Corporate Shares 


pursuant to Section 8.4(i)) hereunder to occur as quickly as reasonably possible. 


(e) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Corporate Manager is 


authorized to take any action that it determines to be necessary or appropriate to cause the 


Corporate Manager and the Company to comply with any withholding requirements established 







 


40 


under the Code or any other federal, state, local or foreign law that apply upon a Redeeming 


Member’s exercise of the Redemption Right.   


(f) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Corporate Manager 


may place appropriate restrictions on the ability of the Members to exercise their Redemption 


Rights as and if deemed necessary or reasonable to ensure that the Company does not constitute a 


“publicly traded partnership” under Section 7704 of the Code.  If and when the Corporate Manager 


determines that imposing such restrictions is necessary, the Corporate Manager shall give prompt 


written notice thereof to each Member, which notice shall be accompanied by a copy of an opinion 


of counsel to the Company that states that, in the opinion of such counsel, restrictions are necessary 


or reasonable in order to avoid the Company being treated as a “publicly traded partnership” under 


Section 7704 of the Code. 


(g) The exercise by Members of their Redemption Rights shall be subject to the 


provisions of Section 9.2(b).  The rights provided by this Section 8.4 shall be in lieu of any rights 


provided to the Members under Wisconsin Statutes § 196.485(3m)(c)4. 


(h) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, a Redeeming Member may 


expressly condition the effectiveness of any exercise of its Redemption Right, if such exercise will 


result in the issuance of Corporate Shares rather than the payment of cash, upon such Corporate 


Shares being included in a Registration Statement declared effective under the Securities Act and 


sold in an offering pursuant to that Registration Statement.  If such Corporate Shares are not 


permitted to be included in a Registration Statement or are not sold in connection with a registered 


offering, the exercise of the Redemption Right shall be of no force or effect.  If the Shares are not 


sold because they were withdrawn from a proposed offering as permitted by the third paragraph 


of Section 8.5(c), the Redeeming Member shall not be permitted to deliver another Notice of 


Redemption for one year from the withdrawal of the Member Units.  The Corporate Manager and 


the Company shall cooperate with the Redeeming Member and any underwriter to facilitate the 


timely issuance of any Corporate Shares in any such registered offering. 


(i) If a Non-Managing Member is to receive a Cash Amount for all or a portion of its 


Member Units hereunder, whether from the Company, the Corporate Manager or Holdco, it shall 


be obligated to tender a like percentage of any Corporate Shares held by it to the Corporate 


Manager (or Holdco, if the Cash Amount is paid pursuant to the third paragraph of Section 8.4(b)), 


which shall redeem or purchase each such Corporate Share for an amount equal to the Cash 


Amount for one Member Unit; provided that if the Corporate Manager is engaged in any activity 


outside of its ownership or management of the Company (other than pursuant to a  management 


services agreement with the manager of Holdco), the Non-Managing Member or purchaser may 


request that the redemption amount for the Corporate Shares be determined in accordance with the 


definition of Value.  Such Non-Managing Member shall deliver to the Corporate Manager or 


Holdco, as applicable, any certificates evidencing its Corporate Shares, together with appropriate 


instruments of transfer.  


Section 8.5 Registration. 


(a) Shelf Registration Statement.  Upon the written request by Non-Managing Members 


holding Member Units with respect to which an aggregate of at least 1,000,000 Corporate Shares 







 


41 


may be issued upon redemption pursuant to Section 8.4 (“Redemption Shares”) requesting the 


registration of all of such Non-Managing Members’ Redemption Shares pursuant to the Securities 


Act (a “Registration Request”), the Corporate Manager agrees to confidentially submit or file with 


the Commission as soon as reasonably practicable following the Corporate Manager’s receipt of 


such Registration Request a shelf registration statement on Form S-1 or such other form under the 


Securities Act then available to the Corporate Manager providing for the resale of all of the 


Redemption Shares issuable to the Non-Managing Members participating in the Registration 


Request pursuant to Rule 415 from time to time (a “Shelf Registration Statement”); provided 


however, that not more than two such registrations may occur each year.  Except as provided in this 


Section 8.5, the Corporate Manager shall use its best efforts to cause such Shelf Registration 


Statement to be declared effective by the Commission as soon as reasonably practicable after the 


initial submission or filing thereof and to keep such Shelf Registration Statement effective for a 


period of at least 180 days.  Any Shelf Registration Statement shall provide for the resale from time 


to time, and pursuant to any customary method or combination of customary methods legally 


available (including, without limitation, an underwritten offering, a direct sale to purchasers or a sale 


through brokers or agents) by the holders of the Corporate Shares covered by such Shelf Registration 


Statement.  In connection therewith, the Corporate Manager will, within 20 days after receipt of any 


Registration Request, provide written notice of the Registration Request to the Non-Managing 


Members not a party to the Registration Request offering to them the right to include all of their 


Redemption Shares in the Registration Statement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporate 


Manager shall not be obligated to effect a registration pursuant to this Section 8.5 during the period 


starting with the date 45 days prior to the Corporate Manager’s estimated date of filing of, and ending 


on a date 180 days following the effective date of, a registration statement pertaining to an 


underwritten public offering of Corporate Shares for the account of the Corporate Manager (an “IPO 


Registration Statement”).  In addition, if, while a Registration Request is pending pursuant to this 


Section 8.5, the Corporate Manager has determined in good faith that (i) the filing of a registration 


statement could jeopardize or delay any contemplated material transaction or would require the 


disclosure of material information that the Corporate Manager had a bona fide business purpose for 


preserving as confidential; (ii) the Corporate Manager then is unable to comply with requirements 


of the Commission applicable to the requested registration (notwithstanding its commercially 


reasonable efforts to so comply) or (iii) or the Corporate Manager has not received any required state 


approvals despite commercially reasonable efforts to obtain the same, the Corporate Manager shall 


not be required to effect a registration pursuant to this Section 8.5 until the earlier of (x) the date 


upon which such contemplated transaction is completed or abandoned or such material information 


is otherwise disclosed to the public or ceases to be material or the Corporate Manager is able to so 


comply with applicable Commission requirements or received state approvals, as the case may be, 


or (y) 45 days after the Corporate Manager makes such good faith determination.   


 


(b) IPO Registration.  If the Corporate Manager proposes to file an IPO Registration 


Statement on Form S-1 or such other form under the Securities Act providing for the initial public 


offering of Corporate Shares for the account of the Corporate Manager, the Corporate Manager will 


notify in writing each Non-Managing Member of the filing within five business days after the initial 


filing and afford each Non-Managing Member an opportunity to include in the IPO Registration 


Statement all or any part of the Corporate Shares then held by such Non-Managing Member or 


Redemption Shares issuable to such Non-Managing Member (collectively, “Registrable Shares”).  


Each Non-Managing Member desiring to include in the IPO Registration Statement all or part of the 







 


42 


Registrable Shares held by such Non-Managing Member shall, within 20 days after receipt of the 


above-described notice from the Corporate Manager, so notify the Corporate Manager in writing, 


and in such notice shall inform the Corporate Manager of the number of Registrable Shares such 


Non-Managing Member wishes to include in the IPO Registration Statement and, if any such 


Registrable Shares are Redemption Shares, shall include a Notice of Redemption in accordance with 


the requirements of Section 8.4.  Any election by any Non-Managing Member to include any 


Registrable Shares in the IPO Registration Statement will (A) be binding upon such Non-Managing 


Member thereafter except that a Non-Managing Member may withdraw such Non-Managing 


Member’s Registrable Shares from inclusion in the IPO Registration Statement in accordance with 


the provisions in the third paragraph of Section 8.5(g) hereof and (B) not affect the inclusion of such 


Registrable Shares in the Shelf Registration Statement until such Registrable Shares have been sold 


under the IPO Registration Statement. 


 


The Corporate Manager shall have the right to terminate or withdraw the IPO Registration Statement 


initiated by it and referred to in this Section 8.5(b) whether or not any Non-Managing Member has 


elected to include Registrable Shares in such registration; provided, however, the Corporate Manager 


must provide each Non-Managing Member that elected to include any Registrable Shares in such 


IPO Registration Statement prompt written notice of such termination or withdrawal.  Furthermore, 


in the event the IPO Registration Statement is not declared effective within 120 days following the 


initial filing of the IPO Registration Statement, unless a road show for the initial public offering 


pursuant to the IPO Registration Statement is actually in progress at such time, the Corporate 


Manager shall promptly provide a new written notice to all Non-Managing Members giving them 


another opportunity to elect to include Registrable Shares in the pending IPO Registration Statement.  


Each Non-Managing Member receiving such notice shall have the same election rights afforded 


such Non-Managing Member as described in Section 8.5(b) above.  


 


(c) Underwriting.  The Corporate Manager shall advise all Non-Managing Members of 


the lead managing underwriter(s) for the underwritten offering proposed under the IPO Registration 


Statement or a Shelf Registration Statement.  The right of any such Non-Managing Member to 


include its Registrable Shares in the IPO Registration Statement pursuant to Section 8.5(b) or in an 


underwritten public offering under a Shelf Registration Statement shall be conditioned upon such 


Non-Managing Member’s participation in such underwriting and the inclusion of such Non-


Managing Member’s Registrable Shares in the underwriting to the extent provided herein.  All Non-


Managing Members proposing to distribute their Registrable Shares through such underwriting shall 


enter into an underwriting agreement in customary form with the managing underwriter(s) selected 


for such underwriting and complete and execute any questionnaires, powers of attorney, indemnities, 


custody agreements, securities escrow agreements and other documents, including opinions of 


counsel, reasonably required under the terms of such underwriting, and furnish to the Corporate 


Manager such information regarding such Non-Managing Member, the Corporate Shares it proposes 


to sell and the manner of sale, as the Corporate Manager may reasonably request in writing for 


inclusion in the IPO Registration Statement relating to such initial public offering or in the Shelf 


Registration Statement and prospectus or prospectus supplement in any underwritten public offering 


under the Shelf Registration Statement; provided, however, that no Non-Managing Member shall be 


required to make any representations or warranties to or agreements with the Corporate Manager or 


the underwriters other than representations, warranties or agreements (1) regarding such Non-


Managing Member, its ownership of Corporate Shares and Member Units, and such Non-Managing 







 


43 


Member’s intended method of distribution, (2) required by law or (3) reasonably requested by the 


underwriters.  In connection with any underwritten public offering under the IPO Registration 


Statement or Shelf Registration Statement, the Corporate Manager shall use its best efforts to comply 


with all applicable laws, rules and regulations and shall enter into and perform an underwriting 


agreement with the managing underwriter containing representations, warranties, indemnities, 


holdbacks and other terms and conditions, and shall deliver or arrange delivery of opinions of 


counsel, accountant’s consents and comfort letters, and other deliverables, all as are customary for 


underwritten public offerings.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if the 


managing underwriter(s) determine(s) in good faith that marketing factors require a limitation on the 


number of shares to be included in the offering, then the managing underwriter(s) may exclude shares 


(including Registrable Shares) from the IPO Registration Statement and initial public offering or 


from any underwritten public offering under a Shelf Registration Statement.  Any shares included in 


the IPO Registration Statement or Shelf Registration Statement shall be allocated first, to the 


Corporate Manager, and second, to each of the Non-Managing Members requesting inclusion of 


their Registrable Shares in such IPO Registration Statement or Shelf Registration Statement (on a 


pro rata basis based on the total number of Registrable Shares then held by each such Non-Managing 


Member who is requesting inclusion). 


 


Each holder of Registrable Shares shall be subject to, and each will be released on an equal 


basis from, customary lock-ups in connection with any underwritten offerings (180 days, in the case 


of the IPO Registration Statement, and 90 days, in the case of any Shelf Registration Statement), 


except to the extent the underwriter(s) agree to a shorter lock-up period.  In addition, the Corporate 


Manager shall use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain similar lock-up agreements from its 


directors, executive officers and Persons holding five percent or more of the outstanding Corporate 


Shares, if so requested by the underwriters(s).   


 


 If any Non-Managing Member disapproves of the terms of any such underwriting, such Non-


Managing Member may elect to withdraw therefrom by written notice to the Corporate Manager and 


the managing underwriter(s), delivered by the later of (i) two Business Days after the Listing price 


range is communicated by the Corporate Manager to such Non-Managing Member and (ii) 


ten Business Days prior to the effective date of the IPO Registration Statement.  Any Registrable 


Shares excluded or withdrawn from such underwriting shall be excluded and withdrawn from the 


registration. 


 


(d) JOBS ACT  Submissions.  For purposes of this Agreement, if the Corporate Manager 


is eligible, and elects, to confidentially submit a draft of a Shelf Registration Statement with the 


Commission pursuant to the JOBS Act, the initial confidential submission of the draft Shelf 


Registration Statement with the Commission shall be deemed to be a filing with the Commission for 


purposes of this Section 8.5. 


(e) Listing on Securities Exchange.  If the Corporate Manager shall list or maintain the 


listing of any Corporate Shares on any securities exchange or national market system, it will at its 


expense and as necessary to permit the registration and sale of the Registrable Shares hereunder, 


list thereon, maintain and, when necessary, increase such listing to include such Registrable 


Shares. 







 


44 


(f) Registration Not Required.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporate Manager 


shall not be required to file or maintain the effectiveness of a registration statement relating to 


Registrable Shares after the first date upon which, in the opinion of counsel to the Corporate 


Manager, all of the Registrable Shares covered thereby could be sold by the holders thereof in any 


period of three months pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act, or any successor rule thereto. 


(g) Allocation of Expenses.  The Corporate Manager shall pay all expenses in 


connection with the registration of the Non-Managing Members’ Registrable Shares, including 


without limitation (i) all expenses incident to filing with FINRA, (ii) registration fees, (iii) printing 


expenses, (iv) accounting and legal fees and expenses, except to the extent holders of Registrable 


Shares elect to engage accountants or attorneys in addition to the accountants and attorneys 


engaged by the Corporate Manager or the Company, (v) accounting expenses incident to or 


required by any such registration or qualification and (vi) expenses of complying with the 


securities or blue sky laws of any jurisdictions in connection with such registration or qualification; 


provided, however, the Corporate Manager and the Company shall not be liable for (A) any 


discounts or commissions to any underwriter or broker attributable to the sale of Registrable 


Shares, (B) the fees and expenses of counsel to the Non-Managing Members or (C) any fees or 


expenses incurred by holders of Registrable Shares in connection with such registration that, 


according to the written instructions of any regulatory authority, the Corporate Manager or the 


Company is not permitted to pay.  Each Non-Managing Member participating in a registration 


pursuant to this Section 8.5 shall bear such Non-Managing Member’s proportionate share (based on 


the total number of Registrable Shares sold in such registration) of all discounts and commissions 


payable to underwriters or brokers and all transfer taxes and transfer fees in connection with a 


registration of Registrable Shares pursuant to this Agreement. 


(h) It shall be a condition precedent to the obligations of the Corporate Manager to take 


any action pursuant to this Section 8.5 that the Non-Managing Members proposing to sell 


Corporate Shares shall furnish to the Corporate Manager such information regarding them, the 


Corporate Shares held by them, and the intended method of disposition of such securities and such 


other matters as may be required by the Securities Act and other applicable laws and regulations 


as the Corporate Manager shall request and as shall be required in connection with the action to be 


taken by the Corporate Manager. 


(i) Indemnification. 


(i) In connection with the Registration Statement, the Corporate Manager and 


the Company agree to indemnify holders (and each Person who controls such holder within 


the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act) of Registrable Shares against all losses, 


claims, damages, liabilities and expenses (including reasonable costs of investigation) 


caused by any untrue, or alleged untrue, statement of a material fact contained in the 


Registration Statement, preliminary prospectus or prospectus (as amended or 


supplemented if the Corporate Manager shall have furnished any amendments or 


supplements thereto) or caused by any omission or alleged omission, to state therein a 


material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not 


misleading, except insofar as such losses, claims, damages, liabilities or expenses are 


caused by any untrue statement, alleged untrue statement, omission, or alleged omission 


based upon information furnished to the Corporate Manager by any holder of Registrable 







 


45 


Shares covered by the Registration Statement expressly for use therein.  The Corporate 


Manager and each officer, director and controlling person of the Corporate Manager shall 


be indemnified by a holder of Registrable Shares covered by the Registration Statement 


for all such losses, claims, damages, liabilities and expenses (including reasonable costs of 


investigation) caused by any untrue, or alleged untrue, statement or any such omission, or 


alleged omission, based upon information furnished to the Corporate Manager expressly 


for use therein in a writing signed by such holder. 


(ii) Promptly upon receipt by a party indemnified under this Section 8.5(i) of 


notice of the commencement of any action against such indemnified party in respect of 


which indemnity or reimbursement may be sought against any indemnifying party under 


this Section 8.5(i), such indemnified party shall notify the Corporate Manager in writing 


of the commencement of such action, but the failure to so notify the Corporate Manager 


shall not relieve it of any liability that it may have to any indemnified party otherwise than 


under this Section 8.5(i) unless such failure shall materially adversely affect the defense of 


such action.  In case notice of commencement of any such action shall be given to the 


Corporate Manager as above provided, the Corporate Manager shall be entitled to 


participate in and, to the extent it may wish, jointly with any other indemnifying party 


similarly notified, to assume the defense of such action at its own expense, with counsel 


chosen by it and reasonably satisfactory to such indemnified party.  The indemnified party 


shall have the right to employ separate counsel in any such action and participate in the 


defense thereof, but the fees and expenses of such counsel (other than reasonable costs of 


investigation) shall be paid by the indemnified party unless (i) the Corporate Manager or 


the Company agrees to pay the same, (ii) the Corporate Manager fails to assume the defense 


of such action with counsel reasonably satisfactory to the indemnified party or (iii) the 


named parties to any such action (including any impleaded parties) have been advised by 


such counsel that representation of such indemnified party and the Corporate Manager by 


the same counsel would be inappropriate under applicable standards of professional 


conduct (in which case the Corporate Manager shall not have the right to assume the 


defense of such action on behalf of such indemnified party).  No indemnifying party shall 


be liable for any settlement entered into without its consent. 


(j) Contribution. 


(i) If for any reason the indemnification provisions contemplated by Section 


8.5(i) are either unavailable or insufficient to hold harmless an indemnified party in respect 


of any losses, claims, damages or liabilities referred to therein, then the party that would 


otherwise be required to provide indemnification or the indemnifying party (in either case, 


for purposes of this Section 8.5(j), the “Indemnifying Party”) in respect of such losses, 


claims, damages or liabilities, shall contribute to the amount paid or payable by the party 


that would otherwise be entitled to indemnification or the indemnified party (in either case, 


for purposes of this Section 8.5(j), the “Indemnified Party”) as a result of such losses, 


claims, damages, liabilities or expense, in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the 


relative fault of the Indemnifying Party and the Indemnified Party, as well as any other 


relevant equitable considerations.  The relative fault of the Indemnifying Party and 


Indemnified Party shall be determined by reference to, among other things, whether the 


untrue or alleged untrue statement of a material fact or omission or alleged omission to 







 


46 


state a material fact related to information supplied by the Indemnifying Party or 


Indemnified Party, and the parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to information and 


opportunity to correct or prevent such statement or omission.  The amount paid or payable 


by a party as a result of the losses, claims, damages, liabilities and expenses referred to 


above shall be deemed to include any legal or other fees or expenses reasonably incurred 


by such party.  In no event shall any holder of Redemption Shares covered by the 


Registration Statement be required to contribute an amount greater than the dollar amount 


of the proceeds received by such holder from the sale of Redemption Shares pursuant to 


the registration giving rise to the liability. 


(ii) The parties hereto agree that it would not be just and equitable if 


contributions pursuant to this Section 8.5(j) were determined by pro rata allocation (even 


if the holders or any underwriters or all of them were treated as one entity for such purpose) 


or by any other method of allocation that does not take account of the equitable 


considerations referred to in the immediately preceding paragraph.  No person or entity 


determined to have committed a fraudulent misrepresentation (within the meaning of 


§11(f) of the Securities Act) shall be entitled to contribution from any person or entity who 


was not guilty of such fraudulent misrepresentation. 


(iii) The contribution provided for in this Section 8.5(j) shall survive the 


termination of this Agreement and shall remain in full force and effect regardless of any 


investigation made by or on behalf of any Indemnified Party. 


ARTICLE IX 


 


TRANSFER 


Section 9.1 Purchase Not for Distribution. 


(a) Each Member hereby represents and warrants to the Company that the acquisition 


of its Member Interest is made as a principal for its account and not with a view to the resale or 


distribution of such Member Interest. 


(b) Each Member agrees that it will not sell, assign or otherwise transfer its Member 


Interest or any fraction thereof, whether voluntarily or by operation of law or at judicial sale or 


otherwise, to any Person who does not make the representations and warranties to the Company 


set forth in Section 9.1(a) above and similarly agree not to sell, assign or transfer such Member 


Interest or fraction thereof to any Person who does not similarly represent, warrant and agree. 


Section 9.2 Restrictions on Transfer of Member Interests. 


(a) Prior to the consummation of any Transfer under this Article IX, the transferor 


and/or the transferee shall deliver to the Corporate Manager such opinions, certificates and other 


documents as the Corporate Manager shall reasonably request in connection with such Transfer. 


(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, including the provisions 


of Section 8.4, no Member may effect a Transfer of its Member Interest, in whole or in part: 







 


47 


(i) If, in the opinion of legal counsel for the Company, such proposed Transfer 


would require the registration of the Member Interest under the Securities Act or would 


otherwise violate any applicable federal or state securities or blue sky law (including 


investment suitability standards); 


(ii) If in the opinion of legal counsel for the Company, such Transfer would 


cause the Company to be regarded as a publicly-traded partnership under Code Section 


7704; or 


(iii) If such proposed Transfer would cause a termination of the partnership for 


tax purposes under Code Section 708(b)(1)(B) (because of the Transfer in any 12-month 


period of 50% or more of the capital and profits of the Company). 


Section 9.3 Reserved. 


Section 9.4 Admission of Substitute Member. 


(a) Subject to the other provisions of this Article IX, an assignee of the Member Interest 


of a Non-Managing Member (which shall be understood to include any purchaser, transferee, 


donee or other recipient of any disposition of such Member Interest) shall be deemed admitted as 


a Member of the Company only with the consent of the Corporate Manager (which shall not be 


unreasonably withheld) and upon the satisfactory completion of the following: 


(i) The assignee shall have accepted and agreed to be bound by the terms and 


provisions of this Agreement by executing a counterpart or an amendment thereof, 


including a revised Schedule A, and such other documents or instruments as the Corporate 


Manager may require in order to effect the admission of such Person as a Member. 


(ii) To the extent required, an amended certificate evidencing the admission of 


such Person as a Member shall have been signed, acknowledged and filed for record to the 


extent required by the Act. 


(iii) The assignee shall have delivered a letter containing the representation set 


forth in Section 9.1(a) hereof and the agreement set forth in Section 9.1(b) hereof. 


(iv) If the assignee is an entity, the assignee shall have provided the Corporate 


Manager with evidence satisfactory to counsel for the Company of the assignee’s authority 


to become a Member under the terms and provisions of this Agreement. 


(v) The assignee shall have executed a power of attorney containing the terms 


and provisions set forth in Section 8.2 hereof. 


(vi) The assignee shall have paid all legal fees and other expenses of the 


Company and the Corporate Manager and filing and publication costs, if any, in connection 


with its substitution as a Member. 


Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Member that acquires the Membership Interests of another 


Member shall be deemed to be automatically admitted as a Member with respect to such acquired 







 


48 


Member Interests, and the acquiring Member shall be deemed to have made all representations 


and covenants on account of such acquired Member Interests, without further action on the part of 


the acquiring Member or Corporate Manager. 


(b) For the purpose of allocating Profits and Losses and distributing cash received by 


the Company, a Substitute Member shall be treated as having become, and appearing in the records 


of the Company as, a Member at the end of the month in which the filing of the certificate described 


in Section 9.4(a)(ii) hereof occur or if no such filing is required, the end of the month in which 


occurs the later of the date specified in the transfer documents or the date on which the Corporate 


Manager has received all necessary instruments of transfer and substitution. 


(c) The Corporate Manager shall cooperate with the Person seeking to become a 


Substitute Member by preparing the documentation required by this Section and making all official 


filings and publications.  The Company shall take all such action as promptly as practicable after 


the satisfaction of the conditions in this Article IX to the admission of such Person as a Member 


of the Company. 


Section 9.5 Rights of Assignees of Members Interests. 


(a) Subject to the provisions of Section 9.2 hereof, except as required by operation of 


law, the Company shall not be obligated for any purposes whatsoever to recognize the assignment 


by any Member of its Member Interest until the Company has received notice thereof. 


(b) Any Person who is the assignee of all or any portion of a Member Interest, but does 


not become a Substitute Member and desires to make a further assignment of such Member 


Interest, shall be subject to all the provisions of this Article IX to the same extent and in the same 


manner as any Member desiring to make an assignment of its Member Interest. 


Section 9.6 Effect of Bankruptcy or Termination of a Non-Managing Member. 


The occurrence of an Event of Bankruptcy as to a Non-Managing Member or the 


dissolution or termination of a Non-Managing Member shall not cause the termination or 


dissolution of the Company, and the business of the Company shall continue.  The trustee or 


receiver of a bankrupt Non-Managing Member, or its representative shall have the rights of such 


Member for the purpose of settling or managing its property and such power as the bankrupt, 


dissolved or terminated Member possessed to assign all or any part of its Member Interest and to 


join with the assignee in satisfying conditions precedent to the admission of the assignee as a 


Substitute Member. 


Section 9.7 Month-End Convention. 


For purposes of this Agreement, all transfers of Member Interests shall be deemed to take 


place at the end of the month in which the transfer actually occurs. 







 


49 


ARTICLE X 


 


AMENDMENTS; VOTING 


Section 10.1 Amendments. 


This Agreement may be amended by the affirmative vote of a Majority in Interest of the 


Non-Managing Members; provided, that if any proposed amendment pursuant to Sections 10(a), 


(b), (c) or (d) below would accord different treatment to (i) Members that are not Holdco than (ii) 


Holdco (other than based on their respective Percentage Interests), the consent of Holdco and a 


majority of Non-Managing Members that are not Holdco (by Percentage Interest) will be required: 


(a) Any amendment to modify the provisions of Sections 2.7, 3.4 or 3.6; 


(b) any amendment to modify the provisions of Article VI relating to the allocation of 


Profits and Losses and the distribution of cash to Members, except in accordance with Section 3.7; 


provided, however, the dividend rate shall be subject to adjustment by a majority vote of the board 


of directors of the Corporate Manager; 


(c) any amendment that would impose on the Members any obligation to make 


additional Capital Contributions to the Company; or 


(d) any amendment to this Section 10.1. 


Section 10.2 Amendments Requiring Consent of Voting Members. 


(a) Notwithstanding Section 10.1, except to the extent that PLR-104930-07 has been 


amended or supplemented in any enforceable manner as described in Section 11.8(b), any 


amendment to Section 6.1(a), 6.2(a), 6.2(g) or to the definition of Excess Tax Expense Recovery 


Income, Partially Taxable Member, Member’s Tax Expense Recovery Income Distributable 


Amount, Taxable Member, Tax-Exempt Member, or Tax Expense Recovery Income shall require 


the consent of each of the Voting Members.   


(b) Any amendment to the provisions of Sections 2.3, 2.5, 5.6, 7.4(a), 8.4(b) or this 


Section 10.2, or to the definitions of “Merchant Transmission Project,” “Transmission Area,” 


“Value” and “Voting Members” shall require the consent of each of the Voting Members. 


Section 10.3 Limitations on Voting.   


(a) Notwithstanding any other provision hereof (except as provided in Section 10.3(b) 


below), other than Fundamental Matters, a Dominant Member shall not be entitled independently 


to vote, or consent with respect to, in excess of a Percentage Interest of 34.07%.  The remaining 


Member Units held by a Dominant Member shall be voted, or consented with respect to, in 


proportion to the way in which the other Members who are not affiliated with a Dominant Member 


vote or consent their respective Member Units.  In addition, a Dominant Member shall not be 


permitted to use its voting power in the Company to initiate a Fundamental Matter, or otherwise 


seek or propose to amend the governing documents of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to 







 


50 


provide voting or consent rights with respect to a matter that does not, as of January 14, 2015, 


require a vote or consent of the Members.  


(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the voting limitation on a Dominant Member set 


forth in Section 10.3(a) above shall not operate or be applied in a manner that would provide 


another Member (or affiliated group of Members) with voting power in excess of the voting power 


of a Dominant Member.  To the extent that the limitation set forth in the preceding sentence shall 


apply, the Member Units that would have been voted in excess of such voting power shall be voted, 


or consented with respect to, by such Dominant Member in proportion to the way in which the 


other Members vote, or consent with respect to, their respective Member Units.  For the avoidance 


of doubt (1) all Member Units shall be voted and (2) the reference to “other Members” in the 


preceding sentence shall exclude (i) any Members affiliated with the Dominant Member and (ii) 


any Member (or affiliated group of Members) that has or would have voting power in excess of 


the voting power of a Dominant Member.  For purposes of this paragraph, the voting power of a 


Member shall include any Member Units voted or consented (or to be voted or consented) by a 


Dominant Member in the way in which such Member votes.  


(c) This Section 10.3 may not be amended without the consent of Holdco. 


ARTICLE XI 


 


MISCELLANEOUS 


Section 11.1 Notices. 


All notices, consents, requests, demands, offers, reports or other communications required 


or permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and considered properly 


given or made (i) upon receipt, when personally delivered to the person entitled thereto, (ii) on the 


third business day, when sent by certified or registered United States mail in a sealed envelope, 


with postage prepaid, (iii) on the next business day, when sent by overnight courier, addressed, if 


to the Company, at its address set forth in Section 2.1, and if to a Member, to the address set forth 


opposite such Member’s name on Schedule A, and (iv) upon the sender’s receipt of an 


acknowledgment from the intended recipient (such as by the “return receipt requested” function, 


as available, return email, or other written acknowledgement, and provided that if the email or 


other electronic communication is sent after the normal business hours of the recipient, such email 


or electronic communication shall be deemed to have been sent on the next business day), when 


sent electronically (including email and internet or intranet websites).  Any Member may change 


its address, telephone numbers or email by giving notice to the Corporate Manager.  The Company 


may change its address by giving notice to each of its Members.  


Section 11.2 Entire Agreement. 


This Agreement embodies the entire understanding and agreement among the Members 


concerning the Company, and supersedes any and all prior negotiations, understandings or 


agreements with respect thereto. 







 


51 


Section 11.3 Interpretation and Construction. 


The headings and captions in this Agreement are inserted for convenience and 


identification only and are in no way intended to define, limit or expand the scope and intent of 


this Agreement or any provision hereof.  The references to Sections and Articles in this Agreement 


are to the Sections and Articles of this Agreement, except where otherwise indicated.  Where the 


context so requires, the masculine shall include the feminine and the neuter, and singular shall 


include the plural. 


Section 11.4 Counterparts. 


This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterpart copies, each of which shall be 


considered an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 


Section 11.5 Binding on Successors. 


This Agreement and all of the terms and provisions hereof shall be binding upon, and inure 


to the benefit of, the Members and their respective successors and assigns. 


Section 11.6 Severability. 


If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any Person or circumstance 


shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, the validity and 


enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement or the application of such provision to any other 


Persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby, and each provision of this Agreement shall 


be valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law in every jurisdiction. 


Section 11.7 Rights and Remedies. 


The rights and remedies provided in this Agreement are cumulative, and the use of any one 


right or remedy by any party shall not preclude or waive its right to the use of any or all other 


rights and remedies.  Such rights and remedies are given to such party in addition to any other 


rights and remedies such party may have by law, rule, regulation or otherwise. 


Section 11.8 Economic Benefit. 


(a) This Agreement evidences the intent of the Members with respect to the matters 


covered hereby, and reflects the agreed allocation of benefits and burdens among the Members.  


If, as a consequence of regulatory reviews or approvals, certain changes are required, the Members 


agree to negotiate in good faith so as to restore, as much as practically feasible, the original 


allocation of benefits and burdens among the Members. 


(b) In the event that the allocation of the Tax Expense Recovery Income set forth in 


Section 6.1(a)(i) results in an amount of Excess Tax Expense Recovery Income being allocated to 


one or more Members, then: 


(i) The Corporate Manager shall separately account for such Excess Tax 


Expense Recovery Income and credit such amounts to the affected Members’ Capital 







 


52 


Accounts as non-refundable, additional paid-in capital for which no additional Member 


Units shall be issued.  However, such separate accounting shall not involve the creation of 


any separate capital account for such Member that would be contrary to the requirements 


of Section 704(b) of the Code or the terms of PLR-104930-07.  Except as provided by 


Section 6.5 of this Agreement, no cash distribution approved by the Corporate Manager 


shall include a cash distribution of any Excess Tax Expense Recovery Income separately 


accounted for and credited to Members’ Capital Accounts, regardless of whether such 


amounts have been permanently invested. 


(ii) If the amount of Excess Tax Expense Recovery Income allocated to 


Members in any given year is not substantive, then the amount of Excess Tax Expense 


Recovery Income credited to Members’ Capital Accounts during that year shall be 


permanently invested as non-refundable, additional paid-in capital for which no additional 


Member Units shall be issued. 


(iii) If at the time Corporate Manager’s budget for the next full calendar year is 


posted to the Open Access Same-Time Information System (which occurs on or about 


October 1 of each year), the amount of Excess Tax Expense Recovery Income allocated to 


Members for the next full calendar year will be substantive, the Corporate Manager shall 


take all necessary and appropriate actions with the Service to obtain an amendment or 


supplement to PLR-104930-07 in any enforceable manner that allows (a) the allocation in 


future years of Tax Expense Recovery Income among the Members in amounts that are 


reasonably equal to each Member’s federal, state, or local income taxes and franchise taxes 


that are included in the Corporate Manager’s calculation of Tax Expense Recovery Income, 


and (b) a retroactive reallocation of the Excess Tax Expense Recovery Income credited to 


Members’ Capital Accounts in that year such that the allocation of Tax Expense Recovery 


Income for each calendar year recovery period is consistent with the allocation defined in 


subsection (a). 


(iv) In connection with Section 11.8(b)(iii): 


(A) Should the Service amend or supplement PLR-104930-07 in any 


enforceable manner consistent with Section 11.8(b)(iii)(a) and (b), then all future 


allocations of Tax Expense Recovery Income among the Members shall be 


reasonably equal to each Member’s federal, state, or local income taxes and 


franchise taxes that are included in the Corporate Manager’s calculation of Tax 


Expense Recovery Income, and the Excess Tax Expense Recovery Income credited 


to Members’ Capital Accounts for each calendar year recovery period shall be 


reallocated accordingly. 


(B) Should the Service amend or supplement PLR-104930-07 in any 


enforceable manner consistent with Section 11.8(b)(iii)(a) but declines to amend or 


supplement such PLR in any enforceable manner consistent with Section 


11.8(b)(iii)(b), then all future allocations of Tax Expense Recovery Income among 


the Members shall be reasonably equal to each Member’s federal, state, or local 


income taxes and franchise taxes that are included in the Corporate Manager’s 


calculation of Tax Expense Recovery Income. 







 


53 


(C) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, unless the Service 


amends or supplements PLR-104930-07 in any enforceable manner consistent with 


Section 11.8(b)(iii)(a) and/or (b), all allocations of Tax Expense Recovery Income 


properly made pursuant to Section 6.1 of this Agreement shall be binding and final. 


(c) Each Member agrees that the agreements set forth herein and in the other 


documents pertaining to the formation of the Company and the Corporate Manager reflect 


extensive negotiations and compromises among the Members.  To that end, each Member agrees 


that any filings or communications by it with any regulatory authority will not contradict the 


positions set forth herein, in the Charter and By-laws of the Corporate Manager, and further, that 


any filings or communications by it with any regulatory authority will support, to the extent 


applicable, the positions set forth herein and in such other documents, excluding issues concerning 


the Company’s tariff and rates.  Each Member shall retain its right to take independent legal or 


regulatory positions regarding any other aspect of the Company, including its tariff and rates. 







[ATC LLC Operating Agreement Signature Page] 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date 


set forth above. 


ATC MANAGEMENT INC.  


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


ATC HOLDCO LLC 


 By ATC Development Manager Inc., its Corporate   


       Manager  


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


ADAMS-COLUMBIA ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE  


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


ALGER DELTA COOPERATIVE ELECTRIC 


 ASSOCIATION  


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


CITY OF ALGOMA  


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 







 


[ATC LLC Operating Agreement Signature Page] 


 


  







 


[ATC LLC Operating Agreement Signature Page] 


 


WPL TRANSCO LLC 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


BADGER POWER MARKETING AUTHORITY  


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


CENTRAL WISCONSIN ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


CLOVERLAND ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


CITY OF COLUMBUS 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


ATC HOLDING LLC 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 







 


[ATC LLC Operating Agreement Signature Page] 


 


CITY OF KAUKAUNA 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


MANITOWOC PUBLIC UTILITIES 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


MARSHFIELD ELECTRIC AND WATER 


DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF MARSHFIELD 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


MGE TRANSCO INVESTMENT LLC 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


CITY OF OCONTO FALLS  


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


ONTONAGON COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIFICATION 


ASSOCIATION 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 







 


[ATC LLC Operating Agreement Signature Page] 


 


CITY OF PLYMOUTH 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


RAINY RIVER ENERGY CORPORATION- 


WISCONSIN  


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


REEDSBURG UTILITY COMMISSION 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


ROCK ENERGY COOPERATIVE 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


CITY OF SHEBOYGAN FALLS 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


STOUGHTON UTILITIES 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 







 


[ATC LLC Operating Agreement Signature Page] 


 


CITY OF STURGEON BAY 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


CITY OF SUN PRAIRIE 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


UPPER PENINSULA PUBLIC POWER AGENCY 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


WISCONSIN ELECTRIC POWER COMPANY 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


CITY OF WISCONSIN RAPIDS 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 


WPPI ENERGY 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 







 


[ATC LLC Operating Agreement Signature Page] 


 


WPS INVESTMENTS, LLC 


By:   


Name:  


Title: 


 







SCHEDULE A-1 


SCHEDULE A 


[TO BE INSERTED] 


Member Capital Contribution  Number of Units Percentage Interest 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







EXHIBIT A-1 


EXHIBIT A 


NOTICE OF EXERCISE OF REDEMPTION RIGHT 


In accordance with Section 8.4 of the Amended and Restated Operating Agreement, as 


amended to date (the “Agreement”), of American Transmission Company LLC (the “Company”), 


the undersigned hereby[, but subject to Section 8.4(h),] [irrevocably] (i) presents for redemption 


Member Units in the Company in accordance with the terms of the Agreement and the Redemption 


Right referred to in Section 8.4 thereof; (ii) surrenders such Member Units and all right, title and 


interest therein; (iii) if the Cash Amount is to be paid (either by the Company or ATC Holdco 


LLC), presents a proportionate number of Corporate Shares held by the undersigned (duly 


endorsed for transfer, or accompanied by executed stock powers) and surrenders such Corporate 


Shares and all right, title and interest therein; and (iv) directs that the Cash Amount or Corporate 


Shares Amount (as defined in the Agreement), as determined by the Corporate Manager (as 


defined in the Agreement), deliverable upon exercise of the Redemption Right, be delivered to the 


address specified below, and if Corporate Shares (as defined in the Agreement) are to be delivered, 


such Corporate Shares be registered or placed in the name(s) and at the address(es) specified below 


(subject, in the case where Corporate Shares are to be issued, to Section 8.4(b)of the Agreement). 


Dated:   ,   


 


Name of Member: 


 


        


(Signature of Member) 


 


        


(Mailing Address) 


 


        


(City)  (State)  (Zip Code) 


 


        


Signature Guaranteed by: 


 


If Corporate Shares are to be issued, issue to:         


Please insert social security or identifying number:        


Name:              


 







 


EXHIBIT B-1 


 


EXHIBIT B 


DISPUTE RESOLUTION  


PROVISIONS 


ARTICLE I 


 


APPLICABILITY AND DEFINITIONS 


Section 1.1 Applicability. 


The dispute resolution procedures set forth herein shall be applicable, under the conditions 


hereinafter provided, to all disputes relating to the interpretation and application of the terms and 


conditions of the Transco Agreements arising between or among the Members (whether as 


Members or as a party to a Transco Agreement), between the Members and the Company; 


provided, however, that these dispute resolution procedures do not apply to any matters covered 


by the dispute resolution procedures of the OATT.  Nothing in this Exhibit is intended to restrict 


or expand existing state or federal laws or regulatory authorities. 


Section 1.2 Definitions. 


Capitalized terms used herein and not defined herein shall have the respective meanings 


assigned to such terms in the Amended and Restated Operating Agreement to which these Dispute 


Resolution Provisions are attached.  The following terms shall have the meanings set forth below: 


“Committee” means the Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee established by the 


Board of Directors of the Corporate Manager in accordance with Article V to this Exhibit. 


“Corporate Manager Governing Documents” means the Second Amended and Restated 


Articles of Incorporation and Fourth Amended and Restated By-laws of the Corporate Manager, 


as the same may be amended from time to time. 


“FPA” means the Federal Power Act, as amended. 


“Members” means the Members of the Company, including the Corporate Manager acting 


in its capacity as manager. 


“OATT” means open access transmission tariff of the Company currently approved by 


FERC. 


“Transco Agreements” means the Company Amended and Restated Operating 


Agreement, the Corporate Manager Governing Documents, Operations & Maintenance 


Agreements, Attachment Agreements, Network Operating Agreements, Generation-Transmission 


Interconnection Agreements, Transmission-Distribution Interconnection Agreements, Forming 


Party Agreement, and all Schedules, Exhibits and Appendices to such Agreements. 







 


EXHIBIT B-2 


 


ARTICLE II 


 


INFORMAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURES 


Section 2.1 When Required. 


Any dispute subject to the procedures specified in this Exhibit shall be subject first to the 


informal dispute resolution procedures specified herein. 


Section 2.2 Procedures. 


(a) The Company and each Member shall designate an employee or representative who 


shall be its initial contact for resolving disputes involving them as to matters governed by the 


Transco Agreements.  Each party to such a dispute shall first raise all issues regarding the dispute 


with the designated representative of the other party or parties to such dispute.  The designated 


representatives shall work together to resolve the relevant issues in a manner that meets the 


interests of such parties, or until the issues are referred to the designated officers of the parties as 


set forth in Section 2.2(b). 


(b) The Company and each Member shall designate a representative who shall review 


disputes subject to this Exhibit that its designated representatives are unable to resolve.  In the case 


of the Company, this officer shall be designated by the Board of Directors of the Corporate 


Manager.  The applicable officers of the parties involved in such dispute shall work together to 


resolve the disputes so referred in a manner that meets the interests of such parties, either until 


such resolution is reached, or until an impasse is declared by any party to such dispute. 


ARTICLE III 


 


MEDIATION 


Section 3.1 When Available. 


If the parties agree, any dispute subject to this Exhibit may be subject to non-binding 


mediation subsequent to informal dispute resolution, but prior to the initiation of arbitration, 


regulatory, judicial, or other dispute resolution proceedings.  The parties that elect mediation shall 


notify the Committee in writing of the election to mediate. 


Section 3.2 Procedures. 


(a) A neutral mediator shall be selected by the Chair of the Committee after 


consultation with the parties involved in the dispute.  The Chair of the Committee also may consult 


with the other representatives on the Committee concerning the selection of a mediator.  The 


mediator selected shall (i) be knowledgeable in the subject matter of the dispute, and (ii) have no 


official, financial, or personal conflict of interest with respect to the parties or the issues involved 


in the dispute, unless such interest is fully disclosed in writing to all parties involved in the dispute 


and all such parties waive in writing any objection to the interest. 







 


EXHIBIT B-3 


 


(b) The parties involved in the dispute shall attempt in good faith to resolve their 


dispute in accordance with the procedures and timetable established by the mediator.  In 


furtherance of the mediation efforts, the mediator may, among other actions: 


(i) Require representatives of such parties who have the authority to settle such dispute 


to meet for face-to-face discussions, with or without the mediator; 


(ii) Act as an intermediary between such parties; 


(iii) Require such parties to submit written statements of issues and positions; 


(iv) Require such parties to exchange relevant information with respect to the dispute; 


and 


(v) If requested by such parties at any time in the mediation process, provide a written 


recommendation on resolution of the dispute including, if requested, the mediator’s 


assessment of the merits of the principal positions being advanced by each such 


party. 


(c) If the parties are unable to resolve the dispute at or in connection with this meeting, 


then, (i) any party involved in the dispute may commence such arbitration proceedings, or such 


judicial, regulatory, or other proceedings as may be appropriate as permitted by the provisions of 


Section 4.1 of this Exhibit; (ii) the statements made by any party in connection with such mediation 


shall not be admissible for any purpose in any subsequent arbitration, administrative, judicial or 


other proceeding; (iii) the recommendation of the mediator shall have no further force or effect 


and shall not be admissible for any purpose in any subsequent arbitration, administrative, judicial, 


or other proceeding; and (iv) the mediator may not be compelled to testify concerning the 


mediation in any subsequent arbitration, judicial, or other proceeding. 


Section 3.3 Costs. 


The costs of the time, expenses, and other charges of the mediator and common costs of 


the mediation process shall be borne by the parties involved in the dispute, with each side (treating 


all parties as aligned with either the plaintiff side or the defendant side of the dispute) in the 


mediated matter bearing one-half of such costs.  Each party involved in the dispute shall bear its 


own costs and attorney’s fees incurred in connection with any mediation under this Article III. 


ARTICLE IV 


 


ARBITRATION 


Section 4.1 When Required. 


Any dispute subject to this Exhibit that has not been resolved through the informal or 


mediation procedures specified herein shall be resolved by arbitration in accordance with the 


procedures specified herein; provided, however, that unless all parties agree to arbitrate, (a) any 


dispute subject to the jurisdiction of any regulatory authority shall only be heard by such regulatory 







 


EXHIBIT B-4 


 


authority, and (b) any dispute wherein one party seeks an injunction or other equitable relief shall 


be heard only by a court having jurisdiction over the matter. 


Section 4.2 Initiation. 


(a) A party to a dispute that wishes to commence arbitration proceedings shall send a 


written demand for arbitration to an officer or managing or general agent (or other agent authorized 


by appointment or law to receive service of process) of each party to the dispute, and to the 


secretary of the Committee.  The demand for arbitration shall state each claim for which arbitration 


is being demanded, the relief being sought, a brief summary of the grounds for such relief, and the 


basis for the claim, and shall identify all other parties to the dispute. 


(b)  Any party receiving such notice may, if the proviso in Section 4.1 is applicable, 


notify the parties to the dispute within 14 days of receiving the demand for arbitration, that it 


intends to have the matter heard by a regulatory or judicial authority and shall thereafter have a 


further 60 days in which to make the necessary filing to commence proceedings at such regulatory 


or judicial authority.  If the filing necessary to commence proceedings before such regulatory or 


judicial authority is not made within the foregoing 60-day period, then the party seeking to invoke 


jurisdiction of a regulatory authority shall be deemed to have consented to arbitration, and the 


dispute shall revert to arbitration. 


Section 4.3 Selection of Arbitrator. 


The Committee shall maintain a list of arbitrators that contains an odd number of names, 


and contains at least five names of Persons whom the Committee believes are generally qualified, 


by reason of their temperament and experience, to resolve disputes among the parties.  Upon an 


arbitration demand being made by one or more parties, the Committee shall provide the list to the 


parties to the dispute.  The party or parties demanding arbitration on the one hand, and the party 


or parties responding to the demand for arbitration on the other, shall each (treating all parties as 


aligned with either the plaintiff side or the defendant side of the dispute) take turns (with the 


plaintiff proceeding first) crossing names off the list until one arbitrator remains, who shall 


thereupon be engaged as arbitrator with respect to the dispute. 


Section 4.4 Procedures. 


The Committee shall compile and make available to the arbitrator and the parties standard 


procedures for the arbitration of disputes, which may be modified or adopted for use in a particular 


proceeding as the parties mutually agree or as the arbitrator deem appropriate.  Upon selection of 


the arbitrator, arbitration shall go forward in accordance with applicable procedures. 


Section 4.5 Intervention. 


The arbitrator may permit any Member to intervene in the proceeding upon the filing of a 


timely application which demonstrates that the Member has a direct interest that will be materially 


affected by the decision of the arbitrator and that it will not be represented adequately by an 


existing party to the proceeding.  Any Member seeking to intervene in a dispute shall indicate in 


its intervention papers whether it believes that it should be aligned with either the plaintiff side or 


the defendant side of the dispute.  Any party to the dispute may challenge such proposed alignment.  







 


EXHIBIT B-5 


 


The arbitrator shall determine the actual alignment of the parties to a dispute based upon the 


comparability of the specific positions advanced by each party concerning the issues involved in 


the dispute. 


Section 4.6 Summary Disposition and Interim Measures. 


(a) The procedures for arbitration of a dispute shall provide a means for summary 


disposition of a demand for arbitration, or response to a demand for arbitration, that in the reasoned 


opinion of the arbitrator does not have a good faith basis either in law or fact.  If the arbitrator 


determines that a demand for arbitration, or response to a demand for arbitration, does not have a 


good faith basis either in law or fact, the arbitrator shall have discretion to award the costs of the 


time, expenses, and other charges of the arbitrator to the prevailing party. 


(b) The procedures for the arbitration of a dispute shall provide a means for summary 


disposition without discovery if there is no dispute as to any material fact, or with such limited 


discovery as the arbitrator shall determine is reasonably likely to lead to the prompt resolution of 


any disputed issues of material fact. 


(c) The procedures for arbitration of a dispute shall permit any party to a dispute to 


request the arbitrator to render a written interim decision requiring that any action or decision that 


is the subject of a dispute not be put into effect, or imposing such other interim measures as the 


arbitrator deem necessary or appropriate, to preserve the rights and obligations secured by the 


Transco Agreements during the pendency of the arbitration proceeding.  The arbitrator may grant 


or deny, in whole or in part, a request for such a written interim decision.  Members and the 


Company shall be bound by any such written decision pending the outcome of the arbitration 


proceeding. 


Section 4.7 Discovery of Facts. 


(a) The arbitration procedures for the resolution of a dispute shall include adequate 


provision for the discovery of relevant facts, including the taking of testimony under oath, 


production of documents and things, and inspection of land and tangible items.  The nature and 


extent of such discovery shall be determined as provided herein and shall take into account (i) the 


complexity of the dispute, (ii) the extent to which facts are disputed, and (iii) the amount of money 


in controversy. 


(b) The arbitrator shall be responsible for establishing the timing, amount, and means 


of discovery, and for resolving discovery and other pre-hearing disputes.  If a dispute involves 


contested issues of fact, promptly after the selection of the arbitrator, the arbitrator shall convene 


a meeting of the parties for the purpose of establishing a schedule and plan of discovery and other 


pre-hearing actions. 


Section 4.8 Evidentiary Hearing. 


The procedures established by the arbitrator shall provide for an evidentiary hearing, with 


provision for the cross-examination of witnesses, unless all parties consent to the resolution of the 


matter on the basis of a written record.  The forms and methods for taking evidence shall be as 


agreed by the parties, or if the parties cannot agree, as established by the arbitrator.  The arbitrator 







 


EXHIBIT B-6 


 


may require such written or other submissions from the parties as shall be deemed appropriate, 


including submission of the direct testimony of witnesses in written form.  The arbitrator may 


exclude any evidence that is irrelevant, immaterial, or unduly repetitious, and, except to the extent 


hereinafter otherwise provided, shall exclude any material which is covered by the attorney-client 


privilege, the accountant-client privilege, other evidentiary privileges, or the attorney-work 


product doctrine.  Any party or parties may arrange for the preparation of a record of the hearing 


and, except to the extent otherwise provided, shall pay the costs thereof.  Such party or parties 


shall have no obligation to provide, or to agree to the provision of, a copy of the record of the 


hearing to any party that does not pay a proportionate share of the cost of the record.  At the request 


of any party, the arbitrator shall determine a fair and equitable allocation of the cost of the 


preparation of a record between or among the parties to the proceeding who are willing to share 


such costs. 


Section 4.9 Confidentiality. 


(a) Any information requested from another party in the course of an arbitration 


proceeding, and not otherwise available to the receiving party, including any such information 


contained in documents or other means of recording information created during the course of the 


proceeding, may be designated “Confidential” by the producing party to the extent that such 


information is of a proprietary nature.  The party designating documents or other information as 


“Confidential” shall have 20 days from the request for such material to submit a request to the 


arbitrator to establish such requirements for the protection of such documents or other information 


designated as “Confidential” as may be reasonable and necessary to protect the confidentiality and 


commercial value of such information and the rights of the parties.  Prior to the decision of the 


arbitrator on a request for confidential treatment, documents or other information designated as 


“Confidential” need not be produced.  “Confidential” information shall not be used by the 


arbitrator, or anyone working for or on behalf of any of the foregoing, for any purpose other than 


the arbitration proceeding, and shall not be disclosed in any form to any Person not involved in the 


arbitration proceeding without the prior written consent of the party producing the information, or 


as permitted by the arbitrator or as required by law. 


(b) Any Person receiving a request or demand for disclosure, whether by compulsory 


process, discovery request, or otherwise, of documents or information obtained in the course of an 


arbitration proceeding that have been designated “Confidential” and that are subject to a non-


disclosure requirement under this Exhibit, or that are subject to a decision of the arbitrator, shall 


immediately inform the Person from which the information was obtained, and shall take all 


reasonable steps to afford the Person from which the information was obtained an opportunity to 


protect the information from disclosure.  Any person disclosing information in violation of this 


Exhibit or requirements established by the arbitrator shall be deemed to waive any right to 


introduce or otherwise use such information in any judicial, regulatory, or other legal or dispute 


resolution proceeding, including the proceeding in which the information was obtained. 


(c) Nothing in this Exhibit shall preclude any Person from using documents or 


information properly and previously obtained outside of an arbitration proceeding, or otherwise 


public, for any legitimate purpose, notwithstanding that the information was also obtained in the 


course of the arbitration proceeding. 







 


EXHIBIT B-7 


 


Section 4.10 Timetable. 


Promptly after the selection of the arbitrator, the arbitrator shall set a date for resolution of 


the dispute, which shall be not later than eight months (or such earlier date as may be agreed to by 


the parties) from the date of the selection of the arbitrator, with other dates, including the dates for 


an evidentiary hearing, or other final submissions of evidence, set in light of this date.  The date 


for the evidentiary hearing, or other final submission of evidence, shall not be changed absent 


extraordinary circumstances.  The arbitrator shall have the power to impose sanctions for dilatory 


tactics or undue delay in completing the arbitration proceedings. 


Section 4.11 Decisions. 


The arbitrator shall issue either an oral decision that is transcribed or a written decision, 


which may, at the arbitrator’s discretion, include findings of fact.  The arbitration decision shall 


be based on (i) the evidence in the record; (ii) the terms of the relevant Transco Agreements, 


including any principle, standard, requirement, procedure, plan, or other right or obligation 


established by or pursuant to those Transco Agreements; (iii) applicable federal and state legal 


standards, including the FPA and any applicable state and FERC regulations and decisions; and, 


(iv) relevant decisions in previous arbitration proceedings under the Transco Agreements which 


shall be available subject to applicable confidentiality provisions.  All decisions of the arbitrator 


shall be maintained by the Committee and shall, subject to any applicable confidentiality 


provisions, be made available on request to all Members, to the Company and to federal and state 


regulatory authorities.  The arbitrator shall have no authority to revise or alter any provision of any 


Transco Agreement.  Any arbitration decision that affects matters subject to the jurisdiction of the 


FERC under section 205 or section 206 of the FPA shall be filed with the FERC and any arbitration 


decision that affect matters subject to the jurisdiction of a state authority shall be filed with that 


authority. 


Section 4.12 Costs. 


Unless the arbitrator shall decide otherwise, the costs of the time, expenses, and other 


charges of the arbitrator shall be borne by the parties to the dispute, with each side on an arbitrated 


issue bearing one-half of such costs, and each party to an arbitration proceeding shall bear its own 


costs and fees.  The arbitrator may require all of the costs of the time, expenses, and other charges 


of the arbitrator, plus all or a portion of the costs of arbitration, attorneys’ fees, and the costs of 


mediation, if any, to be paid by any party that substantially loses on an issue determined by the 


arbitrator to have been raised without a substantial basis. 


Section 4.13 Enforcement. 


The decision of the arbitrator shall be final, binding and not appealable, except to the extent 


reviewable by FERC (as permitted or required by law) or as provided in Chapter 788 of the 


Wisconsin Statutes.  Any party may petition any state or federal court having jurisdiction to enter 


judgment upon the arbitration award. 







 


EXHIBIT B-8 


 


Section 4.14 Regulatory Jurisdiction. 


If a party fails to invoke regulatory jurisdiction of a dispute involving matters subject to 


FERC or state regulatory jurisdiction within 60 days in accordance with Section 4.1 of this Exhibit, 


the party shall be deemed to have waived its right to invoke such jurisdiction; provided, however, 


that this waiver only applies to the party and does not affect any right that the FERC or state 


regulatory authority may have to act on its own.  If such party nonetheless invokes FERC or 


applicable state regulatory jurisdiction following the arbitration proceedings provided for herein, 


that party shall be responsible for all attorneys’ fees incurred by other parties to the dispute and 


the Company, whether or not the FERC or state regulatory authority concludes that such party has 


waived its right to invoke FERC or state regulatory jurisdiction. 


ARTICLE V 


 


ALTERNATE DISPUTE RESOLUTION COMMITTEE 


Section 5.1 Membership. 


(a) The Committee shall be composed of six representatives selected by the Board of 


Directors of the Corporate Manager, which shall use its best efforts to select a Committee that 


reflects the diversity, in terms of size, type of entity, and geographic location, of the Members.  No 


more than one representative on the Committee may be a representative of the same Member. 


(b) Representatives on the Committee shall serve for terms of three years, beginning 


on the first day of the month following the annual meeting of the Board of Directors, and may 


serve additional terms, except that, of the representatives first elected to the Committee, two 


representatives shall serve terms of one year, and two representatives shall serve terms of two 


years. 


Section 5.2 Voting Requirements. 


Approval of adoption of measures by the Committee shall require two-thirds of the votes 


of the representatives present and voting, but in no event less than three votes.  Two-thirds of the 


representatives on the Committee shall constitute a quorum for the conduct of the business of the 


Committee. 


Section 5.3 Officers. 


At the first meeting of the Committee following the annual meeting of the Board of 


Directors, the representatives on the Committee shall choose a Chair and Vice Chair from among 


the representatives on the Committee.  The Chair and the Vice Chair shall each serve a term of 


three years, unless earlier terminated by a two-thirds vote of the representatives of the Committee.  


The Chair of the Committee shall preside at meetings of the Committee, and shall have the power 


to call meetings of the Committee and to exercise such other powers as are specified in this Exhibit 


or authorized by the Committee. 







 


EXHIBIT B-9 


 


Section 5.4 Meetings. 


The Committee shall meet at such times and places as determined by the Committee, or at 


the call of the Chair.  The Chair shall call a meeting of the Committee upon the request of two or 


more members of the Committee. 


Section 5.5 Responsibilities. 


The duties of the Committee include, but are not limited to, the following: 


(a) Maintain a pool of persons qualified by temperament and experience, and with 


technical or legal expertise in matters likely to be the subject of disputes, to serve a mediators and 


arbitrators under this Exhibit; 


(b) Determine the rates and other costs and charges that shall be paid to mediators and 


arbitrators for, or in connection with, their services; 


(c) Select mediators for disputes; 


(d) Determine if mediation is not warranted in a particular dispute; 


(e) Provide to the parties involved in a dispute lists of arbitrators qualified by 


temperament and experience, and with appropriate technical or legal expertise, to resolve 


particular disputes, such lists to include only neutral persons who have no official, financial, or 


personal interest or conflict of interest with respect to the parties or the issues involved in the 


dispute; 


(f) Compile and make available to Members, arbitrators, and other interested parties 


suggested procedures for the arbitration of disputes in accordance with Section 4.4 of this Exhibit; 


(g) Maintain and make available to Members, mediators, arbitrators, and other 


interested parties, subject to any applicable confidentiality provisions, the written decisions 


required by Section 4.11 of this Exhibit; 


(h) Establish such procedures and schedules, in addition to those specified herein, as it 


shall deem appropriate to further the prompt, efficient, fair, and equitable resolution of disputes; 


and 


(i) Provide such oversight and supervision of the dispute resolution processes and 


procedures instituted pursuant to this Exhibit as may be appropriate to facilitate the prompt, 


efficient, fair, and equitable resolution of disputes. 


Section 5.6 American Arbitration Association. 


Whenever the Company is a party to any dispute, any party whose interests are not aligned 


with the Company may demand that the Committee instruct the American Arbitration Association 


to provide the parties with a list of arbitrators pursuant to Section 4.3 in lieu of the Company 


supplying such list.  In addition, in connection with such dispute, the Committee shall not perform 







 


EXHIBIT B-10 


 


any of those responsibilities charged to it pursuant to Section 5.5 and the dispute shall instead be 


resolved in accordance with the arbitration rules of the American Arbitration Association for the 


resolution of commercial disputes. 


 


 


 


57007.000001 EMF_US 43392510v21 









































































		R-165-2015-Utilities-Resolution for ATC.pdf

		Utilities-Transmittal Memo.pdf

		Utilities-Proposed Execution to Restructure ATC.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing execution of a license agreement to allow Dane County to place antennas and other
equipment on the Stoughton Utilities East Water Tower


Committee Action: Utilities Committee recommends approval 5-0


File Number: R-166-2015 Date Introduced: October 27, 2015


WHEREAS, Dane County is desirous of placing antennas on the Stoughton Utilities East Water
Tower; and


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Utilities Committee met on October 19, 2015, and approved and
recommended the License Agreement to the Stoughton Common Council to allow the placement of
antennas and other equipment on the Stoughton Utilities East Water Tower;


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the appropriate City of Stoughton officials be
hereby authorized to execute the License Agreement to Allow Dane County to Place Antennas and
Other Equipment on the Stoughton Utilities East Water Tower.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







   
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  October 20, 2015 
 


To:  Lana C. Kropf (Packet via E-Mail and Hard Copy)  


  Stoughton City Clerk  


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E.  


  Stoughton Utilities Director 
 


Subject: Items For The October 27, 2015 Stoughton Common Council Meeting Packet. 


 


The items from the October 19, 2015 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting are 


enclosed.  Please include them in the October 27, 2015 Stoughton Common Council Meeting 


Packet. 


 


Consent Agenda: 


 


1. Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List. 


2. Stoughton Utilities Committee September 14, 2015 Regular Meeting Minutes. 


3. Stoughton Utilities August 2015 Financial Summary. 


4. Stoughton Utilities August 2015 Statistical Worksheet. 


 


Business: 


 


1. Stoughton Utilities Proposed Execution Of Documents Pertaining To The Restructuring 


Of The American Transmission Company LLC. 


2. Proposed License Agreement To Allow Dane County To Place Antennas And Other 


Equipment On The Stoughton Utilities East Water Tower. 


 


Encl. 


 


cc: Mayor Donna L. Olson, Chairperson-Stoughton Utilities Committee (Packet via E-Mail) 


 


Alderperson Paul Lawrence, President-Stoughton Common Council (Packet via E-Mail) 


 


 Sean O Grady-Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent (Memo via E-Mail) 


 


Brian R. Hoops-Stoughton Utilities Technical Operations Supervisor (Packet via E-Mail) 


   


  Kim M. Jennings, CPA-Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager (Memo 


via E-Mail) 


 


 


 







 


DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR 
MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, October 19, 2015 – 5:03 p.m. 
Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
600 S. Fourth St. 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
Members Present: Alderperson Michael Engelberger, Citizen Member 


David Erdman, Alderperson Greg Jenson, Citizen 
Member John Kallas, Mayor Donna Olson, Citizen 
Member Alan Staats, and Alderperson Elvin (Sonny) 
Swangstu.  


  
Excused: None. 
 
Absent: None. 
 
Others Present: Alderperson Ron Christianson, Stoughton Utilities 


Finance and Administrative Manager Kim Jennings, 
CPA, Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz, P.E., 
and Stoughton Fire Chief Scott Wegner. 


  
Proposed License Agreement To Allow Dane County To Place Antennas And 
Other Equipment On The Stoughton Utilities East Water Tower: Stoughton 
Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the proposed License 
Agreement to allow Dane County to place antennas and other equipment on the 
Stoughton Utilities East Water Tower.  Discussion followed. Motion Citizen 
Member David Erdman, the motion seconded by Citizen Member John Kallas, to 
approve and recommend the approval and the adoption of the corresponding 
Resolution authorizing execution of the proposed License Agreement to allow 
Dane County to place antennas and other equipment on the Stoughton Utilities 
East Water Tower to the Stoughton Common Council on October 27, 2015.  The 
motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  October 13, 2015  


 


To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 


 


From:  Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


  Stoughton Utilities Director 


 


Subject: Proposed License Agreement To Allow Dane County To Place Antennas 


And Other Equipment On The Stoughton Utilities East Water Tower. 


 


Stoughton Utilities has been using a negotiating team of Attorney Anita Gallucci of 


Boardman and Clark, Strand Associates, Inc. the Utility Services Group, Utilities 


Operations Superintendent Sean Grady and myself to develop a License Agreement to 


allow Dane County to place antennas and other equipment on the East Water Tower and 


adjacent lands.  The License Agreement shall provide emergency standby electric service 


to Stoughton Utilities’ present and future equipment and $1,440 per month, and $360 per 


month to the Stoughton Parks Department, with a 3% annual escalator.   


 


It is proposed that the Stoughton Utilities Committee approve and recommend the 


approval and the adoption of the corresponding Resolution Approving the License 


Agreement between Stoughton and Dane County to the Stoughton Common Council on 


October 27, 2015.  


 


Encl.      


 


cc: Attorney Anita T. Gallucci-Boardman and Clark LLP 


Sean O Grady-Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 


John Halverson-Stoughton Parks Supervisor 


Brian R. Hoops-Stoughton Utilities Technical Operations Supervisor 


Kim M. Jennings, CPA-Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager 


 


 









































































































































		R-166-2015- Resolution for East water Tower.pdf

		Utilities-Transmittal Memo.pdf

		Utilities-Proposed Allowance of Dane Co. Equipment on East Water Tower.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing Council approval of the resolution establishing policies for the use of Tax Incremental
Financing (TIF)


Committee Action: Finance recommends approval 5-0


File Number: R-167-2015 Date Introduced: October 27, 2015


WHEREAS, the Finance Committee reviewed the proposed amendments to the Tax Incremental
Financing (TIF) policy, and


WHEREAS, your Finance Committee approved the amendments of the Tax Incremental Financing
(TIF) policy, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the Council approve the
resolution establishing policies for the use of Tax Incremental Financing (TIF).


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







 


Page 1 of 4   


                         


CITY OF STOUGHTON RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING POLICIES FOR THE USE 


OF TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING (TIF) 


 


Important Notice and Disclaimer 


The attached policies and guidelines have been prepared by the CITY for the purpose of 


guiding recommendations regarding Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) assistance to 


projects within CITY designated redevelopment areas. The authority to make decisions 


regarding the use of TIF funds is vested solely in the City Council of the CITY OF 


STOUGHTON. Projects requesting TIF assistance are cautioned that the attached 


information has been prepared primarily for internal use by the CITY and to inform 


applicants of the types of projects the CITY would consider recommending for TIF 


assistance. The CITY  reserves the right to reject any and all projects, even those which 


satisfy all of the attached criteria for the use of TIF for any reason whatsoever, without 


regard for the viability of the project. Furthermore, the CITY reserves the right to waive, 


amend or adjust these policies, and recommend any project the CITY deems to be in the 


best interests of the CITY OF STOUGHTON. 


 


1. Purpose of the Policy 


a. To outline the City’s position on the use of tax incremental financing (TIF) 


and the process through which decisions regarding TIF incentives are made. 


b. To determine the appropriate amount of incentive to be provided. 


c. To guide staff in forming recommendations regarding the use of tax 


incremental financing and negotiating development agreements with 


developers. 


d. To provide a framework within which the City Council can evaluate and 


compare proposed uses of tax incremental financing. 


 


2. Requirements for the use of TIF 


a. The City will comply with all of the requirements of the State of Wisconsin’s 


Tax Increment Law (Wisconsin Statues 66.1105) 


b. The City will undertake an analysis of the project to ensure that it would not 


occur “but for” the requested incentive. 


c. TIF will be used only when a clearly identified development goal is served 


and only to the degree necessary to accomplish that goal. 


d. TIF will only be used when the City has the financial capacity to provide the 


needed incentive and the City Council deems it fiscally prudent to provide the 


incentive. 


 


3. General Goals for the Use of TIF 


It is the policy of the CITY to consider the judicious use of TIF for those projects which 


demonstrate a substantial and significant public benefit by constructing public 


improvements or offering other financial assistance in support of developments that will: 


a. Eliminate blighting influences and provide suitable sites for industrial, 


commercial and residential development. 


b. Achieve development on sites which would not be developed without a TIF 







 


Page 2 of 4   


incentive and accelerate the development of these sites. 


c. Strengthen the employment and economic base of the City 


d. Increase  the tax base for the benefit of all of the overlying taxing jurisdiction 


e. Upgrade older neighborhoods 


f. Implement plans and development strategies adopted by the City 


g. Provide affordable housing opportunities per City Comprehensive Plan 


definitions 


h. Encourage additional unsubsidized private development in the area. 


 


Care will be exercised in the use of TIF to thoroughly evaluate each project to ensure that 


the benefits which will accrue from the approval of the project are appropriate for the 


costs which will result, and that they are equitable to the City as a whole. 


 


4.  Evaluation Criteria 
The following criteria are to be used by the CITY to evaluate requests for TIF assistance: 


 


A. Goals and Priorities for TIF 


Projects that meet the goals of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Strategic 


Priorities for Industrial, Commercial, Residential and Downtown Development 


and Redevelopment are preferred. 
 


B. Need for Incentive 


The need for TIF assistance shall be clearly demonstrated.  Each request for TIF 


assistance must demonstrate that "but for" the use of TIF assistance, the project is 


not feasible on the proposed site and that the public benefits described above 


would not be achieved. 


 


C.  Amount Requested/Incentive Structure/Term of Incentive 


 The City seeks to maximize the amount of private investment for each dollar 


of TIF incentive. 


 


 A TIF incentive will only be provided after alternative financing methods are 


explored.  


 


 The actual amount of TIF assistance provided to a project will be determined 


at the discretion of the CITY on the basis of need, risk, project characteristics, 


developer qualifications and the degree to which the project meets the public 


objectives of the CITY described in Section A.  General Policies. The CITY is 


not obligated to provide TIF assistance to any project and may reject requests 


for TIF assistance for any reason, even if the project meets all criteria 


described herein. 


 


 Provision of the TIF incentive through reimbursement of incremental property 


taxes is preferred.  The term of the incentive shall be kept to a minimum.  


Applications requesting the issuance of bonds or notes shall be required to 


demonstrate that the project will produce taxes sufficient to cover the debt 


service of the bonds or notes.  The CITY may amend or adjust this 







 


Page 3 of 4   


requirement for projects which, in the City’s determination provide 


extraordinary public benefit. 


 


 


D.  Use of TIF Funds/ Proportion for Public Infrastructure: 


 The City prefers that the incentive be provided for public infrastructure such 


as roadway and utility improvements and costs associated with demolition. 


 Requests for TIF assistance for retail and service/commercial projects should 


be limited to those projects that will promote the upgrading, expansion or 


retention of existing retail, service or commercial businesses, encourage an 


inflow of customers from outside the City or will provide services or fill retail 


markets that are currently unavailable or in short supply in the City. 


 


 


E.  Development Agreement: 


The City will enter into a Development Agreement with the private developer on 


all projects which have been approved for TIF assistance. The Development 


Agreement will describe the obligations of both the City and the developer, and 


the terms and conditions of TIF assistance. Development Agreements will be 


secured by Developer personal guarantee, Bank Letter of Credit, Performance 


Bond, or other security mechanisms as deemed appropriate by the City 


 


Any developer requesting TIF assistance should be able to demonstrate past 


successful general development capability s well as specific capability in the type 


and size of development proposed.  TIF will not be used when the developer’s 


credentials, in the sole judgment of the City, are inadequate due to past track 


record relating to: completion of projects, general reputation and/or bankruptcy, 


or other problems or issues considered relevant by the City. 
 


The City will maintain a retainage account, require a performance bond, or 


require other forms of security until each project is completed and satisfies all 


conditions and performance standards described in the Development Agreement. 


 


 


 


 


5.  Application and Review Process 


 
1. An application for TIF assistance on a project is submitted by a private developer to 


the FINANCE DIRECTOR of the CITY OF STOUGHTON, who will notify the 


MAYOR of the application. 


2. The FINANCE DIRECTOR will review the application and determine whether the 


application is complete and whether the proposed project is eligible under the City’s 


policy, and will then forward said application along with a recommendation to the 


FINANCE COMMITTEE for consideration. 


3. The COMMITTEE reviews and discusses the application with consideration given to any 


additional material provided by City Staff. A public hearing to hear testimony from 


concerned citizens, may be held . 







 


Page 4 of 4   


4. The COMMITTEE recommends approval, denies or tables the application. 


5. The CITY COUNCIL THEN considers the recommendation of the COMMITTEE. 


6. If approved by the CITY COUNCIL, a Development Agreement will be executed between 


the CITY and the Developer applicant. 


Application Procedures 


Submission - Submit two copies of the application to: 


City of Stoughton  


FINANCE DIRECTOR  


381 EAST MAIN STREET STOUGHTON, WI. 53589 


Application Fee - A $300 processing fee must be submitted with the application. 


Preliminary Determination of Completeness - Upon submission, the application will be reviewed 


to determine if it is complete. If the application is incomplete or if additional information is needed 


the applicant will be notified in writing that the application is not complete, and the reasons will be 


stated referring to the specific criteria that are not met, additional information required, or 


financial, legal or planning and development concerns. 


Staff Review: Review of the application will be conducted by the Finance Director, and when 


deemed appropriate, by the City Attorney, the City's Financial Advisor and/or other advisors. 


Review time will be approximately 30 days from the date the completed application is submitted 


to the City. However, more or less time may be required for particular applications. Applications 


which are determined to be complete, consistent with all elements of the City's Comprehensive 


Plan, the Redevelopment Plan for the area in which the project will occur and in conformance with 


the City’s TIF policy will then be forwarded to the FINANCE COMMITTEE for consideration. 


Applicants will be notified in writing of the application being forwarded to the COMMITTEE. 


COMMITTEE Consideration: The COMMITTEE may desire to hold one or more discussion 


sessions or a public hearing. During this period the applicant may be required to submit additional 


information. The applicant is expected to make a presentation to the COMMITTEE followed by 


the presentation of any material the City's staff desires to report. Public comment will then be 


heard, if invited, followed by a response from the applicant. After COMMITTEE discussion, 


action may be taken to approve, deny or to continue the case to a date certain for further 


consideration. 


If the application is approved by the COMMITTEE, the COMMITTEE will forward a 


recommendation for approval to the CITY COUNCIL 


City staff may require an independent feasibility study. The cost of such study shall be paid by 


the applicant and shall be prepared by a professional consultant having a favorable reputation 


for the preparation of such studies. This study would be submitted to the COMMITTEE for 


consideration. 
 


 


 







State of Wisconsin  Department of Revenue 
Ch 1 Sec 5 TIF Glossary - 1 - Division of State and Local Finance  


Wisconsin Tax Incremental Finance Manual  Revised 7/14 


1.5 TIF Glossary 
 
It is important to identify the difference between "TIF" and "TID" as it is used in this 
manual: 
• "TIF" – Tax Incremental Financing; a financing tool available to Cities, Villages and 


Towns to encourage economic development that would not occur without public 
assistance. 


• "TID" – a Tax Increment District; the contiguous geographical area within a 
municipality consisting solely of whole units of property as are assessed for general 
property tax purposes not including railroad rights of way, rivers or highways, or 
wetlands as defined in sec.23.32, Wis. Stats.  


 
Other important concepts are defined below: 
• "Annexation" – Town territory annexed by a City/Village after January 1, 2004 


cannot be included in a new TID, or added to an existing TID, unless one of the 
following applies: 
o at least three years have passed since the annexation occurred,  
o the City/Village enters into a cooperative boundary agreement with the Town, or 
o the City/Village and Town enter into another kind of agreement relating to 


annexation. 
• "Amendment" – They can be done separately or simultaneously to any active TID.  


The first three types require a hearing, resolutions and final approval by the JRB.  All 
amendments must be submitted to Department of Revenue (DOR) for approval.  Here 
each type of amendment is described. 
o "Allocation Amendment" – before all project costs are paid for and not later 


than the extended maximum life of the TID, a municipality may decide to allocate 
the excess tax increment from one TID (donor TID) to another TID (recipient 
TID) to help the recipient pay off debts sooner.  See Allocation Amendment Fact 
Sheet for details. 


o "Project Plan Amendment" – at any time during the life of the TID, the 
planning commission may adopt an amendment to a project plan that adds 
projects and eligible project costs.  These amendments must be very specific in 
nature, adding specific projects including costs and description, and an updated 
pro forma that shows these new projects can be paid for with increment revenue. 


o "Territory Amendment" – the area of a TID may be modified up to four times 
during the life of a TID, either by adding territory that is served by the public 
improvements funded by the TID, or by subtracting territory, but TID contiguity 
must be preserved.  Note: an amendment that contains both an addition and 
subtraction counts as only one amendment.  In addition, when adding territory, 
the 12% valuation limit applies, restricting the share of territory that can be 
designated in TIDs within the municipality.  For an amendment which contains 
both an addition and subtraction, the addition segment must comply with the 12% 
value limitation, prior to the subtraction being done. 


o "Extension Amendment" – the municipality may request that the maximum life 
of a TID be extended through a resolution by the Joint Review Board (JRB).  If 
the request includes an independent audit that demonstrates that the extended life 



http://www.revenue.wi.gov/faqs/slf/tif/alofacsht.pdf

http://www.revenue.wi.gov/faqs/slf/tif/alofacsht.pdf





State of Wisconsin  Department of Revenue 
Ch 1 Sec 5 TIF Glossary - 2 - Division of State and Local Finance  


Wisconsin Tax Incremental Finance Manual  Revised 7/14 


is needed to collect sufficient revenue to pay for projects, the JRB must pass the 
resolution.  If no such audit is offered, it is left to the discretion of the JRB 
members to grant or deny the extension.  The length of the extension depends on 
the type of district (see Criteria Matrix for details). 


o "Affordable Housing Amendment" – if the municipality has paid off its project 
costs and it is before the maximum life of the TID, they may adopt a resolution to 
extend the life of the TID for no more than one (1) year and authorize the 
allocation of tax increments to improve the municipality's housing stock. 


o "Base Value Redetermination Amendment" – a municipality may request that 
the base value of a TID be redetermined if: 
o TID's Equalized Value (see Tax Incremental Value Reports) must be at least 


10% below the current base value of the TID for two consecutive years 
(decrement)  


o Municipality's resolution date stating a decrement exists will determine the 
two consecutive years (ex:  May 21, 2014 resolution date requires both the 
2012 and 2013 TIDs to be 10% below the TID's current base value) 


o TID must be created under state law (sec. 66.1105, Wis. Stats.) 
o One base value re-determination is allowed during the life of a TID 


• "Base Value" – the aggregate value, as equalized by DOR, of the real, personal, non-
exempt municipal-owned property located within the TID as of the valuation date. 


• "Blighted Area" – the TIF Law provides two specific meanings for the designation 
of blight, neither of which includes any open lands that have been developed only for 
agricultural purposes: 
o an area in which the structures, buildings or improvements contribute to ill health, 


transmission of disease, infant mortality, juvenile delinquency, or crime and are 
detrimental to the public health, safety, morals or welfare, by reason of 
dilapidation, deterioration, age or obsolescence, inadequate provision for 
ventilation, light air, sanitation or open spaces, high density population and 
overcrowding, or the existence of conditions which endanger life or property by 
fire and other causes. 


o an area which is predominantly open and which consists primarily of an 
abandoned highway corridor [as defined in sec. 66.1333 (2m)(a), Wis. Stats.], or 
that consists of land upon which buildings or structures have been demolished and 
which because of obsolete platting, diversity of ownership, deterioration of 
structures or of site improvements, or otherwise, substantially impairs or arrests 
the sound growth of the community. 


• "Boundary Agreement" – this type of agreement between two municipalities allows 
territory that was annexed from a Town after January 1, 2004 to be included in a TID 
without three years having passed since the annexation.  Sec. 66.0307, Wis. Stats., 
provides for the boundary agreement mentioned in TIF Law, and a summary appears 
later in this manual. 


• “Cash Grants” – payments made to owners, lessees or developers of property 
included in a signed development agreement. 


• "Class 1 Notice" – the creation or amendment of a TID requires a notice of all joint 
review board meetings held according to the rules found in ch. 985, Wis. Stats.  The 
important element of this section states that the public notice be published in a 



http://www.revenue.wi.gov/pubs/slf/tif/tif-trix.pdf

http://www.revenue.wi.gov/report/t.html

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/statutes/statutes/66/XI/1105





State of Wisconsin  Department of Revenue 
Ch 1 Sec 5 TIF Glossary - 3 - Division of State and Local Finance  


Wisconsin Tax Incremental Finance Manual  Revised 7/14 


newspaper that is likely to give notice to the persons or place affected by the TID, the 
insertion must be at least 5 days before the JRB meetings.  The notice must say when, 
where and for what purpose the JRB meeting is being held.    


• "Class 2 Notice" – the creation or amendment of a TID requires a public hearing that 
must be noticed according to the rules found in ch. 985, Wis. Stats.  The important 
elements of this section include that the public notice be published in the newspaper 
that is likely to give notice to the persons or place affected by the TID, the insertion 
must be once in each of two consecutive weeks, and the second publication must be at 
least seven days before the public hearing which is being noticed.  The notice must 
say when, where and for what purpose the public hearing will be held. 


• "Creation" – the process of identifying a contiguous geographic area to be targeted 
for development and submitting an application requesting DOR to certify a base value 
for this area, designating it as a TID. 


• "Creation Date" – the date that the local governing body adopts the creation 
resolution for the TID.  The creation date indicates when the expenditure period 
begins for the TID.  Only costs related to planning for the TID can be incurred before 
the creation date. 


• "Current Value" – the total equalized value of the real and personal property in the 
TID as of January 1 of the current year certified annually on September 1. 


• "Decrement Situation" – when the aggregate value, as equalized by DOR, of all 
taxable property located within the TID on or about the date on which a municipal 
resolution is adopted is at least 10 percent less than the current tax incremental base 
of that district. 


• "Distressed Tax Incremental District" – a tax increment district that has been 
created before October 1, 2008 by which the local legislative body adopts a resolution 
finding that project costs incurred exceed the amount of expected revenues generated 
(from all sources) during the life of the district.  (Under current law, the classification 
expires on October 1, 2015.) 


• "District Types" – sec. 66.1105 (4) (gm) 6., Wis. Stats., states that the local 
legislative body must declare a single type for each district as part of the resolution 
creating the TID.  The four types of TID are "Blighted District", "Rehabilitation or 
Conservation District", "Industrial District", and "Mixed-use District".  The 
declaration is based on the type of land that makes up 50% of the area in the TID, or 
which of the four is predominant with regard to 
the area in the TID. 


• "Expenditure Period" – the time during which 
expenses may be incurred for the 
implementation of the approved project plan and 
the completion of the projects outlined therein.  
The current maximum expenditure period for all 
districts ends five years before the unextended 
maximum life of the TID. 


• "Extending TID Life" – see Section 2.2 TIF Amendment for more details on getting 
an extension to the maximum life of a TID. 


• "Industrial Development" – land suitable for industrial sites within the meaning of 
sec. 66.1101, Wis. Stats.  Any real property within a TID that is found to be suitable 


TID Expenditure Period 
TID Type Max Exp. 
Any before 10/95 22 years 
Blight/Rehab after 10/95 22 years 
Industrial after 10/95 but 
before 10/04 


18 years 


Ind. or Mixed-use after 
10/04 


15 years 



http://www.revenue.wi.gov/pubs/slf/tif/2-2.pdf#page5





State of Wisconsin  Department of Revenue 
Ch 1 Sec 5 TIF Glossary - 4 - Division of State and Local Finance  


Wisconsin Tax Incremental Finance Manual  Revised 7/14 


for industrial sites and is zoned for industrial use must remain zoned for industrial use 
for the life of the TID. 


• "Joint Review Board" (JRB) – a municipality may choose to create a JRB for each 
TID it creates, or one Standing JRB that hears and votes on all TID creation and 
amendment actions in the municipality.  The first organizational meeting (within 14 
days of public notice and before the public hearing) must be held to appoint the 
public member and select a chair whether standing or temporary.  A standing JRB 
will remain in existence until the municipal governing body chooses to disband it.  
See Chapter 3 (JRB Guide) for more information. 


• "Mixed-use Development" – a development with a mix of residential, commercial, 
and industrial uses.  These types of developments are allowed to include newly-
platted residential development, if they do not exceed 35%, by area, of the real 
property in the TID, according to the following limitations: 
o "Newly Platted Residential" – residential developments on a previously 


undeveloped parcel of land that was not divided for residential lots.  This would 
include subdividing a farm field for housing.  TIF law only allows for increment 
revenue to be spent on newly platted residential development in mixed-use TIDs 
if one of the following three applies: 
 density of the residential housing is at least 3 units per acre. 
 residential housing is located in a conservation subdivision, as defined in sec. 


66.1027(1)(a), Wis. Stats. 
 residential housing is located in a traditional neighborhood development, as 


defined in sec. 66.1027(1)(c), Wis. Stats. 
• "Municipality" – a City, Village or Town.  Schools, counties, technical college 


districts and special districts are not considered municipal governments; for the 
purposes of TIF, they are overlying taxing jurisdictions. 


• "Non-project Costs" – as part of the redevelopment plan, there may be investments 
that are not eligible for TIF, or that are paid for with revenue other than tax increment 
revenue – such as a grant.  The non-project costs must be detailed in the project plan. 


• "Overlying Taxing Jurisdiction" – every City, Village and Town  is  part of several 
other taxing jurisdictions such as school districts, county governments, technical 
college districts and other special districts (such as sanitary or sewer districts or lake 
rehabilitation districts).  A representative from the county, municipality, school and 
technical college districts serves on the JRB.  Note:  If more than county, school or 
technical district, the district in which the greatest value of property shall choose the 
representative.  The tax increment generated by the levies of each of these 
jurisdictions is turned over to the municipality that manages the TID to pay for the 
approved project costs. 


• "Multijurisdictional District" – a TID created by two or more cities that have 
entered into an intergovernmental cooperation agreement under sec. 66.0301, Wis. 
Stats.   


• "Planning Commission" – a plan commission created under sec. 62.23, Wis. Stats., 
or a board of public land commissioners if no plan commission exists, or the plan 
committee of the local governing body if no board or commission exists in that 
municipality.  TIF actions designated to be carried out by the planning commission 



http://www.revenue.wi.gov/pubs/slf/tif/cvmanual.html





State of Wisconsin  Department of Revenue 
Ch 1 Sec 5 TIF Glossary - 5 - Division of State and Local Finance  


Wisconsin Tax Incremental Finance Manual  Revised 7/14 


may be designated by ordinance or resolution to be done by the Redevelopment or 
Community Development Authority or Housing Authority of the municipality. 


• "Project Costs" – any expenditure made or estimated to be made that can be paid for 
with tax increment revenue.  The state does not make decisions on the eligibility of 
specific project costs.  Each municipality must, in consultation with their legal and 
accounting advisors, make the decision for themselves as to the eligibility of a project 
or specific cost based on the guidance provided here and in TIF law. 
o "Expenditure" – the exchange of money for the delivery of goods or services.  


No expenditure may be made before the date the project plan is approved by the 
local governing body, except for costs directly related to planning for the TID.  
TIF law identifies the following as eligible expenditures: 
 Capital costs including, but not limited to, public works; new buildings or 


structures; demolition, remodeling, repair or reconstruction of existing 
buildings; environmental remediation; and the clearing of land. 


 Financing costs including, but not limited to, interest paid to bond holders, 
and premiums paid for early redemption of bonds. 


 Property assembly costs, which consist of deficit incurred due to the sale or 
lease of land within a TID for less than its cost to the municipality. 


 Professional services including, but not limited to, planning, architectural, 
engineering, accounting, and legal advice and sales. 


 Administrative costs for municipal employees directly related to creating the 
TID or time spent implementing the TID project plan. 


 Relocation costs including, but not limited to, those relocation payments made 
following condemnation under secs. 32.19 and 32.195, Wis. Stats. 


 Organizational costs related to environmental impact statements and public 
notices. 


 Payments made to a Town for property taxes levied on annexed land included 
in a TID. 


 The portion of major infrastructure projects (e.g. water tower, water treatment 
plant) inside or outside the TID that will serve the land in the TID. 


 Removal or containment of lead contamination in buildings or infrastructure 
that the municipality declares a public health concern. 


 Developing newly-platted residential areas in TIDs for which a project plan 
was approved before 9/30/1995, or in a mixed-use district according to their 
limits. 


 Cash grants if a development agreement is signed. 
 Fee to DOR to certify the base value of a TID. 


o "Ineligible Project Costs" – expenses that are incurred by the City that may not 
be paid for with the tax increment revenue from the TID.  TIF law identifies the 
following as ineligible project costs: 
 Constructing or expanding administrative buildings, police and fire buildings, 


libraries, schools, recreation and community buildings, unless they were 
destroyed before January 1, 1997 by a natural disaster. 


 Constructing any building or facility if the municipality generally finances 
similar facilities only with utility user fees. 







State of Wisconsin  Department of Revenue 
Ch 1 Sec 5 TIF Glossary - 6 - Division of State and Local Finance  


Wisconsin Tax Incremental Finance Manual  Revised 7/14 


 General government operating expenses that are unrelated to the planning or 
implementation of the project plan. 


 Cash grants made by the City to owners, lessees, or developers of land within 
the TID, unless the recipient has signed a development agreement with the 
municipality, a copy of which must be sent to the JRB or, if dissolved, 
retained in the official records of the TID. 


• "Project Plan" – the plan, properly submitted and approved by DOR, for the 
financial development or redevelopment of a TID, including all properly approved 
amendments thereto.   


• "Public Hearing" – as part of creating or amending a TID, the planning commission 
must hold public hearings to allow the members of the community to voice their 
opinion or concerns about the proposed TID.  These hearings must be noticed in 
accordance with Class 2 notice requirements, and copies of the project plan must be 
made available. 


• "Rehabilitation or Conservation Work" – necessary for the creation of a 
Rehabilitation and Conservation District, and defined for the purposes of TIF law in 
sec. 66.1337, Wis. Stats., the Urban Renewal Act.  Includes any of the following, but 
these descriptions do not override the restrictions on project costs defined above: 
o Carrying out plans for a program of voluntary or compulsory repair and 


rehabilitation of buildings or other improvements. 
o Acquisition of real property and demolition, removal or rehabilitation of buildings 


and improvements on the property where necessary to eliminate unhealthful, 
unsanitary or unsafe conditions, lessen density, reduce traffic hazards, eliminate 
obsolete or other uses detrimental to the public welfare, to otherwise remove or 
prevent the spread of blight or deterioration, or to provide land for needed public 
facilities. 


o Installation, construction or reconstruction of streets, utilities, parks, playgrounds, 
and other improvements necessary for carrying out the objectives of an urban 
renewal project. 


o The disposition, for uses in accordance with the objectives of the urban renewal 
project, of any property acquired in the area of the project. 


• "Severely Distressed Tax Incremental District" – a TID that has been created 
before October 1, 2008 which meets all the conditions of a distressed TID and whose 
value increment in any year has declined at least 25 percent from the district's highest 
value increment.   (Under current law, this classification expires on October 1, 2015.)  


• "Substantial Compliance" – if in the process of creating a TID certain requirements 
are not met a municipality may submit a written request to DOR asking to find 
substantial compliance.  This finding means that despite certain errors, irregularities 
or informalities of the TIF law, a TID may be created since substantial justice has not 
been affected.  This power allows DOR more flexibility in reviewing and approving 
TIDs. 


• "Tax Base" – the total of all equalized real and personal property in an entire 
municipality or taxing jurisdiction on which property taxes are levied. 


• "Tax Increment" – the taxes levied by all overlying taxing jurisdictions on the value 
between the base value and the current value of the TID, also known as the value 







State of Wisconsin  Department of Revenue 
Ch 1 Sec 5 TIF Glossary - 7 - Division of State and Local Finance  


Wisconsin Tax Incremental Finance Manual  Revised 7/14 


increment.  These taxes are sent to the municipality who operates the TID, and used 
to pay for the approved project costs laid out in the project plan. 


• "Taxable Property" – all the real and personal property located in a TID. 
• "Termination" – the process of notifying DOR of the termination and the filing of 


appropriate audit materials with DOR and the overlying taxing jurisdictions.  This 
process can be initiated by the municipality before all project costs are paid off, at 
which time those debts become the obligation of the municipality.  Once tax 
increments are collected in excess of approved project costs, or the maximum life is 
reached, termination is required.  See 2.4 TIF Termination for more information. 


• "Value Increment" – the difference in value between the base value and the current 
value.  This is the amount of property value that can be attributed to the TIF 
investment, and as such this is the portion of the tax base that is used to generate the 
tax increment that pays for the investment. 


• "Valuation Date" – the January 1 of the year the TID is created or amended.  If the 
creation date is between October 1, 2013 and September 30, 2014, the valuation date 
is January 1, 2014.  If the creation date is between October 1, 2014 and September 30, 
2015, the valuation date is January 1, 2015. 



http://www.revenue.wi.gov/pubs/slf/tif/2-4.pdf



		R-167-2015-Stoughton TIF Policy.pdf

		Stoughton TIF Policy-Final.pdf






S:/Public Works/PW Resolution folder/2015 Transportation Investment Coalition


City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the Transportation Investment
Coalition Resolution - #JustFixItWI


Committee Action: Public Works recommends approval 4-0


Fiscal Impact: -0-


File Number: R-168-2015 Date Introduced: October 27, 2015


WHEREAS, local government in Wisconsin is responsible for about 90% of the road miles in the state;
and


WHEREAS, Wisconsin’s diverse economy is dependent upon county and town roads as well as city
and village streets and transit systems across the state; and


WHEREAS, according to “Filling Potholes: A New Look at Funding Local Transportation in
Wisconsin,” commissioned by the Local Government Institute of Wisconsin (LGI) the condition of
Wisconsin’s highways is now in the bottom third of the country; and


WHEREAS, state funding for local roads in Wisconsin has failed to keep up with costs over the past
several decades which has adversely affected local transportation finances. According to “Filling
Potholes,” municipal transportation spending has declined from $275 per capita in 2000 to $227 in 2012;
and
WHEREAS, levy limits do not allow local government to make up for the deterioration of state
funding; and


WHEREAS, Wisconsin’s over-reliance on borrowing eats away at the state’s segregated funding
sources – the state gas tax and vehicle registration fees – which increasingly pay debt service rather than
fund transportation needs; and


WHEREAS, safety is a primary concern and responsibility of local governments across Wisconsin.
Unfortunately, according to TRIP, a national non-profit transportation research group, Wisconsin had
347 non-interstate, rural road fatalities in 2013; and


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Common Council recognizes that our state highway and interstate
system is the backbone of our surface transportation system and plays a vital role in the economy of
Wisconsin. Both local and state roads need to be properly maintained in order for our economy to grow;
and







S:/Public Works/PW Resolution folder/2015 Transportation Investment Coalition


WHEREAS, from a competitive standpoint Wisconsin motorists pay significantly less than any of our
neighbors when you combine the annual cost of the state gas tax and vehicle registration fees; and


WHEREAS, the Transportation Finance and Policy Commission, appointed by the Governor and
Legislature clearly found that if Wisconsin does not adjust its user fees, the condition of both our state
and local roads will deteriorate significantly over the next decade.


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Stoughton Common Council urge the
Governor and Legislature to #JustFixItWI and agree upon a sustainable solution: one that includes a
responsible level of bonding and adjusts our user fees to adequately and sustainably fund Wisconsin’s
transportation system. Furthermore, the City Council directs the Clerk to send a copy of this resolution
to our State Legislators and to Governor Scott Walker.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







6) Discussion & Approval: Transportation Investment Coalition Resolution - #JustFixItWI:
Mayor Olson wrote a letter to Governor Walker, Senator Mark Miller and Representative Gary
Hebl to support/release funding for transportation projects which have decreased and has
adversely affected funding to repair local roads. Mayor Olson would like the City Council to let
all representatives know how important these projects are for the City of Stoughton.


Motion by Lawrence seconded by Boersma to approve the resolution – Transportation
Coalition - #JustFixItWI. Motion carried 4-0 (Mayor voted yes)


8) Future Agenda Items: Veterans Park Tennis Court, Joint Meeting with Public Safety –
Pedestrian Crossings, Stoughton Street Department – Designate as Emergency Personnel


Moved by Lawrence seconded by Boersma to adjourn the meeting at 6:44 pm. Motion
carried 4-0 (with the Mayor voting). Respectfully submitted by Vickie Erdahl Administrative
Assistant – 10/21/15







From: Donna Olson
Sent: Thursday, October 08, 2015 8:52 AM
To: Karl Manthe; Thomas Majewski
Cc: Vickie Erdahl
Subject: FW: Thanks for Taking Action : Transportation funding delays


unacceptable


Please print the attached link and include both in the PW packet.
Thanks
Donna


From: Gail Sumi [mailto:gsumi@lwm-info.org]
Sent: Wednesday, October 07, 2015 4:55 PM
To: Donna Olson
Subject: Thanks for Taking Action : Transportation funding delays unacceptable


Thank you for sending an email to Governor Walker and your Legislators urging them to
take leadership and release the bonding that was authorized for major projects. Your
contacts worked and the initial step was taken! The Governor made the request of the
Legislature to make the money available yesterday. Here's the Journal Sentinel story.


This call to action is part of a long-term campaign that is branded #JustFixItWI. We are
working in coalition with the Wisconsin Transportation Development Association, the
Towns and Counties Associations and many others. Our goal is to work toward a
sustainable transportation system that has a reliable funding stream. Our campaign
includes all modes. In fact this week we are working hard to publicize #WITransit
Week. Several city leaders held office hours on the bus earlier this week. Here's the
coverage from NBC 26 of Appleton Mayor Hanna's and Green Bay Mayor Schmitt's office
hours. Oshkosh Mayor Cummings and City Manager Rohloff declared it Transit Week
and rode the bus yesterday as did Eau Claire City Manager Van Gompel. Other systems
also took part. Check out all of the activity by skimming through the storify that we
created.


Thank you again for taking action and making a difference for your community. Please
stay tuned for additional calls to action on transportation and other issues. If you'd like
to sign up for the League's Lobby Team and get more involved, you can do so here:
http://bit.ly/LWMLobby







Click here to unsubscribe from this mailing list.to unsubscribe from this mailing list.







From: Karl Manthe
Sent: Wednesday, October 14, 2015 9:33 AM
To: Vickie Erdahl
Subject: FW: Transportation Delays Unacceptable


Public Works Packet


From: Donna Olson
Sent: Friday, October 02, 2015 2:15 PM
To: Karl Manthe
Subject: FW: Transportation Delays Unacceptable


For inclusion in the Public Works Packet.
Thanks
Donna


From: Donna Olson
Sent: Friday, October 02, 2015 2:14 PM
To: Karl Manthe; Sid Boersma; Paul Lawrence; Tom Selsor; Thomas Majewski
Cc: Council; Leadership Team
Subject: Transportation Delays Unacceptable


I have sent the following letter to Governor Walker, Senator Mark Miller and
Representative Gary Hebl urging them to support critical funding for transportation
projects. As these projects get moved back, so will the desperately needed
improvements to our section of Hwy 51. I will be forwarding a resolution to Karl for
inclusion in the next Public Works packet for your action and Council recommendation
to also let our representatives know how important these projects are for the City of
Stoughton.
Donna


From: league@lwm-info.org [mailto:league@lwm-info.org]
Sent: Friday, October 02, 2015 2:09 PM
To: Donna Olson
Subject: Confirmation of: Transportation Delays Unacceptable


***Please do not reply to this email--this confirmation simply lets you know that your message
was sent.***


Donna Olson:


Thank you for supporting your community by taking action on this alert. While the #JustFixItWI campaign is a long-term fight, this is
an important time to let the Governor and Legislators know that you are paying attention and are concerned.


If you have any questions or concerns, please contact Gail Sumi at gsumi@lwm-info.org or call her at 608-267-4477.


If you aren't already a member of the League's Lobby Team, please continue your advocacy by joining. Details and sign up are
here: http://bit.ly/LWMLobby







Your message has been sent to the following recipients:


* Governor Scott Walker
* Senator Mark Miller
* Representative Gary Hebl


The content of your message is as follows:


[The message(s) you sent had each recipient's salutation here]:


I am writing to ask for your leadership to avoid delays on critical transportation projects that will
hurt the overall economy and risk safety in Wisconsin.


The Department of Transportation recently announced that five projects will be delayed at least 2
years due to insufficient resources.


It is my understanding that the budget, which was recently signed into law, included $350
million in contingency bonds in order to mitigate costly delays such as these that need to be
released by the Legislature in order to be available for project funding. Now that the DOT has
indicated just how severe the delays will be without the revenue from those contingency bonds,
the legislature needs to act.


While many of us were concerned about increasing overall transportation borrowing without
adjusting revenues, what ultimately passed was a reduction in borrowing. The Legislature has the
authority to release $350 million in contingency bonds, but even if this bonding is authorized,
there will still be a net reduction in bonding from the previous budget.


Ultimately, we need to move to a more predictable and sustainable funding situation for our
transportation budget, but for right now the fiscally responsible move is to free up this bonding
authority that was already included in the budget.


If the legislature does not act soon the DOT has indicated that the 2016 construction season will
be lost. The impacts of that will be significant and felt far beyond the regions of these five
projects. The people in these affected areas will certainly face greater disruptions. The decreased
efficiency of the system will hurt the local economy. Safety will suffer. The cost to complete
these projects will balloon due to construction inflation. But in addition to all of that, every other
project that is waiting to get done - including the significant projects yet to be done in the
Milwaukee region - will be pushed back even further. Highway rehabilitation projects are certain
to be impacted. The impact on funding that will be available for municipalities is not even
quantifiable other than to say it will certainly hurt.


I respectfully urge you to act soon to, at the very least, release the contingency bonding authority
that was already included in the budget. Ultimately however, we need sustainable funding
sources for our transportation system.







Thank you for considering my comments.


Sincerely,


Donna Olson
[Your postal address was included here]





		R-168-2015-Resolution Transportation Investment Coalition October 2015.pdf

		ExtractPage1.pdf

		ExtractPage2.pdf

		ExtractPage3.pdf



